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Financial and Operational Highlights

MBREERE
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALFEE
% change
increase/
(decrease)
&, GR)
2020 2019 % E
(restated)
(#&&7)
Revenue (HK$’million) (B &E%5T) A | 112 (63.4%)
Gross profit (HK$ 'million) ER(FEET) 27 41 (34.1%)
Operating loss (HK$’million) wEEE(FEET) (115) (190) (39.6%)
Per share =1
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BREREBECENWN) (40.63) (35.83) 13.4%
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) SRECSEBECEW) (40.63) (35.83) 13.4%
Share price A& (B
— High (HK$) —=(&T) 1.00 1.31
— Low (HK$) —{RGET) 0.77 0.99
Financial ratios Uy 30 S
Gross profit margin (%) FEFE(%) 65.8% 36.5% 29.3ptADE
Average inventory turnover (days) FHEFEREH(A) 73 258 (71.7%)
Average trade receivables turnover (days) FHREWE 5 IR EES(H) 27 70 (61.4%)
Average trade payables turnover (days) FHENE ZEREFAEH(H) 3,356 429 682.3%
Gearing ratio (%) BEABLE%)
— Borrowing to total assets —EEHBEE 142.4% 107.8% 346 ptEDZh
As at 31 March
M3A31H
% change
increase/
(decrease)
&, GR)
2020 2019 % E
Total equity (HK$’000) g FET) (524,985) (228,287) 130.0%
Total assets (HK$’000) BEE(FET) 420,703 529,089 (20.5%)
Number of shares in issue (’000) BETRHER (FAL) 716,190 716,190 -




Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWR DM

The board of directors (“Board” and “Directors” respectively) of
Vestate Group Holdings Limited (“Company”) presents the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 (“Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded
a decrease of 63.4% in its consolidated revenue to approximately
HK$41 million (2019: HK$112 million), which comprised mainly in retail
business, financial services business and e-Commerce and e-Payment
business. The Group’s overall operating expenses as a percentage of
turnover decreased by 44.8 percentage points. Loss attributable to the
equity holders was approximately HK$291 million for the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: HK$257 million). Loss per share amounted to
approximately HK40.63 cents per share (2019: HK35.83 cents).

Retail Business

As a result of the fallout from the continuing Sino-US trade war and
social issues, the retail industry of Hong Kong registered a significant
decline in sales from mid 2019 onwards. According to statistics
released by the Census and Statistics Department, the total retail sales
value decreased by 11.1% on a year-on-year basis in the full-year
2019, recording the biggest annual fall since 1999. Retail sales in Hong
Kong were severely weakened from July onwards when a 41% decline
in Mainland tourists was recorded in Hong Kong due to the outbreak of
social issues in the second half of 2019. The individual visit scheme for
mainland Chinese visitors to Hong Kong was suspended in early 2020
to impede the spread of the COVID-19 virus, which made it an even
more challenging year for the retail sector in Hong Kong. This resulted
in the significant decrease in the Group’s revenue from the retailing of
footwear business in Hong Kong.

The competition in the retail sector in the PRC has been intense and
challenging for the year. Despite the promotion and opening of physical
stores in the PRC, the Group’s retailing of footwear business in the
PRC has been less than satisfactory during the year and the Group’s
revenue from the retailing of footwear business in the PRC reduced
significantly during the year.

In light of the above, the Group began engaging in the operations of
convenience stores in the PRC. The convenience stores provide a
wide range of everyday consumer products, and also offer a range of
other services, such as: 5G Smart Services, breakfast and supper sets,
courier services, simple home repairing services, etc. During the year,
the Group continued to proceed with the expansion and transformation
of its convenience stores in the PRC. The Group considers the growth
potential of this operation to be high and intends to actively seek for
expansion to attract a larger base of customers.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the revenue generated
from the retailing business was approximately HK$16 million (2019:
HK$110 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BERENWR DM

Financial Services Business

The Group is engaged in the financial services to institutional and retail
clients in Hong Kong and PRC. The Group possesses licenses for
a various range of financial services in Hong Kong including money
lending and other financial services. The Group will continue to invest
further resources to enhance its overall customer service in expanding
its customer basis in the future. For the financial year ended 31 March
2020, the revenue generated from financial services business was
approximately HK$12 million (2019: Nil).

e-Commerce and e-Payment Business

The Group is designated by UnionPay International Co., Ltd as its
oversea UnionPay card acquiring institution and has granted the
authorization to conduct offline acquiring business in Hong Kong,
Italy, France, Korea and Japan, as well as the global online acquiring
business. At present, the Group actively seeks the suitable merchant
to install the point-of-sale terminals to develop the offline acquiring
business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Position

The Group financed its operations with internal funding, issuing the
bonds and the standby evolving loan facilities by the independent third
party. The Group adopted a prudent approach in managing its financial
needs.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$5 million (2019: HK$2 million), and no outstanding
bank borrowings (2019: Nil). Current convertible bonds were
approximately HK$188 million. As at 31 March 2020, the current ratio
stood at 0.3 times (2019: 0.7 times) and the gearing ratio stood at
142.4% (2019: 107.8%).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no banking facilities (2019: Nil)
and no charge on its assets. The Group also had no bank loans and
bank guarantees as at 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

During the Year, inventory turnover days decreased to approximately
73 days (2019: 258 days). As at 31 March 2020, there was no inventory
(2019: HK$3 million).

Capital Expenditure

During the Year, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to HK$0.8
million (2019: HK$0.6 million), comprising principally the purchase of
leasehold improvements, computer equipment and computer software.

EEARTE R
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Foreign Exchange Management

The Group operates principally in the PRC and Hong Kong and its
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi or Hong Kong
dollars. The Group does not expect any significant foreign currency
risk and did not enter into any forward contract to hedge its foreign
exchange risk during the Year.

Convertible Bonds

(@)

The Company issued the convertible bonds to subscriber in
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 on 5 July 2016 (“First
Bonds”). The First Bonds may be converted into 16,574,585
new Shares at a conversion price of HK$1.81 per share and the
bonds bear coupon interest at the rate of 6% per annum and
due 2020. The net proceeds from the First Bonds had been fully
utilized. Pursuant to the terms of the First Bonds contain specific
performance obligations imposed on Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr.
Zhu”), an executive Director, the chairman of the Board and a
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhu is required (i) in
his personal capacity or through any entity or company controlled
by him, to hold at least 50% of the issued share capital of the
Company; and (ii) to remain as an executive Director. Any non-
compliance with the aforesaid specific performance obligation will
constitute an event of default and upon the bondholder giving a
notice to the Company, the bonds will immediately become due
and payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
First Bonds.

The Company also issued the convertible bonds to subscriber
in principal amount of HK$150,000,000 on 24 August 2016
(“Second Bonds”). The Second Bonds may be converted into
81,300,813 new Shares at a conversion price of HK$1.845 per
share and the bonds bear coupon interest at the rate of 10.5%
per annum and due 2019. The net proceeds of the Second Bonds
had been fully utilized. During the period, no Share was issued
by the Company upon the subscriber exercise of their conversion
rights of the bonds. The Company is currently in negotiation with
the subscriber regarding a new repayment schedule.
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Corporate Bond

On 8 May 2017, the Company issued the bonds to the investor in
principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest rate of 12% per annum
for the first year and 13% per annum for the second year and due 2019
(“Bonds”). Pursuant to the terms of the Bonds, a specific performance
obligation is imposed on Mr. Zhu, that during the term of the Bonds,
Mr. Zhu, together with parties acting in concert with him, should
own directly or indirectly more than 50% of the voting shares of the
Company. Any breach of the aforesaid specific performance obligation
may constitute a breach under the subscription agreement, pursuant
to which the investor is entitled to redeem the Bonds immediately in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds. The Company is
currently in negotiation with the subscriber regarding a new repayment
schedule.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no pledge of assets (2019: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities or
off-balance sheet obligations (2019: Nil).

GROUP STRUCTURE

During the Year, there was no material change in the corporate
structure of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 59 employees (2019:
261 employees) and the total staff cost for the Year was HK$21 million
(2019: HK$87 million). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees, including mandatory retirement funds,
medical coverage and purchase discounts. In addition, incentive
share options and performance-based discretionary bonus on an
annual basis may be granted to employees subject to the Group’s and
individual performance. The Group also provides training to its staff.
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MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 17 June 2017, the Company entered into the preliminary agreement
with the vendor, a company incorporated in ltaly (“Vendor”), in relation
to the Company will acquire the properties located at Milan, Italy from
the Vendor (“Properties”) for a purchase price of Euro 34,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$297,160,000) (“Acquisition”).

On 27 June 2019, the Vendor and the Company entered into a refund
agreement, agreeing on a total amount of Euro 11,220,000 (including
Euro 1,020,000 VAT) to be paid by the vendor to the Company. The
vendor has refunded a total amount of Euro 1,300,000 to the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2020, with an outstanding amount of Euro
9,920,000 (including Euro 1,020,000 VAT) as at 31 March 2020. As
such, both parties mutually agreed to settle the refund on or before 31
March 2021, or such later date both parties may agree in writing.

The Vendor is beneficially owned as to 70% by Ms. CAIl Jiaying, an
executive Director, and hence the Vendor is a connected person of the
Company. The Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction on the
part of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
the Acquisition are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
17 June 2017 and the circular dated 31 October 2017.

DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

(a) References are made to the announcements of Vestate Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) dated 6 July 2018, 2 January
2019, 2 July 2019, 1 November 2019, 2 March 2020, and 13
March 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 17 August
2018 (The “Publications”) in relation to, among other things, the
Disposal. Unless otherwise defined, capitalized terms used in this
annual report shall have the same meanings as those defined in
the Publications.

On 2 July 2018, Genius Earn Investments Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group (“Vendor”), entered into the
disposal agreement with the purchaser in relation to the disposal
of 49% of the issued share capital of Ascent Pride Investment
Limited (“Target Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group (“Disposal Agreement”), at the consideration of
HK$50,000,000 (“Disposal’).

As the Disposal Agreement had been ongoing for around two
years with outstanding condition yet to be fulfilled, the agreement
unfortunately could not be completed. Therefore, the Disposal
Agreement is considered to have lapsed on 30 June 2020.
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On 24 May 2019, Genius Earn Investments Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Vendor”) and the purchaser
entered into the disposal agreement, pursuant to which the
Vendor will sell entire issued share capital of Artemis Footwear
Limited and 50% of the entire issued share capital of Walker
Shop Footwear Limited at the consideration of HK$2,500,000
(“Disposal”). Upon its completion on 31 May 2019, Artemis
Footwear has ceased to be a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and the Group remains to have 50% interests in Walker
Shop Footwear Limited. Details of the Disposal are set out in the
announcement dated 24 May 2019.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including pandemic risks,
business risks, capital risks and financial risks that may have different
levels of impact on the Group’s financial performance, operations,
business as well as future prospects. The financial risk and capital risk
are set out in the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Group or may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

10

COVID-19 adversely affecting the global economy;
Increase in rental;
Reliance on key management personnel;

Changes in consumers’ demand or failure to respond or identify
such changes in a timely manner;

Competition in both footwear and financial markets in Hong Kong;
and

Economic downturn in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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OUTLOOK

In the financial year of 2020, the global markets remain to be sensitive
to geopolitical and macroeconomic uncertainties. The markets
continued to experience significant challenges, stemming from the
on-going China-United States trade dispute, Hong Kong’s society
unrest, and the epidemic outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease
(COVID-19). Hong Kong's economic woes have not shown any signs of
easing in the past months, and business confidence has plunged into
a recession. In the midst of this market volatility, the Group continues
to maintain a cautiously optimistic outlook for the current financial year,
while pro-actively seeking positive opportunities in various markets.

In light of the above, the Company has decided to close all retail stores
in the PRC in late 2019 and close all retail stores in Hong Kong in early
2020 so as to concentrate its resources to develop its e-commerce
business and franchising of footwear in the PRC. The Company will
continue to promote the sale of its footwear products online through
different platform such as Taobao (JAE), Tmall (<%#) and =& (JD.
COM), provide better customer experiences and develop a new retail
model in the PRC in the future. The Company is optimistic that the new
strategic direction of the Company will be able to reduce significantly its
rental and operational costs and arrive at a leaner cost structure. The
Company will also continue to explore more opportunities on current
and potential third party online platforms with the aim of boosting sales
and contributing to the long term development and competitiveness of
the Company’s retailing of footwear business in the PRC.

The Eurozone economy had recently been mired in a downturn due
to COVID-19, however it is expected that recovery will slowly begin
towards the end of the year. The Group remains cautious of the
outlook for the European real estate market, but will maintain a close
monitoring in the event that favourable opportunities arise.

The Group has witnessed a substantial growth in the PRC’s internet
data center (IDC”) business market, with much of the growth coming
from widespread adoption of data centers by the PRC government
agencies. The Group believes that big data, cloud calculation, 5G
and Internet of Things technology will remain a positive momentum,
therefore will explore further possibilities of launching internet data
center projects.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend
my heartfelt appreciation to my fellow board members and all staff
members for their outstanding contributions to the Group over the past
year, and also to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders and
stakeholders for their trust and support.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing and maintaining good corporate
governance practices within the Group to have better transparency
and protection of shareholders’ interest in general. We believe that a
well-balanced corporate governance structure will definitely enable
better management of its business risks and thereby ensure the
Group is operated in the best interests of its shareholders and other
stakeholders.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). These functions included:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, there are three board committees under the Board,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee. All these committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference which have been
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
These committees report directly to the Board on their works and make
recommendations on matter where appropriate.
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The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set out
in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020 (“Year”),
except that according to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Throughout the
Year, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”) is the Chairman of the Board and
is responsible for providing leadership and ensuring effective running
of the Board. The duties of the chief executive are undertaken and
performed by the Chairman of the Board, thus Mr. Zhu also responsible
for the Group’s day-to-day operations and implementation of the
Group’s strategies and is assisted by a management team, comprising
executive Directors, general managers and department heads of the
Group, with authority and responsibility for developing and exercising
both operational and non-operational duties. Despite a part of
responsibility of chief executive is vested in Mr. Zhu, in which all major
decisions are made in consultation with the other Board members and
the senior management of the Company. The Board believes that there
is sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains
a strong management position of the Company. This was in deviation
from A.2.1 of the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for setting the Group’s directions, strategies
and policies, approval of annual budgets and business plans,
overseeing and reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems, formulating the corporate governance policy
and supervising a management team comprising executive Directors,
general managers and department heads of the Group. The Board
reserves the right to decide all policy matters and material transactions
of the Group.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (“INED”), in
compliance with the minimum number of INEDs required under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rule. Details of the Board composition are as
follow:

Board of Directors

Executive Director
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman)

Membership of Board Committee(s)
Member of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee
Mr. KANG Jianming -

Ms. CAIl Jiaying -

Mr. YIN Wansun -

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong Chairman of Audit Committee

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Chairman of Nomination Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing

Mr. YU Lei

The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors
and INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks
and balances that safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Group. The INEDs provide the Group with diversified expertise and
experience. Their views and participation bring independent judgment
and advice on issues relating to the Group’s strategies, performances,
conflicts of interests of all shareholders are taken into account. The
number of INEDs has been no less than one-third of the number of the
Board members and at least one of whom possesses the appropriate
professional accounting qualification and related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Director

In accordance with the article of association of the Company
(“Articles”), the Board shall have the power from time to time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible
for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation and all Directors are subject to
retirement at least once every three years.

The Chairman and Chief Executive

The CG Code provides that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive should be separate and performed by different individuals.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, as explained in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” on page 12 of this
report, Mr. ZHU Xiaojun assumed the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive of the Company simultaneously.

Independent Non-executive Director

All INEDs are appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation. No INED has served the Company for more
than 9 years. Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all INEDs are independent.

Company Secretary

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the senior
management. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable laws are followed. During the Year, the company secretary
has complied with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Training and Professional Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The training records for the Year had been provided to the
company secretary by all Directors of the Company. A summary of
trainings received by the Directors for the Year is shown as below:

Name of Directors

BIREXBRE

ARRBBEREF2EBBERIRER  UERY
FHRE 2 MB R - WRRSEETRERE
BEMRIAABENBERA THERSELER - AR
AERERCARAMERRAFE 2IFICE -
AFEEEERIBIZBEIIRMT -

Type of training

EEHR EHIER
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman) REBSRE(FE) B
Mr. KANG Jianming FRIERASCAE B
Ms. CAl Jiaying BEBZT B
Mr. YIN Wansun BRIEH A B
Ms. ZHAO Hong L/ B
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing FEEEAEE B
Mr. YU Lei REBITE B
Notes: Hiat -

A attending briefing sessions and/or seminars

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest development
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been arranged
for the Directors and officers of the Company for indemnifying their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage of
directors’ and officers’ liability is reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis of at least four times a year to discuss the Group’s business
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim
results. The Board members are served with notices of at least 14
days and provided with all agendas and adequate information for their
review at least 3 days prior to the meetings. After the Board meetings,
draft minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments before
confirmation and sign-off. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
board committees are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice. During the year, four Board meetings were held.
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All Directors are adequately briefed on updates on amendments to or
latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations concerning their obligations as Directors and
good corporate governance practices. They were also provided with
the Group’s monthly management updates which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, financial
position and prospects to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three members, all INEDs,
namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. CHAU Wai Hing and Mr. YU
Lei. No member of the Audit Committee was a former partner of the
Company’s existing auditing firm. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications in accountancy
and experience in financial matters.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Group’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
procedures, to review the Group’s financial information, to oversee
relationship with the Group’s external auditors and make relevant
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee held two
meetings during the Year and its works performed include reviewing
the adopted accounting principles and practices, the annual and interim
consolidated financial results and reports, reviewing external auditors’
audit plan, terms of engagement and recommended auditors’ fees for
the Board’s approval, reviewing the management letters and reports
issued by the external auditors and reviewing the internal audit review
reports for assessing effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Group.

The Audit Committee was provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and may seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense, where necessary.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises four members, the
majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are INEDs,
namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Mr. CHAU Wai
Hing and Mr. YU Lei.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the size,
structure and composition of the Board and to make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on
selection of individuals for directorships, to assess the independence of
INEDs and to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession plan for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and chief executive officer. The Nomination
Committee was provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, where necessary.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in June 2013 which
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board
appointments are based on merits, and have paid due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board in selecting candidates. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year and
had reviewed the progress of implementation of the board diversity
policy and the structure, size and composition of the Board including
the directors’ skills, knowledge and experience and had made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the individuals as
the Director of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises four members, the
majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs,
namely, Ms. ZHAO Hong (Chairman), Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Mr. CHAU Wai
Hing and Mr. YU Lei.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all Directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior management,
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of INEDs
and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee was
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense, where
necessary.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year and
discussed the remuneration package for certain Directors as well as
other remuneration related matters.

DIRECTOR’S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting, Audit
Committee Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting, Remuneration
Committee Meeting and shareholder’'s meeting during the Year are set
out below:
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ESHEERZLE
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g3 RREZEeEE  FWZRESSHABREAX
SZHFERER

Attendance/Number of meetings held for the year ended 31 March 2020

BZ2020F3A31BLEELE BT e38E

Audit  Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting 2019 AGM
ENEZRE REZEE® FMEERE 20195
Ezgel = = 82 REAFAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. ZHU Xiaojun REBEE
(Chairman of the Board and (EZEELRE
Member of the Remuneration and #8125
Nomination Committees) ZE5EHR) 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
Mr. KANG Jianming FREPLAE 4/4 - - - 11
Ms. CAl Jiaying BERLT 3/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. YIN Wansun REEHLE 3/4 - - - 11
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Ms. ZHAO Hong L/
(Chairman of the Audit, Nomination (&% - 125 ¢
and Remuneration Committee) FHWZEEF)E) 4/4 2/2 1 11 0N
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing EEELE
(Member of the Audit, Nomination ~ (F#% - 125 ¢
and Remuneration Committees) ~ #ENZEEHE) 4/4 2/2 11 11 1N
Mr. YU Lei REEE
(Member of the Audit, Nomination ~ (F#% - 125 ¢
and Remuneration Committee) FWZEEHKE) 4/4 2/2 1N 11 1N
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DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries with
all Directors, they have confirmed their compliance with the Model
Code throughout the Year. On June 2013, the Company was adopted
written guidelines on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for relevant employees in respect of the dealings in the Company’s
securities.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor subject to endorsement
by the Board and final approval and authorization by the shareholders
of the Company in general meetings. During the Year, the Group
has engaged CCTH CPA Limited as external auditor to perform the
following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
follows:

ESNHBEESETZRSFRS

RAB BN ERBIM SR+ FrE 2 [ ETEET A
EFERTEFRZHEESTR I([EEFR]) - 1
ABEAHERETESFRHZTATH - K28
ERENBTERE  HECEIARLAFTE—EHE
SPIZ¥ESTAI - 7A2013F6 A » AN E B IRMAA R
BEEEEANREAFEEZEEIES > B3R
WA AZAESFRIE SR ©

SN BLED

ERZEQRRBERINERBEI BRI EHRE
KER  HERAESESE ZHERARRBRILE
RRE LFREHLEREE - RAFE - A%H
EREFEXESEARARRINEZEED - A
JETT T 5IBRT - HAREBEREIIMT ¢

Type of Services BRA% | A 2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Audit services ENZIRT 1,100 1,200
Non-audit services eI RS - -
Total #st 1,100 1,200

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays
a major role in providing objective assurance to the Board that a
sound and effective risk management and internal control system is
in place and operated by the management. The head of the internal
audit department directly reports to the Audit Committee on risk
management and audit matters. The annual audit works plan covered
the business activities and process of the Group’s core operating
business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas
of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management
from time to time.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control system, while the management
ensures the sufficient and effective operational controls over the key
business process are properly implemented with regular review and
update. Review the internal controls of the Group mainly covering
financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions. The risk management and internal control
system are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The implementation of the Group’s risk management evaluation was
assisted by the internal audit department so that the Group could
ensure new and emerging risk relevant to the Group’s operation
are promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy of
action plans to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans. The Audit Committee reviews
regularly the Group’s risk management systems.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system through the Audit Committee.
To maintain a sound and effective system of internal control and
safeguard our shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at
all times, the Group has an independent audit team to review and
monitor all critical aspects of the Group’s activities and its internal
control. During the Year, the Board had reviewed the findings of the
internal control review and evaluation of risk level of the Group could
take and effectiveness of risk management measures performed by
the internal auditors and external auditors together with the Audit
Committee and, after discussion with the management and external
auditors, was satisfied that the Group’s internal control system and
assessment of risk management was sound and adequate for the
Year. The Board would continue to review and improve the Group’s
risk management and internal control system, taking into account the
prevailing regulatory requirements, business development needs and
the interests of shareholders.

The Board also reviews annually the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on November 2018, where
the Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends to
shareholders every year and may declare special dividends from time
to time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board will take into consideration the Group’s
distributable profits generated during the year, the financial situation
and liquidity of the Group, the investment needs and the retained
profits that should be set aside for future development purposes.
While sharing the profit with shareholders, the Company will also
maintain sufficient reserves to meet its liabilities and to ensure the
implementation of the Group’s strategy for future development. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of
Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong and the articles of association
of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the channels by which information is communicated with
its shareholders. The Company’s corporate communications includes
among other things, announcements, financial reports, circulars and
other corporate communications which are disseminated through
its website at www.vestategroup.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange in compliance with the disclosure obligations under the
Listing Rules.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an important
opportunity for direct communication between the Board and the
Company’s shareholders. All Directors will make an effort to attend
general meetings. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate
resolution for each issue and invites presence of chairman of each of
the Board Committees for answering questions at the AGM. External
auditor also attends the AGM to answer questions about the conduct
of audit, the preparation and content of auditors’ report and the
confirmation of auditor’s independence. The notice of AGM and related
papers are distributed to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM. At the AGM, the Chairman ensures that detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are explained.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) may convene such
meeting, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the third Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
(the “ESG Report”) issued by Vestate Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “We”). This
report has been prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The group acknowledges the
importance of proper disclosure of business activities, understanding
that this is the key in building trust with investors and shareholders.

REPORTING PERIOD
The reporting period covers 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 (the “Year”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND ITS IMPORTANCE

The Group strongly believes in working closely together with all the
stakeholders in order to achieve a better outcome together. Despite all
stakeholders being influential, the Group believes that major resources
should be deployed on the information disclosures to the most
significant stakeholders, namely the suppliers and employees, followed
by the rest. The group has an adaptive approach and encourages
stakeholders in expressing their views through official and unofficial
channels.

APPROACH FOR ESG MANAGEMENT

The Group strives to establish a series of management objectives
and mechanisms in order to reach the most optimum sustainable
development. Through improving energy efficiency in business
operation, reducing the use of unnecessary natural resources, and
actively promoting the idea of recycling and reusing, the Group is
making significant steps towards being an environmentally friendly
entity. This would be beneficial to both short-term and long-term
development of the business and stakeholders as a whole.

Data collection processes have been tightly monitored, and analysis
have been conducted at a regularly interval to ensure a better
understanding of its progresses in improving factors regarding
environmental protection, staffing, operations and management.
Through continuous effort in developing good work habits in the
workforce, the Group has seen no-ticeable improvements in its overall
ESG management.

As the Group is constantly seeking new opportunities for growth and
business diversification, all employees are reminded of the risks that
may arise during the course. Furthermore, the Group is aware of the
corruption and money laundering risks associated with its business
activities. To stay vigilant against corruption at all times, the Group will
ensure its own board and employees to be truthful in their field of work,
and to remain self-disciplined at all times.
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We believe the idea of sustainability is the key to a brighter future,
therefore the Group will continue to implement various measures to
reduce carbon footprints and mitigate any undesirable impacts on our
environment.

ENVIRONMENT
Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are mainly derived from, but
not limited to, purchased electricity and vehicle emissions. The major
source of direct gas emission stems from the fleet that transports
goods from warehouses to stores. Transportation for some of our
shipments is outsourced to logistics providers, who are responsible for
indirect greenhouse gas emissions. Other greenhouse emission comes
from purchased electricity for our offices, warehouses and stores. We
understand the imperative need to reduce greenhouse gas emission,
therefore have implemented various measures to ensure that the
emissions are kept at the minimum.

For the year under review, the Group’s direct and indirect gas
emissions are as follows:

(i) Carbon Emissions
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(i) HHHE

Total Carbon Dioxide Equivalent

Emission of Greenhouse Gases Coverage Emissions (Tons)
BEREHEN REEE SR E BB EB AT (W)
2020 2019

Scope 1:
#HEN :
Direct emission of greenhouse gases Retail business in the PRC, Hong 8 49
¢ Emission from vehicles Kong Offices and warehouses
HERZREBHN TEERTEER BENLERERE
o BEHEIK
Scope 2:
#E?2 :
Indirect emission of greenhouse gases from Retail business in the PRC, Hong 61 1,222

energy consumption Kong offices and warehouses,
o Purchased electricity Dongguan offices, Guangzhou
R E AL AR AR E R P offices and warehouse
o JNBEN MEEBTEER BENAER

BE  RERAE  BMNPRAE
RlE

Scope 3:
#ES :
Indirect emission of greenhouse gases Retail business in the PRC, Hong 1 14
¢ Qutsourced transportation vehicles Kong offices and warehouses, 0 5

o Staff business trips by air
AR =R HE

o IMRIEBEW

o EEFRLREIIAE

Dongguan offices, Guangzhou
offices and warehouse

PREEZTEER BENAER
B %%%“* BN AE
B
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Notes:

1. Information about carbon emission is prepared with reference to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs published by the Stock
Exchange as well as the Greenhouse Gas Protocol published by
the World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD)
and the World Resources Institute (WRI).

2. Emission data of business trips by air is calculated using the carbon
emission calculator of the International Civil Aviation Organization.

3. As of the date of this Report, information of certain scopes is not
yet available.

Use of Resources

In response to environmental issues, the Group has adopted relevant
policies and measures to minimize the environmental impact of its
businesses in the course of day-to-day operation. Specific measures
are as follows:

Raise the awareness of environmental protection within the Group
and optimize the use of resources

The Group endeavors to raise the awareness of environmental
protection and aims to reduce any type of resources wastage that may
cause hard to our environment. Information has been shared with the
Group’s employees at all level, to ensure that all employees understand
the importance of energy and water conservation. Staff members are
encouraged to share information regarding environmental protection
and raise concerns/solutions to senior management shall they deem
necessary.

The following are the measures that the Group has implemented to
preserve energy and electricity:

- Electrical appliances, equipment, lighting, and air conditioning
are switched off when they are not in-use to reduce unnecessary
energy wastage.

- Air conditioning is thoroughly maintained and checked to ensure
they are operating efficiently. In addition, indoor temperature
is controlled and maintained at around 24 degrees Celsius to
ensure a balance between maximum efficiency and employee
comfort.

- All office appliances and devices are set at energy-saving mode
by default, and in sleep mode when idle for over a few minutes.

- Collection boxes are set up for used paper, while used/shredded
papers are disposed into recycling bins.

- Printing is discouraged unless it is mandatory, and all internal

communications are done verbally or through electrical means to
reduce paper usage.
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Incorporate the concept of environmental protection into the
design and renovation of stores

The design of office features a combination of waste reduction with
various factors such as energy conservation and the use of reusable
materials.

Unnecessary furniture and equipment are omitted, as the Group
focuses on a “green” and practical work place. Furniture is designed
for reuse, renewable materials are used whenever possible, and
more energy-efficient lighting is adopted in illumination. Proper waste
disposal is ensured by outsourcing the procedure to contractors
recognized by environmental protection authorities. The Group puts the
elimination of over-consumption of unnecessary products as the crux
of its method in becoming environmentally friendly.

Reduce emissions

The Group understands that the harm to the environment caused by
the emission of pollutants from vehicles and aircraft should not be
neglected. The Group will continue to monitor the use of transportation
and establish appropriate measures to balance the interests of its
stakeholders. The existing measures include gradually aligning
the emission standard of our business vehicles with EU standards,
maintaining good maintenance for vehicles, and encouraging better use
of video conferencing, conference calls and other electronic means for
communication instead of business trips, either onshore or abroad.

Strengthen the management of performance indicator measures

Statistics and data collection in relation to fuel and energy consumption
as well as the waste generated from offices and shops in the course
of business are strengthened in order to better develop strategies in
optimizing the environmental protection policies.

The following are utilization of resources by the Group throughout the
financial year of 2019 to 2020.
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(i)
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Utilization of Resources

Category of resources used

BRERNER

(i) BFREHETL

Coverage
REHE

Energy consumption in total
BEREREAL

2020 2019

Direct fuel consumption of vehicles:
BEEAERHERS

¢ Unleaded petrol

e Diesel

o MEinTM

o 5OH

Direct fuel consumption of vehicles in total:

ERAERREREL

Indirect fuel consumption of vehicles in total:
R TEMBREH

¢ Unleaded petrol

e Diesel

o EinTM

o 5O

Indirect fuel consumption of vehicles in total:

BETERRARL

Purchased Electricity

Retail business in the PRC, Hong
Kong offices and warehouses
PEEBETEXRYE BENAEREE

Retail business in the PRC,
Hong Kong offices and warehouses

TEETEEY  BERAEREE

Retail business in the PRC, Hong

2,115 litres A #
933 litres A

11,883 litres AT+
8,000 litres A Ft

3,089 litres A 7 19,883 litres A 7+

0 litre A F
667 litres A FF

2,668 litres A7+
3,052 litres A7+

667 litres A F+ 5,720 litres A F+

ANEES) Kong offices and warehouses 112,506 kwhT R 1,511,118 kwh T &
TERTEXY AEMAELRE

Notes: Hfat -

1. Information about carbon emission is prepared with reference to the 1. TR BEEA R 2B X P P B ORISR S

Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs published by the Stock
Exchange as well as the Greenhouse Gas Protocol published by
the World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD)

and the World Resources Institute (WRI).

2. Emission data of business trips by air is calculated using the carbon 2.
emission calculator of the International Civil Aviation Organization.

3. As of the date of submission of the Report, information of certain 3.

scopes is not yet available.
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(i) Environment and Natural Resources

The Group continues to implement its environmental protection
policies in order to improve the environment as well as to save
cost. In this financial year, the management team has continued
to rationalize the office space based on actual business needs
so as to save electricity. All existing lighting has almost been
replaced by energy saving ones. The Group will further enhance
its performance on environmental protection by the following
means:

o Make good use of resources

. Reduce carbon emission and waste

. Continue to identify and manage risks associated with the
environment

o Keep abreast of any update on all applicable laws and
regulations associated with environmental protection issues

o Promote recycling and reuse of waste

o Promote awareness and education on environmental
protection among staff

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

In an era where intense competition abounds, the Group regards
intelligent, creative and dedicated staff as the most valuable asset. We
acknowledge good employment relationships and a committed team is
the key to the Group’s efficient operations.

We take pride in establishing open communication with staff members,
and encourage all members in different levels to express their views
through various channels. The Group advocates a harmonious
environment and strive to break the barriers between staff by
organizing different types of meetings and activities from time to time,
creating a healthy and harmonious working environment.

Employment

During the year, the Group employed approximately 59 employees.
We are in compliance with the employment regulations of the regions
where our business is operated, details of which are set out below:

1. Labour wages, overtime pay and related benefits meet (or
exceed) the local minimum wage levels;

2. Leaves and statutory paid leaves comply with the local
government requirements;

3.  Our employees are treated equally by the Group. The employee’s
social identity, such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender,
religion, age, sexual orientation, political factions and marital
status, will not affect their employment, remuneration package
and promotion;
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4.  Staff Code of Practice of the Group is formulated with reference
to the employment regulations of relevant regions and complies
with the standard requirements of the national and local
government.

Health and Safety

The Group values the health and safety of our staff. Medical benefits
and a safe working environment are offered to employees to reduce
casualties during work.

In compliance with fire regulations, the Group set up fire escapes,
emergency lightings and diagram for emergency exit. Well-stocked
first-aid kits are in place at each work station. Guidance and working
guidelines regarding moving goods safely and the use of trolleys are
provided for staff exposed to higher risk of work-related injuries, such
as warehouse staff. Retail staff is provided with occupational health
guidance, which gives instructions on the safe use of folding ladders,
climbing ladders and stocking shelves to avoid injuries.

Development and Training

The Group believes that only by pursuing knowledge and innovation,
staying alert, leveraging on intelligence and creativity, and above all,
improving efficiencies of the management teams can we respond
to new challenges in this new era. Consequently, the Group offers
opportunities that foster our employees’ personal and professional
growth. In order to accommodate such development, management
helps to monitor the career development of the staff, while establishing
a series of meetings or work courses to enhance employees’ skills and
encourage continuous learning.

All new joiners would receive a thorough induction program in their
first week of employment. In addition, for those staff that requires
professional training during their career, the Group offers them study
breaks and sponsors their seminar or examination fee.

No excellent enterprise can survive without a united and competitive
team. Therefore, we encourage employees to actively participate in
the meetings and activities organized by the Group, during which team
spirit is built and past performances are reviewed, so that effective
strategies can be developed to face the new challenges in a new era.

Labour Standards

Child labour, compulsory or forced labour is prohibited in all business
segments of the Group. At present, we are not aware of any significant
risk of child labour or forced labour within the Group. In the case of
resignation of own accord, employees may leave the post as long
as reasonable notification is given as required by their employment
contracts.

Every employment is subject to stringent review to ensure the personal
information provided by the candidate is authentic.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Comprehensive supply chain management and sound procurement
management are relatively important to the sustainable operations of
the Group. In general, the Group places larger emphasis on the product
quality, service quality and business stability of suppliers in the supply
chain management system, however emphasis is also paid to their
performance on environmental protection and social responsibilities.

Product Responsibility

The Group is of the view that products form the core competitive
edge of an enterprise. Our quality inspection and assurance process
includes: (i) our leather materials are sent to National Leather Products
Quality Supervision and Inspection Centre for assessment, (ii) our
products are required to pass the National Quality Inspection for Light
Industry for Leather and Fur of Footwear Products, (iii) our professional
personnel perform random inspection at suppliers’ premises, provide
deficiency reports for substandard products identified during the
inspection process, offer improvement advice and demand the
suppliers to implement improvements or provide detailed improvement
proposals, and (iv) follow up such proposals and continuously
supervise the suppliers’ performance.

For the Group’s financial services business, the related operating
personnel shall comply with the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with the
Securities and Futures Commission and Trade Descriptions Ordinance,
to ensure that all information given is correct and not misleading,
defamatory or fraudulent. In addition, staff members are also to comply
closely with Money Lenders Ordinance, as well as the guidelines set
out by the Customs and Excise Department of Hong Kong.

In addition, we have set up appropriate working standards and codes
to make sure that all employees clearly understand the operating
requirements.

Customer Services
Data Privacy Policy

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations in relation
to personal information and the protection of customers’ rights. We
will not share, sell or lease any information provided by our customers
in order to protect their rights. The personal information collection
statement is set out on our website.
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BRI HEREBRS

Anti-corruption

The Group takes integrity, law-abiding and effective operation as our
operation philosophy. We strongly believe that the image of honesty,
integrity and fairness is one of the important assets of the Group.
To this end, all the staff are expressively required to devote great
efforts to protect the Group’s reputation by keeping fraud, disloyalty or
corruption at bay. The Group regularly reminds its staff to follow strict
rules and related guidance in performing job duties. Meanwhile, our
management has formulated a whistleblowing policy and delegate the
Audit Committee comprised of Independent Non-executive Directors
to receive and follow up relevant cases. The Group’s financial
services businesses and e-Commerce and e-Payment business have
commenced in line with the development approach of the Group.

The Group does not tolerate corruption, bribery, extortion, as well as
fraudulent and money-laundering activities. The relevant companies
make reference to the relevant regulations, such as Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance, the United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures)
Ordinance and the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance, and require their employees to strictly abide by
the relevant regulations and guidelines.

Whistleblowing Channel

We have formulated a whistleblowing policy and all employees of the
Group were notified of the ways to report suspicious conducts.

COMMUNITY

As a responsible enterprise, we will continuously adopt appropriate
approaches to broaden the communities we serve and support the
employment of people of different backgrounds.

Community Investment

The Group values the participation of community public welfare
activities, and enjoys providing various types of employment
opportunity at all times. We will also sponsor non-profit organizations
for holding charitable fund-raising activities and implement
non-governmental subsidized employment schemes that serve juvenile
offenders under probation orders as well as rehabilitated offenders,
teenagers with learning disabilities, ethnic minorities and newly-arrived
migrant women. We have also been awarded the “Caring Company”
logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service for eight consecutive
years, recognizing our effort in the promotion of caring for our society.
In the future, we will continuously invest various resources in our
community.

32

k&S

HETE  BELERAKELLED  RARE
HE  RENAFORRAEEET —BEEN
BE - Rt AEECPHEME AR LRRRASE
EHWBRETSRAMREF  ATEKEERTRMEE -
WA EE IR B TRITRISH U AETRAR R
ENAARRIES| © FIR - AEEEEECD HIERRIK
RY BB FMITEFARNBEZZEGRERK
HRE - AEBECHRRSBREEBLEFEHM
BT XMNER  HNAAKEMBRTE -

AEERIES B $R - BEFRAREST
75 o 1B A E 5 AP LLERRR A - (A B (R
HEEREE)IEIDRGTERELBHD FESSE
S (SRERE) 1GH)EFHERDEAD] - EBRETETH
BAfRGIEFES] -

EHEE

BAICHIEREHE - MAKERE B THEEE
BEARITANIR

HE

ER—RARTNEE - HAKFERIUEE N
AEFARAALET - I TRIEEA LI

AEBEE2EMEBEAREY - WENBERREHRS
BRERSE - UbHN - BAITSEBIESNIME RN
RESLY - HITIFBRNEBMBLERTE] - RS
HRAEXBENBTIFEREEAL EEBRE
MEFDE - PEIEBA LR RERLE - MEE
BB\ FRSGHEBLERBBRENAAR
BIZIRE  KRBRAEDEELSL D - BAK
FEELRRRTIARENER -



Biographical Details of Directors

EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 49, is the Chairman and an
executive Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of both
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Board. Mr. Zhu is the bother-in-law of Ms. Cai Jiaying, who is an
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Zhu is responsible for the overall
management and strategies planning for the business development of
the Group. He is currently the general manager of Shanghai Sunrise
Pension & Services Company Limited in the PRC. He is a sole director
of China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, a controlling
shareholder of the Company and also a director of major subsidiaries
of the Group including Trunari Enterprises Company Limited, Senet
International Limited and Walker Shop Footwear Limited. Mr. Zhu is
experienced in the industry of electronic commerce. He joined the
Group in February 2016.

Mr. KANG Jianming (“Mr. Kang”), aged 45, is an executive Director
of the Group. Mr. Kang obtained a Master’'s Degree in Philosophy from
the Beijing Normal University. He also completed an Executive MBA
programme from Zhongshan University in the PRC and the China
UnionPay Senior Management Programme from the Business and
Administration Department of the Tsinghua University in the PRC.
Mr. Kang worked as an economist in the Guangdong Branch of the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited from March 2005
to December 2006. Afterwards, he worked as the business director
of Guangzhou UnionPay Network Payment Company Limited from
October 2007 to September 2015. Mr. Kang obtained the intermediate
level qualification in Finance and Economics conferred by the Ministry
of Personnel of the Government of the PRC (currently known as the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the Government
of the PRC) in November 2002. In November 2014, Mr. Kang was
appointed as a member of the 3rd Committee of the Guangdong’s
Association for Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong
Kong and Macao. He has extensive experience in the industry of
e-Payment, finance and economics. Mr. Kang joined the Group in
February 2016.

Ms. CAIl Jiaying (“Ms. Cai”), aged 39, is an executive Director of
the Group. Ms. Cai is the sister-in-law of Mr. Zhu Xiaojun, who is a
Chairman and an executive Director of the Group. Ms. Cai graduated
from the Shanghai Art & Design Academy with a Bachelor's Degree
in Fashion Design. Ms. Cai has extensive experience in the fashion
design industry and she also has years of experience in ladies’ fashion
design, brand development as well as the management and business
operation. She is also the general manager of Shanghai Anxin
Insurance Agency Limited. Ms. Cai joined the Group in April 2016.
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Mr. YIN Wansun (“Mr. Yin”), aged 59, is an executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Yin obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Engineering from the
Dalian University of Technology (formerly known as A& T 257 ) in the
PRC. He is currently the managing director of Shanghai Fudi Industry
Company Limited and is responsible for monitoring the overall business
operations. Mr. Yin has over 20 years of experience in the corporate
management field. He joined the Group in May 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Hong (“Ms. Zhao”), aged 50, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. She also serves as a chairman of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Board. Ms. Zhao holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Accounting from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
and a Master’'s Degree of Business Administration from the China
Europe International Business School in the PRC. Ms. Zhao obtained
the qualification of Accountant specializing in Accounting (Corporate)
conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in May 1996. She is
currently a non-practicing member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. She is currently a finance director of EBT Digital
Communication Retail Group. Ms. Zhao has extensive experience in
the financial and accounting fields. She joined the Group in April 2016.

Mr. CHAU Wai Hing (“Mr. Chau”), aged 54, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board. Mr. Chau
also appointed as the member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board effective from 29 September 2018. Mr. Chau obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Quantitative Analysis for Business, Postgraduate
Certificate in Professional Accounting and Master Degree in Finance
from the City University of Hong Kong. He also holds a Master Degree
in Professional Accounting from the Southern Cross University in
Australia. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Public Accountants
in Australia, a fellow member of the Institute of Financial Accountants,
a chartered member of the Chartered Institute for Securities and
Investment and a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment
Institute. Mr. Chau resigned as a member of nomination committee
and also resigned as the chairman, executive director, a chairman
of investment committee and authorized representative of Cocoon
Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange) with
effect from 14 December 2018 and 18 February 2019 respectively.
In May 2019, Mr. Chau was appointed as the Independent Non-
Executive Director of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited.
From December 2008 to April 2015, Mr. Chau was the chairman and
an executive director of UBA Investments Limited (listed on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange). Prior to joining UBA Investments Limited,
he possesses over 18 years of experience in banking, finance and
wealth management and held senior positions at several international
financial institutions including Bank of America (Asia) Limited and
Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited. He joined the Group in February
2017.

34

BEREE(BREE]) 595 AAEENITE
o REANTBRAER T A (A8 AETER)
EEIRSELE8 - FEBALEETEEER
RNAIZESR  BELEBRBEREE - RLEHR
EERFEEER20F 2 &5 o H1R2016F5A
IREEAREEE -

BYFHTES

Wt ((#LE]) 508  AAEEBILIEHR
TEE - FHANIESEETEZZES  FWE
BERIBEZEGCEF - M TIHETH LG
KRB @t BB B KA B B T2k
ZIHERBELTEN - N1996F5A8 @ L THE
A BREEE S5 MER - ER g (6
¥) o BEATBEMEMBe cERETE -
WIRE REBTEIEAESE 2 WIEEBE - BT
TRAEFTTEEREEE LR o HR20165F4 AN
BAALHE -

BEELE(AKE]) 545 BAEEBIIF
WITES - BNETEESE [ ERZEQRRES
LZEEGKE - ARENEZXAERSTINEE S
KB - B2018F9H29H B - FL S B
MABTHYSH B LB - BESFEREL
ENSRBELTEA - HINEERMNERTAER
X¥otELT20 - HARMNSIMnEZERY
8 HENHIMAerERT 8 - REETE
S(HEEERe T BHeENEERARRESES Y
g8 - AXEEFEEPERSERER AR (B
REEREM ZIRZREZESGKE THABETE
& HITEE REZEBSTFELEEREK 95
E20185 12 A14H K 2019F2 A18H ALK -
2019958 - At EZTAETERBILERAR
RNAElZ B IFNITES - 20085512 A E20155F
47 - ArErRFARKEESR AR (REBRZAMER
EMZEERATES - MAHBAKREERAF
AT - RIESRTT - SRR EERBHEERIR18
FRBRATFNEER € REEESRBA - £
BREERET(EMNARATREMR(ER)BRA
Al o IHHR2017F2 8 I AREE o



Biographical Details of Directors

EEEE

Mr. YU Lei (“Mr. Yu”), aged 46, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Board
with effect from 28 December 2018. Mr. Yu holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Sun Yat-sen University. He worked as
an executive director, the chief executive officer and the chairman of
the executive committee of Daohe Global Group Limited (listed on the
Main Board of Stock Exchange) from January 2018 to December 2018.
Mr. Yu has over 10 years of management experience. He has been a
director of 3t k& XL {ERERH BR AR (for transliteration purpose
only, Beijing Pai PR Communications Co., Ltd) since January 2016,
the shares of which are quoted on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations in the PRC (stock code: 839457).
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding
company and its subsidiary corporations were principally engaged in (1)
retailing of footwear; (2) financial services business; (3) operations of
convenience store; and (4) e-Commerce and e-Payment business.

An analysis to the Group’s performance for the Year by segment is set
out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of the Company’s and
Group affairs as at 31 March 2020 are set out on pages 54 to 184 of
this annual report.

The Board has recommended not to declare final dividend for the Year
(2019: Nil).
RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 58,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company did not have any reserves available
for distribution as calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2019: Nil).

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make charitable contributions and
other donations (2019: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the
Year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and the
laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Report of Directors
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 185 to 188 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital, share
options and convertible bonds during the Year are set out in Note 35,
38 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP’S BORROWINGS
There is no Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of Board
of Directors of the Company are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (Chairman)
Mr. KANG Jianming

Ms. CAl Jiaying

Mr. YIN Wansun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. ZHAO Hong
Mr. CHAU Wai Hing
Mr. YU Lei

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, not less
than one-third of the Directors for the time being should retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting. Accordingly, Mr.
KANG Jianming and Mr. YIN Wansun, the executive Directors of the
Company and Mr. CHAU Wai Hing, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, will retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM”).
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The Directors’ fees and remuneration is disclosed in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors’ fees are subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meeting. The emoluments of the
Directors are determined by the Company’s board of directors with
reference to their duties, responsibilities, experience and performance,
the Company’s performance, the prevailing market conditions and
after considering the market emoluments for directors of other listed
companies.

Biographical Details of Directors

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
33 to 35 of this annual report.
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Report of Directors
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares
(“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company and/
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors and chief executive were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required to be and are recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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Notes:

1. Mr. ZHU Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhu”) has beneficial interest in 513,300,002
Shares in the Company representing approximately 71.67% of entire
issued share capital of the Company held by China Consume Elderly
Care Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company, wholly
owned by Mr. Zhu.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted or transferred
to such Directors upon the exercise of the options granted to each of
them under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 May
2007.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which the Directors
and chief executive were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section headed “Long
Term Incentive Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable a Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares, or
debentures, of the Company or other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company and its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during
the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she does not have any interest in any business apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.
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LONG TERM INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Share Option Scheme 2007

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 21 May 2007
(“Share Option Scheme 2007”) for the purpose of providing incentives
to eligible participants to contribute to the Company and enabling
the Company to recruit high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme 2007 shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further
options granted under the Share Option Scheme 2007 (“Post-IPO
Share Options”) will be issued but any options then outstanding will
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all Post-IPO Share Options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme 2007 and any other share option scheme of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the Listing Date, being 600,000,000 Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the Post-IPO Share Options and any other share options granted
and to be granted to each eligible person in any 12-month period
immediately preceding the date of grant of the Post-IPO Share Options
(“Grant Date”) shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as
at the Grant Date unless prior approval of the Company’s shareholders
in general meeting is obtained.

The Post-IPO Share Options may be exercised during a period as
notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the Grant
Date and expiring on the last day of the said 10-year period. Unless
otherwise determined by the Board and specified in the letter of grant,
there is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

The subscription price of the Post-IPO Share Options shall be
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of: (a) the
nominal value of the Shares; (b) the average of the closing prices of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the Grant Date; and (c)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the Grant Date.

The Post-IPO Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
41,000,000 Shares were granted on 28 November 2016 at an exercise
price of HK$1.45 per Share. The closing price of the Shares on 28
November 2016 was HK$1.45.
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The Post-IPO Share Options are granted in two tranches of: (A) a total
of 31,000,000 shares of options; and (B) a total of 10,000,000 shares
of options shall vest in the grantees in accordance with the timetable

HRXAREREBRESMLLE L © 251 5A)E
$£31,000,000 % &A% # : X (B)4& 10,000,000 3%
BEE - BRIBEUTREREBE FARA

below:

Tranches Exercisable period Percentage of Options to vest

/N 176 HTERZBREZEIL

A 28 November 2017 — 27 November 2021 Up to 50% of the total number of options granted
2017411 H28H — 2021411 827H TR B B A B 22 50%
28 November 2018 — 27 November 2021 Up to 50% of the total number of options granted
2018511 A28H — 2021511 A27H TR B B R B2 50%

B 28 November 2017 — 27 November 2021 Up to 25% of the total number of options granted

2017411 828H - 2021411 A27H
28 November 2018 — 27 November 2021
2018411 A28H - 2021411 A27H
28 November 2019 — 27 November 2021
2019411 A28H - 2021411 A27H
28 November 2020 — 27 November 2021
2020411 A28H - 2021411 A27H

TERRERBIRIERR 2 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
TERRERBIRERR 2 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
TERRERBIRERR 2 25%
Up to 25% of the total number of options granted
TR RERBIRERR 2 25%

Details of movements of the Post-IPO Share Options during the Year RAFE  BRAHEREEREZZESHFEN
are as follows: I

No. of the Post-IPO Share Options

BERAARERZBRESA

Balance as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Balance as at

1 April during during during during 31 March

2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020

#20195F 20205

Name or category of ARAZ 4R1H REEE REFE REEE REEE 3A31H

grantee &R iR B e 8 K¥ R
Directors s

KANG Jianming FEEH 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000

CAl Jiaying B 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000

YIN Wansun BR3eH 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000

ZHAO Hong i 500,000 - - - - 500,000
Employees 1=

In aggregate B 17,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 14,000,000

Total Foy 35,500,000 - - - 3,000,000 32,500,000

During the Year, none of the Options was granted, exercised or
cancelled and a total of 3,000,000 Post-IPO Share Options have
lapsed during the Year. Accordingly, the outstanding of the Post-IPO
Share Options was 32,500,000 as at 31 March 2020.

RAFE @ SIEBREERT - 1TEE - mé
#£3,000,000f% B X A EREBERECNAFTE
MR - FHItE - 72202043 A 31 B 134 32,500,000
R E R AR EREEREMARITE
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Share Option Scheme 2017

The Share Option Scheme 2007 was terminated and a new share
option scheme was approved by the shareholders at the general
meeting held on 13 January 2017. The new share option scheme was
adopted by the Company on the even date (“Share Option Scheme
2017”).

The Share Option Scheme 2017 shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from its adoption date, after which period no further
options granted or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2017
will be issued but any options then outstanding will continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme 2017
and any other option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of the Shares in issue as at the date
of the approval of the Share Option Scheme 2017, being 646,190,000
Shares.

The total number of the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options and any other share options granted and to be granted to
each eligible person in any 12-month period immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options (“Grant Date”) shall not exceed 1% of the
number of Shares in issue as at the Grant Date unless prior approval
of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting is obtained.

The options may be exercised during the option period determined
and notified by the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the Grand
Date but subject to the provisions for early termination of the Share
Option Scheme 2017. Unless otherwise determined by the Board and
specified in the letter of grant, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
2017 shall be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in
any event will not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Grant Date; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the Grant Date; and (c) the nominal value of the Share on the Grant
Date.

During the Year, no share options were granted by the Company
and there were no outstanding share options under the Share Option
Scheme 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company), had the following interests and short positions in the Shares
and underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

FTERRRROREBARG 2BERAR

M2020F3H31H * IEFEAA - HIRBEES R
HREEPIEXVIBE2 R B3N EPAMA LD R HEE -
HARIE B S N EIEHIEXVIEI6IEETHFEE L
TRtk UM AL (EFARFESEIES
TTBRAB)RARRRMD RABERGD s RAR
I

Approximate %
Number and of the Company’s

nature of total issued
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity interests held share capital
Frisfs AR T BT
FTERFEERE 54 HERME BREABEIHBEN%
China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited (Note)  Beneficial owner 513,300,002 71.67%

hEEBEEEBRER AR (M) EEEEA

Note:

China Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, the registered owner of
513,300,002 Shares, was owned as to 100% (1 share) by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun,
an executive Director of the Company, in the capacity of beneficial owners
respectively.

All the interests disclosed above represents long positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2020, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, all suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. Our Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30%
of the total purchases for the year.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 22.9%
of the Group’s total turnover and the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 44.7% of the Group’s total turnover for the
Year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers or suppliers noted
above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Year, the Company had the transactions constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of which are set out in section
headed “Major and Connected Transaction” under Management
Discussion and Analysis on page 9 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 23 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE COMPANY’S
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2020

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor’s report contained
on pages 50-53 of this report, the Auditors of the Company (the
“Auditors”) did not express an audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 as
a result of certain matters.

The Company has provided the Auditors access to all information
of which is relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, such as records, documentations and other matters. The
Company has granted access to the Auditors to obtain the necessary
audit evidence, and provided discussions and answers to the queries
set by the Auditors.

The Board’s Response to the Disclaimer Opinion
1.  Opening balances and corresponding figures

The audit of the opening balances were conducted by the
predecessor auditors who gave disclaimer audit opinion thereon.

The Auditors have requested for various documentary evidences
to substantiate that (a) the audit qualifications made by the
predecessor auditor can be satisfactorily resolved and (b) no
adjustments are required to be made to the opening balances
and corresponding figures. The Auditors are unable to carry out
audit procedures on the opening balances as to whether the 2019
Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its
consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended.

The Company is of the view that the audit qualification shall only
affect the opening balances and corresponding figures of the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 and such audit
qualification shall have no effect to the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2021 and the
consolidated financial performance and the consolidated cash
flows of the Group for the year ending 31 March 2021.

From the Company’s point of view, this audit qualification will no
longer be carried forward to accounting periods subsequent to
the year ending 31 March 2021. As such, that audit qualification
will have no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the years subsequent to 31 March 2021. The Audit
Committee concurred with the views of the management.
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Going concern

The current liabilities of the Group at 31 March 2020 exceed
the Group’s current assets at that date by approximately
HK$649,601,000 and the Group incurred net loss of
approximately HK$295,458,000 for the year ended 31 March
2020. The Auditors are unable to form an opinion as to whether
it is appropriate for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statement on a going concern basis as the Auditors are unable
to obtain adequate and appropriate documentary evidences to
satisfy themselves in this respect.

The Auditors have requested for documentary evidence to
substantiate that the Group is able to obtain additional funds to
meet its financial obligations. The Company has implemented
various measures to address the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The Company is currently in negotiation with the
bondholders proposing the suggestion of issuing new shares to
settle outstanding debts. In addition, the Company will continue to
explore further funding sources by continuing to approach banks,
financial institutions and potential investors to raise additional
capital by way of long term debt or equity fund-raising to reinforce
the Company’s financial position. The Audit Committee concurred
with the views of the management.

Recoverability of loans receivable

The Auditors stated that they were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the loans receivable of
approximately HK$148,312,000 as at 31 March 2020.

The Auditors have requested for documentary evidence to
substantiate that the borrowers are able to settle the outstanding
loans.

The management is of the view that the borrowers under the loan
agreements are capable to repay the outstanding amounts in full
based on (i) the continuing repayments made by the borrowers
of interests on loans receivable and (ii) due diligence on the
borrowers previously performed by the Group.

In order to resolve the material uncertainties surrounding the
loans receivable, the Company continued to communicate with
the borrowers regarding the settlement of outstanding loans. The
Audit Committee concurred with the views of the management.

Interest payable on convertible bond and corporate bond

The Auditors stated that they were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to substantiate that the interests
payable on convertible bond and corporate bond are appropriately
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

R
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The Auditors have requested for documentary evidence for the
satisfactory explanations of the difference between the amount
of interests payable in the audit confirmations signed by the
bondholders and the amounts of such interests calculated based
on the terms of the relevant agreements and correspondences.

The management is of the view that the interests payable amount
is accrued according to the figures in the confirmation signed by
the bondholders. The Company will continue to communicate
with the bondholders to obtain the audit evidence as requested
by the Auditors. The Audit Committee concurred with the views of
management.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the
benefits of any of the directors of the Company (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the environmental
and social sustainable development of the regions where it operates.
The Group takes into account of environmental protection issues in
developing and designing the new products. It uses materials which
have passed relevant physical and safety tests and complied with the
environmental laws and regulations. The Group concerns about the
responsibilities of its suppliers on environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan (“Regions”) as well as the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in such
Regions. During the year ended 31 March 2020, as far as the Board
and management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.

48

SEENE ZREHRFER - AESRHE
AERENEZERETOEMN S EE
REBRBZIGRIREFTENBRENES
BB ERIRHER AR -

EEERR  BUNESBIREESFE
AERENERETNHFHESL - A2
AHEERES A AR AR - LEUSZ
BENFTE RN BILRE - EREZBE@RAE
BENER -

RARNBIERE

REARRESZAHERMEBEESMA - AR
FERRAFRTE R 2 KEATEREFTIORE
BEITIRN25% 2 RIANBRITHTIE

BEFFNRERX

RAFREREEAREALBEEAREEAH  BE
IR B M AN R A HARE A R 2 (HAIE S5
(TEA AR B RAE AT AMEL ) 2 B BEEFTD
FEIRS -

BREBERERR

AEBBNERRGREEMER CRERTE
RHERR - AREERRE MR ERREEE
RRAE KRB BHERMERZZAAZY
B WESTRBDARMER - ARERTEMER
HIRREEZEE -

BrEERER
REEZEBHARBETR - BEREE(ZE
HE|) B AGMTT  MARBARERATE
e AEEZ ¥R ABTZEE 2 HARE
NSER o REIE202063A31H IHFE » fiEEE
MERERTAE @ AEBIWESEKXERFTETE
A EEEEREBEEATEZEAERERE
3R o



Report of Directors

EEEREE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business are set out in Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 5 to 11 of this report.

AUDITOR

The Company has changed its auditors, and has appointed CCTH
CPA Limited as the new auditor of the Group to fill the vacancy upon
passing the resolutions at the extraordinary general meeting on 12
June 2020.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020 have been audited by CCTH CPA Limited who will hold office

until the conclusion of the next AGM.

On behalf of the Board

ZHU Xiaojun
Chairman

Hong Kong
16 July 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEHEBIRAE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VESTATE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
TERER

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Vestate Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 184,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
THRERNER
(a) Opening balances and corresponding figures

As detailed in the auditor’s report dated 28 June 2019 on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (the “2019 Financial Statements”), the
predecessor auditor disclaimed their opinion on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019.

Accordingly, we are unable to carry out audit procedures on the
opening balances as to whether the 2019 Financial Statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
In addition, we are also unable to form an opinion as to whether
the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 March
2019 presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
are appropriately carried forward and recognised as the opening
balances of the Group’s respective assets and liabilities as at 1
April 2019.

50

HEREEZERERQITRR

(RESEEZMK L R F])

EECEREERZTIENE4Z 184 H B £ FiE
BERAR(EATA D ERENBRAR(GRAEIEE
B ) WiRe MiEmE - B BENR202063H31H
NGB REEZZA ILFENGABEN
EmrElER  SGAESEHRNGEESRE
x URGAPTEHRENTE - RiEEZeHBRE

= o

BEA TGV BRRERER - AREFHSE
PABRRBENER A FREZERNE  BF
REEE SR REENEREE R EREMHERER
ZEZBRIREER Ay SLATAEAL D E
ME @ HFERERRERBETE QRGN Z HER
EXE RS

(a) FEBRREEHF

P HHI A201946 528 H M Z HAH R &
N Y SEEFHE2019F3A31BIFEE
A M EHRE (2019 B IB|E ) 25
o ATEZEE T EEEHZ2019F3
A31B I FEMGEMBIRRERER -

EERAI AR FOEBRETEZER U
FE2019F W EMERECEETERA TR
B EEEMN2019F3A31 HHGE MR
Mo UREBEZH I FENGATBERR
NIBERE o b - HREA T AR K AT
27 EEEMN2019F3A31BNGEAEE
MEERACEEAEANBNERE &
E£ER2019F4 A1 HABEERBENFE
iEsh - BEIRELERER -



Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

FTRRERNERE)
(b) Going concern

(c)

As disclosed in Note 4.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the current liabilities of the Group at 31 March
2020 exceed the Group’s current assets at that date by
approximately HK$649,601,000 and the Group incurred net loss
of approximately HK$295,458,000 and HK$257,386,000 for the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the
directors of the Company on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the results of the successful implementation
and outcome of the measures to be undertaken by the Group.
In view of the extent of the material uncertainties relating to the
results of those measures (detailed in note 4.1) to be undertaken
by the Group which might cast a significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, we are unable to form an
opinion as to whether it is appropriate for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statement on a going concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated financial
statements to write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Recoverability of loans receivable

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had loans receivable with the
carrying amount of approximately HK$148,312,000, details
of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of the loans receivable
and whether impairment losses are required to be made against
these receivables.

Any adjustments that might have been found necessary might
have an effect on the Group’s net liabilities as at 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows
of the Group for the respective years then ended, and the related
disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

(b)

(c)
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)
TRRERNERE)
(d) Interests payable on convertible bond and corporate bond

Included in accruals and other payables at 31 March 2020
are default interests payable on a convertible bond and a
corporate bond amounted to approximately HK$31,825,000 and
HK$140,940,000 respectively, as referred to in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to substantiate that the default interests payable on convertible
bond and corporate bond are appropriately recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. Any adjustments, if any, to
be made against the default interests payable on convertible
bond and corporate bond might have an effect on the Group’s
net liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 and its
consolidated financial performance for the respective years then
ended and the related disclosures thereof in the consolidated
financial statements.

OTHER MATTERS
Hth=H

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019 were audited by another auditor who expressed
disclaimer of opinion to those consolidated financial statements on 28
June 2019.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

EERERBRASMBRRARENER

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REBMBBRARS U BBRARENER

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s
report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 16 July 2020

Lee Chi Hang
Practising Certificate Number: P01957

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2,
Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

EENELITERALSGTNASRMNEELH
FH([EBEBER DY ERENGESVHERER
WITER TEUBRRZBERE - A > ARES
BERTEXRBANERBHMAEE - TFREE
RSRBEENELER - ERRZFHRA VTR
RERECEANKE - BEETERARENAR
AEMEMALE ERAREAEE -

REEEGHMAGNEXGFEER TR T
Bl E58 EEEERBEY - EFITRETR
BITHEMEERE

FIEXRESEERAT
HEDFE
F7& - 202057 A16H

=HEE
HEFEHRET - P01957

BB

B E 5158
EESZH D

2/ 15121510-1517%

53
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Consolidated Income Statement

mellak
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Bl 2202093431 H IFFZF
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Btat FET FET
(restated)
(ge&E5)
Revenue Weas 7 40,980 112,067
Cost of sales SHEMA 9 (6,301) (70,444)
Service costs B AR 9 (7,711) (723)
Gross profit EX 26,968 40,900
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHR AR 9 (17,674) (115,329)
Administrative expenses T E A 9 (37,190) (84,916)
Other gains or losses i as sk EiE 10 (88,647) (33,676)
Other income EUgA 11 1,980 3,375
Operatingloss .1 mEER (114,563) | (189,646)
Finance income AT U 13 4 12,495
Finance costs B & A 13 (198,484) (77,508)
Finance costs, net WEER - F58 13 (198,480) (65,013)
Share of losses of associates ity /NIl g =| (1,417) (2,727)
Loss before income tax RETFrBHAIESE (314,460) (257,386)
Income tax credit FriSEiE R 14 19,002 -
Loss for the year EKEEBE (295,458) (257,386)
Loss for the year attributable to: EhAEEEE
Equity holders of the Company RARESFAA (290,990) (256,597)
Non-controlling interests FEIER AR (4,468) (789)
(295,458) (257,386)
2020 2019
HK cents HK cents
B VBN
(restated)
€ c==xl))
Loss per share attributable to equity AABERFEAEG
holders of the Company BREE 15
— Basic —HK (40.63) (85.83)
— Diluted —#E (40.63) (35.83)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZTERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
Bl F20209F3H31 H IFF/E

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T
(restated)
(ge=E=51)
Loss for the year rEEFIE (295,458) (257,386)
Other comprehensive loss Hib2mEE
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified HignssmoEzsigsrEe
to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation BREBINEBEECEREE
of foreign operations (2,380) (8,498)
Reclassification adjustment relating to foreign HEHERINEBEEC B
operations disposed of R 466 -
Other comprehensive loss fortheyear =~ #*#EHM2ESR = (914 (8,498)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEXHEREE (297,372) (265,884)
Total comprehensive loss for the year MT5IEEEEREE
attributable to: 2 HEEARE .
Equity holders of the Company RATEEFEA (293,149) (265,324)
Non-controlling interests FEFER A (4,223) (560)
(297,372) (265,884)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BB ZEREVBRE 2 5%

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Y N
e MR R &R
As at 31 March 2020
R2020F3/31H
At 31 March At 31 March At 1 April
2020 2019 2018
120204 720194 20184
3A31H 3A31H 4818
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
et FET FET FAET
(restated) (restated)
(&&&=75)) (&&=751)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 17 739 3,389 7,958
Right-of-use assets CREEE 18 6,216 - -
Goodwill EES 19 - - -
Other intangible assets HipER S E 20 126,652 373 804
Interest in a joint venture R—HEAERE 2 21 - 510 510
Interests in associates NI 22 11,009 12,962 6,530
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESHEE = - 6,248
Deposits and prepayments B RIBNFIE 25 276 1,155 11,363
144,892 18,389 33,413
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 23 - 2,509 97,010
Trade receivables fEME 5308 24 1,568 4,390 38,323
Deposits, prepayments and e BENFER
other receivables Hth JEUIR 25 114,083 114,612 136,014
Loans receivable W ER 26 148,312 135,846 130,873
Amounts due from associates /NI O] 22 6,797 6,469 3,662
Cash and cash equivalents ReKREEEER 27 5,051 1,763 53,514
275,811 265,589 459,396
Assets classified as held for sale PHEAFBEELEZ
BE 28 - 245,111 241,830
275,811 510,700 701,226
Current liabilities RBas
Trade payables e 8 5708 29 52,999 62,872 102,737
Accruals and other payables e B R R H e
QL] 29 273,386 54,242 36,577
Borrowings LN - - 5,130
Obligations under finance lease BEHEAE 30 - 97 97
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 187,706 141,522 17,550
Corporate bond payable FER AR EH 32 405,000 400,323 -
Amounts due to associates JE B A BIFUR 33 2,187 2,445 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 34 3,124 - -
Income tax payable FERETEH 1,010 1,006 1,077
925,412 662,507 163,168
Liabilities directly associated with HOBARBIEHE Y
assets classified as assets held for BEERIEBZE8E
sale 28 - 66,477 52,408
925,412 728,984 215,576
Net current (liabilities)/assets hE(AE) EEFE (649,601) (218,284) 485,650
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBEE (504,709) (199,895) 519,063
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= A 3
e BN &R
As at 31 March 2020
202043/ 31H
At 31 March At 31 March At 1 April
2020 2019 2018
20205 A20194F 720184
3A31H 3A31H 471H
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
o FET FET FET
(restated) (restated)
(F=E5)) (g =5))
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligations under finance lease BMERERE 30 - 32 129
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 = 28,360 137,053
Corporate bond payable ERARIES 32 - - 344,678
Lease liabilities HE&RE 34 3,205 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIARE 37 17,071 - -
(20,276) (28,392) (481,860)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfF) EEFE (524,985) (228,287) 37,203
Equity B
Share capital [N 35 71,619 71,619 71,619
Share premium B mE 35 673,503 673,503 673,503
Reserves L (1,266,957) (972,082) (707,152)
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE NEEER
the Company (521,835) (226,960) 37,970
Non-controlling interests RS (3,150) (1,327) (767)
Total equity 5T L (524,985) (228,287) 37,203
The consolidated financial statement on pages 54 to 184 were FH54FE184 A 2 iR B M MR KL EFT G N 2020F7

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 July

2020 and were signed on its behalf by:

Zhu Xiaojun
KERE
Director

EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Kang Jianming

BRI LT

RS
Director

EZE

A16 B HLEMIRETE - W TIESHAREE

RAEMBmERZ 8D
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o ARE 3L
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Bl 2202093431 H IFFZF
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RAREREE AL
Non-
Share Share Other Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserves losses  Sub-total interests Total
hx  RGHEE  EtRE  RHEB Nt OFERESR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET AT FET FET
(Note 35)  (Note 36)
(Witss)  (Witss)
Balance at 31 March 2018 R201853B31 Az ER 71,619 673,503 120,451 (827,603) 37,970 (767) 37,203
Adjustment on initial application HEREREAMBREER
of HKFRS 9 FORMIEL 258 - - - (2,368) (2,368) - (2,368)
Balance at 1 April 2018 20184710 2 &4 71,619 673,503 120,451 (829,97) 35,602 (767) 34,835
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - (256597)  (256,597) (789)  (257,386)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hth2E(BE) a
Exchange differences arising on translation BERNERESRY
of foreign operations EXER - - (8,727) - (8,727) 229 (8.498)
Toalcomprehensiveloss  :EERR® T T ren  (sesor) | eeskd) o (60)  (266884)
Share option scheme - value of employee BilhErE - EERBER
senvices (Note 38) (Hi38) - - 2762 - 2,762 - 2,762
Balance at 31 March 2019 H201953 831 24 71619 673503 114486  (1086568)  (206960)  (1327)  (228.287)
Balance at 1 April 2019 Ho0195451A 2% TI619 673503 114486  (1086568)  (226960)  (1,327)  (228,.267)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (290,990) (290,990 (4,468)  (295,458)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income 2@ (BR) M
Exchange differences arising on translation BERNEREEL
of foreign operations ERZEE - - (2,625) - (2,625) 245 (2,380)
Exchange reserve realised on disposal of foreign R H &8N BARIZEER
subsidiaries (Note 45) Feta(hstas) - - 466 - 466 - 466
Toalcomprehensiveloss  :EEERE S ST )
Adjustment to non-controlling interest from MEMEARREES L,
disposal of interest in subsidiaries FERER A - - - - - 2,400 2,400
Share option scheme - value of employee BiRE 2 - EERBER
services (Note 38) (Hi38) - - (1,726) - (1,726) - (1,726)
Balance at 31 March 2020 2020535318 248 TI619 673503 110601 (1377558)  (521835)  (3150) (524,985

The accompanying notes form

financial statements.
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RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
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Bl 2202093431 H IFFZF
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(restated)
€ =2l)
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZRERE
Loss before income tax RETFTISTLRTEE (314,460) (257,386)
Adjustments for: BB SIEEL AR -
— Depreciation of property, plant and —W%  BERREITE
equipment 1,215 4,364
— Impairment of property, plant and —W% - BB REERE
equipment = 157
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(ERREECIE 4,349 -
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EE 7,090 10,059
— Impairment loss on loans receivable —ERE R REEE 719 1,952
— Reversal of impairment loss on other — B [0 B Ath fE W R IR (BB 18
receivables (171) -
— Inventory written off —FEEE - 23,976
— Impairment loss on trade receivables — BN E G IR R EEE 1,744 7,558
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —MEWE  BERREEZ
equipment E518 1,659 278
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries —HEMBARZEE (W) 1,499 (512)
— Gain on disposal of leases —HEHEZ W& (40) -
— Loss on disposal of other intangible assets — & EFEE 2 BB 279 -
— Impairment loss on other intangible assets ~ —H Mt EFE ERERE 59,511 -
— Impairment loss on goodwill —EEREER 20,455 -
— Finance income — I A (4) (12,495)
— Finance costs — BATE R AN 198,484 77,508
— Share option expenses (reversed)/ —(BE),HERER R
recognised (794) 2,574
— Share of losses of associates g AN ) = 1,417 2,727
Operating cash flows before movements in LBESRYFI KER S
working capital e (17,048) (139,240)
Decrease in inventories FERL 1,344 64,845
Decrease in trade receivables EUE 53k IE 547 23,819
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and % - B FIERHARELY
other receivables TR 16,378 18,045
Increase in loans receivable FEURE R N (18,129) (576)
Increase in amounts due from associates JiE U B 8 N B SIS N (648) (364)
Decrease in amounts due to associates FEASTEE & R —J/T B (1,190) (1,288)
Decrease in trade payables FERE SFIBR D (5,994) (33,884)
Increase in accruals and other payables JEETE F N E b e~ R IEKE 34,088 19,497
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KRR (TR ZES 9,348 (49,146)
Tax paid EAIHIIE (10) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating BEBR/ (TR 2R FE
activities 9,338 (49,146)



Vestate Group Holdings Limited EiREEIZERER AT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fa =) Iﬁ%/)lb%%

For the year ended 31 March 2020
Bl 2202093431 H IFFZF

2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Btat FET FET
(restated)
(gg=5))
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHZRERE
Purchase of intangible assets BAEBPEE (156) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  BE A% - BiE & &fE 17 (643) (622)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - BEREEZ
plant and equipment FriSE8 533 148
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale ~ H&R &
financial assets SREEMSHRIE - 6,248
Cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HERBA Tzfﬁﬁfumﬁ 45(a) (92) (904)
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in HEMHB AR D ERMAR
subsidiaries without loss of control KEVEHIHE 2 TS FR1E 2,400 -
Net cash generated from investing activities & EEATE 2 IR & /F5E 2,042 4,870
Cash flows from financing activities REIHZHERE
Repayment of borrowings EEEE 41 - (5,130)
Repayment of interest on convertible bonds (&% AJ A% (&% 2 I & 41 (1,797) (6,556)
Repayment of interest on corporate bond BEEMNARESFZHE
payable 41 (1,000) -
Repayment of interest on obligations under HIEREMEERAER S
finance lease (13) (11)
Repayment of interest on bank borrowings BERITERNE - (17)
Capital elements of finance lease payments  REEHENF Z§$*B 41 - (97)
Payment of lease liabilities HEBENK 41 (4,734) -
Net cash used in financing activities BE R RS FE (7,544) (11,811)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash HE&RBESZEBEE®M, (D)
equivalents R 3,836 (56,087)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  F#2IR& KRG EEIAEE
of the year 1,763 53,514
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes R B E) > = (548) 4,336
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRZASRALEEER
of the year 27 5,051 1,763
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BERIPIRE DB 2 S A SRk e — 5D

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

GENERAL INFORMATION

—RER

Vestate Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in

the retailing of footwear, financial services business, operation of
convenience stores and e-Commerce and e-Payment business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
10 November 2006 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. The
headquarter and principal place of business in Hong Kong is
located in Unit E, 22/F, Tower A, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is China
Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in the Republic of Seychelles. The directors consider that the
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr. Zhu Xiaojun,
an executive director of the Company.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

B EEZERERAB([EAR]) RENE
AR (HE AR T ENFERTE £
BRBES BHNEL2EREFRABRET
ST RS ©

RRARREBER=HE R RIE(1961F 5358
ERFE22E - KEA RIER]) 2006511 A
10BRFAESHSHMKLAERREERA
A HiE M SR e A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands °
BEENBRHRTELEEMB AR NENEE
BB REBE R OAREMEEE ©

ARAER(EEDRA - ARANEER
REER AT R EE B AMB MK
MARIPEIHEREZERER AR - EFR
B ARRNRRENT RARRTRITES

ARARBETBBA X SHERAT (B
) L7 -

ZEGEMBEMRTIABT([BR]) REM
25 WERARBNDEEERER -
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

RMBERMBHREERN ([ FEMBHRELER D)

2.1

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Leases
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendmentsto  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
HKFRS 9

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
HKAS 19

Amendmentsto  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
HKAS 28

Amendment to Annual Improvements 2015-2017 cycle
HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
(“HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contract that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has
not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the
date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April
2019, the Group applied the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

2.1

AES B AR AN 2 5] R RIS RT 2 R
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EEUBMEEZBITA 201552201748
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BB BHREERFI65 HE /([ F
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2  APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

RMBERMBHREEN(FBMBHEREER ] (E)

2.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2019. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening accumulated losses
and comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the practical
expedients of elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends within
twelve months of the date of initial application to leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

(i)  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application;

(iii) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties in the PRC/Hong Kong was determined on
a portfolio basis; and

(iv) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied is 5.375% per annum.

2.1
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BB BHREERE165HE /([ &
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

RMBERMBHREEN(FBMBHEREER ] (E)

2.1 New and amended standards adopted by the Group 2.1

(Continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

On transition, the Group has made the following
adjustments upon application of HKFRS 16:

PR BFTERAN 2 TR R AAERT 2R (48)

BB BHREERE165HE /([ &
B BHEERE168 ) (E)

TERATN ()
PRIEER - AEBERERE BN M
HERIE16SRRIEHIA THHE

HK$’000
FET
Operating lease commitment as at 31 March 2019 201943 A31H 2 & & E &I 15,752
Lease liabilities discounted at incremental RIS B REFS.375%ITIRNEEEE
borrowing rates of 5.375% per annum 15,189
Add: Transfer from obligations under finance lease /il : ## Q& ERIE 129
Less: Short term leases not recognised as a liability 78 : WEHRABEZEPHEE (7,004)
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 MR2019F4A1E ZTHEAE 8,314
Analysed as: V=%
Current R 3,935
Non-current IERE 4,379
8,314

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 April
2019 comprises the following:

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases recognised
upon application of HKFRS 16:

R2019F 418 - FREEEZRER
ERFELNTEE

REREEW B RE ERF1657 1R HE
REEMNEERERREEE

HK$’000
T
Right-of-use assets at 1 April 2019 recognised 1R201954 A1 B 8 X ERE BB mEER
upon initial application of HKFRS 16 F1REER 2 FRAREE 8,185
Analysed as: DA
Leased properties MEWZE 8,185
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
MR BMEREREN(ERMBRELEN ] ()

2.1

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

21 FEBEFRRAZHETREBTER(E)

BB EERE16HE /([ F
BRI EERE165 ) ()

TEREATN ()
R2019F4 A1H 2 A B R R A
R SHECEHIATAZ - BEZ7

position at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected by TREETEZIFE ©
the changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously Impact of under HKFRS
reported at adopting 16 at 1 April
31 March 2019 HKFRS 16 2019
20195
4818 1RE
KRINR2019F  BRMBEBHE SEBUBRE
3A31HER HEER ZRIZE1655%
ZIREE F16R2EE ZBREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TFiET T
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 8,185 8,185
Obligations under finance lease ~ BIEFAEHKIE 129 (129) -
Lease liabilities — current HEBE-RY - 3,935 3,935
Lease liabilities — non-current HEBE-FRH - 4,379 4,379

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under the indirect method for the year ended 31
March 2020, movements in working capital have been
computed based on the opening balances as at 1 April
2019 recorded in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as disclosed above.

PIRIE R AR S # £2020F3 A31H
IHFEREEE RS REREMS
BEESERHDRE LENAEAER Y

AN
Ii\va:l

ZHAEERRETE

AR R 28R 2019F4 A1 H
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

RMBERMBHREEN(FBMBHEREER ] (E)

2.2 New and amended standards have been issued but are
not effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 and an Investor and its Associate or
HKAS 28 Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not
effective will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

22 CEMEMRERBYERELAEERRE

BRANZ TR RS FT A

REERAEFERA TS EMERR
AR R] BB M S SR R EAERT
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BEMBREEFINR FHER
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RESTATEMENTS OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
hEER 2B

(a)

Prior period adjustments
Deposit paid

In February 2017, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in China Consume Financial Holdings Company Limited
(“China Consume”) through a 100% owned subsidiary for
a total consideration of HK$178,700,000, which consist of a
cash consideration of HK$83,500,000 and issue of shares
of the Company with fair value of HK$95,200,000 as at 8
February 2017 and obtained control of China Consume,
China Consume is principally engaged in e-Commerce and
e-Payment business.

A sum of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,698,000)
had been paid by the pre-acquisition shareholder of China
Consume for risk reserve deposit on behalf of China
Consume, and this sum of US$2,000,000 (HK$15,698,000)
owed by China Consume to the pre-acquisition shareholder
had been waived upon completion of the acquisition. Such
payment of HK$15,698,000 made by and thereafter waived
by the pre-acquisition shareholder were not previously
recorded and accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 31 March 2019. Prior period adjustments have
been made in this respect in the consolidated financial
statements of the current year which resulted in the
increase in deposits and prepayments at 31 March 2020
by HK$15,698,000 and the decrease in goodwill as at
that date (non-current assets) by the same amount. The
following adjustments have been made for the prior years’
comparative information of the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position. Line items are not affected
by the changes have not been included.

(a)

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

BEMERR
EXME&E

R2017F28 - XEBEERE2EH
B2 M B AR A4MKE178,700,0007%8
JC (B #EIR £ K 1283,500,00078 7T & i
201752 A8HBITARBERND 2 A F
695,200,000/ 70) L EEH B H B ¢ Bb
TRAERAB([HPEEE]) 223
o WESHBIEE 2 R o P EDH
BIENEETEEMNETIER -

FEDEENRERIRRERERTBEE
Y HEEBIE S A ££2,000,0003 7T (#8
%£1215,698,00078 ) * MZEFEE
B 45 R B AT IR A9 A& ££2,000,0003%
TT(FA5 515,698,000/ 7T ) B R U iE =
B IEE G - WEERTAR SR AT R A E
B E R /A8 15,698,000/8 T I
R ATRCEE MAT AR EEE £2018
F3A31H8 KX20194F3 531 H [ & {E4F
BZEEMHERE - NEEZERAMH
MERDHUEL B EIR R BHR
202093 A31 A MRS KT FUBEHE N
15,698,000/ 7T A M 752 B g 2 (3F
mEEE)MERSERD - T AE
MAEBGATERAROBAEFEL
EERMERNTE - WEHFARTEH
HEFLEMNIER -
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RESTATEMENTS OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

(Continued)
LB ER 2 E5I(E)
(a) Prior period adjustments (Continued) (a) BEHBERAEE)
Deposit paid (Continued) EXfEE(E)
31 March 2019 1 April 2018
2019%3A31H 20185F4A1H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Current Assets RENEE
Assets classified as held for sale NERFBIELHEZEE
As previously reported N5 B IR 245,111 241,830
Prior period adjustments BT B AR
— Decrease in goodwill attributable to — P EDEE BB R
acquisition of China Consume (15,698) (15,698)
— Increase in prepayments and deposits on  — <R R R & A BFE
payment for risk reserve deposit FRIE R IRSIE NN 15,698 15,698
As restated K& 245,111 241,830

(b)

The prior period adjustments have had no impact on the
Group’s consolidated profit or loss for each of the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Change of discontinued operations

During the current year, the Group reactivated its
e-Commerce and e-Payment business, which was
discontinued by the Group in the past years. Accordingly,
the income and expenses of this business segment,
which were previously accounted for under the item of
discontinued operations presented in the consolidated
income statement, are reclassified and included in the
appropriate items of income and expenses presented in
the consolidated income statement for the current year.
Comparative information for the year ended 31 March
2019 has been restated to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

(b)

B A AR Y AR EEH £2020F3 A
310 k20193 A31 A I & AEE 4

AAE S f S48
SERWESE -

ERIEEEXRBEH

RAFEE » AEBEHMEELETFEH
REFXNER AKERBEFEYR
RIMEEBRET - Bt - ZFBO B
FIWARFX (e e Wk 27
MR IEEEEBAR TAR)ERA
FEBHMDEMTARGAKERZS
HEEBARFASIAER - 81220195
SABMBEILFEMLEBEHREES - A
NEaARFENZT -
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3 RESTATEMENTS OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

(Continued)

LEBER 2 ESI(E)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT smANER

The effects on the items presented in the consolidated BAHMAREE R IR EERTESEES
income statement for the prior year ended 31 March 2019 and 20193 A31H I BEFEFEMNGEAKSZER
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 Ro019E3 31 H &2018F4 A1 B M4 & 8f
and 1 April 2018 arising from the prior period adjustments and BARNKRTE27BEEANTER AT -
change of discontinued operations are summarised below. Line TS ENBE REBIEEN °

items not affected by the changes are not included.

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BZ2019F3A3HILFE
Change of
As Prior period discontinued
previously adjustments  operations
reported (Note 3(a)) (Note 3(b)) As restated

BAIE
BEHE R
MR AR 25
B (Hi#3a)  (BEE3b) =E5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FAET
Revenue Yoz 110,349 - 1,718 112,067
Cost of sales SHE R (70,444) - - (70,444)
Service costs R A5 A A - = (723) (723)
Gross profit EA ) 39,905 - 995 40,900
Selling and distribution costs $HE R SER AR (115,329) - - (115,329)
Administrative expenses THRER (73,048) - (11,868) (84,916)
Other gains or losses Hfb Wk sl B8 (33,676) - - (33,676)
Other income H A 3,375 - - 3,375
Operating loss REER (178,773) - (10,873) (189,646)
Finance income B 12,495 - - 12,495
Finance costs HBER (77,508) - - (77,508)
Finance costs, net NIBER - T (65,013) - - (65,013)
Share of losses of associates ey N o = (2,300) - (427) (2,727)
Loss before income tax RETFTBHAIEE (246,086) - (11,300) (257,386)
Income tax credit FriSTiE e - - - -
Loss for the year from BERSEEK
continuing operations rEEER (246,086) - (11,300) (257,386)
Loss for the year from CHRIEREEK 2
discontinued operations REEEE (11,300) - 11,300 -
Loss for the year TEERR (257,386) - - (257,386)
There were no effects on the Group’s loss per share attributable BEHRARE R DR HEEXBES B EY
to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31 March #HE2019F38 A1 H IEFEANRIRERHA
2019 arising from the prior period adjustments and change of ANEBIEREEBREBEXNTE -

discontinued operations.

69



Vestate Group Holdings Limited EiREEIZERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

3 RESTATEMENTS OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

(Continued)
LBERZEFI(E)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIRR T

As at 31 March 2019

R201953A31H
Change of
As Prior period discontinued
previously adjustments  operations
reported (Note 3(a)) (Note 3(b)) As restated
21k
BIELR K
WMo H AR BE
SR (KfEF3(a)  (KE3(b) KE5|
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Assets classified as held for sale PEAEBEEFELHEZEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE RiEE 276 - - 276
Intangible assets B EE 229,173 (15,698) - 213,475
Interest in an associate R—EBER 174 - - 174
Deposits, prepayments and other He  BAFEREM
receivables FEMRIA - 15,698 - 15,698
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIReFEER 15,488 - - 15,488
Assets classified as held for sale SREMBRREZHIZS
presented in consolidated statement PEABEEHE
of financial position ZEE 245,111 - - 245,111
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(Continued)
LBERZEFI(E)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

RESTATEMENTS OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

FERBRRRE)

As at 1 April 2018

14201854418
Change of
As  Prior period  discontinued
previously  adjustments operations
reported (Note 3(a)) (Note 3(b))  As restated
BIE
B HARE IR
papodn| A 23
513 (Ki7#3(a)) (B13#3(b)) KE|
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Assets classified as held for sale PEAEBEEFELHEZEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER NG 506 - - 506
Intangible assets B EE 239,070 (15,698) - 223,372
Interest in an associate SN £ 645 - - 645
Deposits, prepayments and other e BAFEREME
receivables WsRoa 865 15,698 - 16,563
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEERE 744 - - 744
Assets classified as held for sale SREMBRREZATZS
presented in consolidated statement PEABEEHE
of financial position EE 241,830 - - 241,830
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BASIS OF PREPARATION
EaE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets which are
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

4.1 Going concern basis

Notwithstanding that the current liabilities of the Group at 31
March 2020 exceed the Group’s current assets at that date
by HK$649,601,000, which includes the convertible bonds
and corporate bond payable amounted to HK$187,706,000
and HK$405,000,000 respectively, and the Group
incurred net loss of approximately HK$295,458,000 and
HK$257,386,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2019 respectively, the Directors considered it
appropriate for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis after taking into
account of the following circumstances and measures to be
implemented:

(@ On 23 June 2020, an independent third party
granted a stand-by revolving loan facilities of up to
RMB200,000,000 to the Group, which is available
to draw down on or before 30 June 2021. The
loan facility is guaranteed by Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, the
Chairman of the Company, and bears interest at 18%
per annum. The Directors believe that this loan facility
is available for draw down as additional working
capital of the Group, as and when needed.

FAVBRREERASEIMAS([EHE
SIEAAE DEM BBV BREER(E
BMBHRERER ) BRAES EHRAIR
BRRAGHI ZERNERERE - HEHM
BmETIRELRAREERR - EETUR
FEFENSREERI

BN A BBV B MERER 2 M BERKRAR
AETHREHGE - EERAAEESIK
RBREF - EEEBITEEHE -

41 HERKEERE

BEAREER2020F3 431 B RE A
f&HA H E [ B /7% 8 & E649,601,000
BT (EhBErRREsEREMD
7] & % o B 49 187,706,000 & 7T &
405,000,000 70 ) - AREBREE
202093 A31H %20199F3A31H |FF
E 5 Bl EE A B3 18 5 §E £295,458,000
JC N 257,386,000/ 7 © E B {IRTE LA
BECELERBIRAVIEmE - BF
CERBUTER RS TEITERE

(@) M2020%F6H23H ' B E =
FRAAEEETFRZAARK
200,000,000 7T 2 & FA & 3= & 3K
& - HAfE202146 A30H
ZATRE c EREMERAREE
BARBRELERER  FFXA
18% - EEMEE - WERBMER
HERAEALNSE A HIZEZ
BINSEE D o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

mRERE(E)

41

Going concern basis (Continued)

(b) The Group is implementing various measures, such
as optimising its overall sales network by relocating
certain outlets, and controlling the costing to improve
the profit margin and operating cashflows of its
footwear retailing business.

() The Group will also continue to seek for other
alternative financing and bank borrowings to finance
the settlement of its existing financial obligations and
future operating and capital expenditures.

The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account
the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months from 31 March 2020.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to reduce the carrying
values of the Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts,
to provide for further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

4.1
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FRETTBRME

5.1

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FTEETBERBEE)

5.2

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

J liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date;

J assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that standard; and

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.

5.2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TESHHEMEE)

5.3

5.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: (1) power over
the investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and (3) the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation
to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate
has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.
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(Continued)
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5.5

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the Group and
at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the
same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:

. Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the
net assets of the joint arrangement; or

. Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights
to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint

arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

o The structure of the joint arrangement;

o The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

o The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

5.5
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHEBEE)

5.5

5.6

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in the
same manner as investments in associates (i.e. using the
equity method).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the investment
in joint venture. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in a joint venture has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in the same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount with
its recoverable amount (see note 5.13), and whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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(Continued)
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5.6

5.7

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss
allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever
is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed
of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision- maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.

5.6

5.7

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

BE(E)

L ER R F R ETTRREREL 2B
s  RRMBEEEREED
BEZReELBEN((REELEM])
EITRERH o WREEEEMZ AW
ElEBEOREMKEE - MELHRE
BRI EZEUMED B2 EMEHE
A EBRE(E - R AZEMAEIA
BERMEREERLPINEEZEN
ZEHMEE - Al - DEEERREEL
BRETeEEETEEZ REERE
ERERFEREEXRAS (A E)
FEEREBENAEE) (ABSER
%) o B EARERENIESER -
TERNERPEELD -

AR EL BN —HREELE
iz EMReELENRHE - B
HEMSR AR IERR At LB PT
e - EAKEHERSELSP
ZEB(R—HEReELBUT RS
ELBEM)E  CHERBZ2RRD
HEXE (SRS ELSM)BHEZRE
EABEM(N—HASELEN 2 ER
HEozEE-

B EPBE

RENBZEHRNAERATELERE
ARBZAFZ2HRT A% - AEDE
BREHEREDHRA 2 T BEER
BA - CHERBIERRE ZNTE
=

79



Vestate Group Holdings Limited EiREEIZERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FTESTBERBEE)
5.8 Property, plant and equipment 58 Y¥ BMERRHE

80

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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5.9

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their
useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss and included in administrative expenses.

Licence 25 years
Computer software 5 years
Trademark 5 years

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.

5.9
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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5.10 Financial Instruments 510 €@T A

82

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”). Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest (“SPPI”).
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHEMEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued) 510 $@IA(#E)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI’):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are SPPI.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss, except that at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (‘HKFRS
9”). Initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHERMEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
securities revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will continue to be held in
the securities revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables and other
deposits, amount due from associates, loans receivable and
cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHEMEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued) 510 @I E(#&)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHEMEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

U existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FTESTBRBEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHREMEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FTESTBERBEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables are each
assessed as a separate group, loan receivable
are assessed for expected credit losses on
individual basis);

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

U External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHERMEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued) 510 $@IA(#E)

90

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the securities revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHEBEE)

5.10 Financial Instruments (Continued) 510 @I E(#&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, accruals
and other payables, amounts due to associates and lease
liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FTESHBRBEE)
5.11 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale when:

o they are available for immediate sale;
J management is committed to a plan to sell;

J it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be
made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

J an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;

J the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a
reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and
J a sale is expected to complete within 12 months from

the date of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of:

J their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy; and

o fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current

assets (including those in a disposal group) are not

depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.

92

511 HEFHEZFRBEER HEMAR

ELATER - SERBEE T EARNE
EOBERFBBERE

o HuHTAHE:
o  EBEBEAGETHERE:

o TAHREEHFEMFLEAER
S EEE

s CRESRFAVEEZRE

o  BEMEARNERREAFEM
SERAECERETHSHER
&

o TEHIREMEDEE HE2(EA

MTEARIHE
DRERHAFLEZIFRSEERLE
MRIRIA TEIEERTE -

e BEAEEZEFER  HRNE
EoBAEEELENZEA
B &

s AHERLERAR -
ROBER/FBEELER  FERDEE
(BRLEMER) T TANE -

REERREZREXH 2 FETAR
SEEHERRRL



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FTESTBERBEE)

5.12

5.13

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

J intangible assets;

. property, plant and equipment under cost model; and

o investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (except for those classified as held for sale
or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale) (see note 5.11)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHERMEE)

5.13

5.14

5.15

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or CGU, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating
unit.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months or less.

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TESHBERBEE)
5.15 Income tax (Continued) 5.15 Fi8Hi(&)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose obijective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TESTERBEE)

5.15

5.16

Income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly to equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxed are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TEEHBERBEE)

5.16

5.17

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity interests as appropriate. Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment
in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign currency translation reserve.

Employee benefits
(a) Short term employee benefit

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

(b) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TESHBERBEE)
5.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the
fair value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair
value is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve within equity. Non market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the
end of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the
cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually
vest. Market vesting conditions are factored into the
fair value of the options granted. As long as all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge
is made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is
not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting
condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit
or loss over the remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option
scheme which is determined to be a cash-settled
share- based payment transaction with employees. An
option pricing model is used to measure the Group’s
liability at grant date and subsequently at the end of
each reporting period, taking into account the terms
and conditions on which the bonus is awarded and
the extent to which employees have rendered service.
Movements in the liability (other than cash payments)
are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FTESTBERBEE)

5.18

5.19

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHERBEE)

5.19 Revenue recognition (Continued) 519 WHER(E)

100

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

Based on the historical pattern, revenue from sales of
footwear products are recognised at a point in time basis
when the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods to its customers.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis, except for the allocation of discounts.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell promised goods or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance, obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
TESHBERBEE)

5.19

5.20

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.
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102

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date of acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2019)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

(Continued)
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5.21 Lease 521 HE
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FTESTBERBEE)

5.21 Lease (Continued) 5.21 A& (4#&)
The Group as a lessee (accounting policies applied AEBERREA(E2019F451HE
from 1 April 2019) (Continued) Rz e B%E) (&)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of twelve
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TEEHHEMEE)

5.21 Lease (Continued) 5.21 AE(4#&)

104

The Group as a lessee (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2019)(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon exercising
purchase options, the cost of the relevant right-of-use assets
and the related accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss are transferred to property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right of use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments includes:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FTESHBRBEE)

5.21 Lease (Continued) 521 & 4#E)
The Group as a lessee (accounting policies applied AEBERREA(E2019F451HE
from 1 April 2019)(Continued) Rz e B%E) (&)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEGE(E)

J payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TESHHEBEE)

5.21 Lease (Continued) 5.21 & 4#E)

106

The Group as a lessee (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2019)(Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

J the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use assets. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TESHBRBEE)
5.21 Lease (Continued) 521 & 4#&)

The Group as a lessee (accounting policies prior to 1
April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense
on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TESHHEBEE)

5.21 Lease (Continued) 5.21 HE(E)

108

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentive received from the
lessor and exclusive of any turnover rental payments which
are calculated by reference to a pre-determined percentage
of a tenant’s monthly sales) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease. Turnover rental payments are recognised on an
accrual basis.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
short-term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease
term.
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5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
TEEHBERBEE)
5.22 Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iiiy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
FTESTBERBEE)
5.22 Related parties (Continued) 5.22 BAEBEAN (&)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&)
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) ERAARKEERE
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an HiE s BREIES T &=
entity related to the Group. RN BB ARG S o
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (viy EBXZH(@EMHEA

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

(vii)

(viii)

(ii)

(iii)
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6  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
BRETH AT R A

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 5, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual residual value and useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of any
future management determination of shop relocation or
renovation. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

(c) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value in use calculations or market
valuations. The calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

BEAREHET RAE(E)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit loss in respect of trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns and the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is receivable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, the Group’s receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for expected
credit loss individually. The provision for expected credit
loss is sensitive to changes in estimates.

For the assessment of expected credit loss of other financial
assets at amortised costs, the Group uses four categories
for those financial assets, including loans receivable, other
receivables and amounts due from associates, which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of those categories. These internal credit risk ratings
are aligned to external credit ratings, where possible.

The information about the expected credit loss of the
Group’s receivables are disclosed in note 26.

Fair values of convertible bonds

The Group’s certain convertible bonds are measured at
fair value through profit or loss, details of which are set out
in note 31. The fair value of such convertible bonds that
are not traded in an active market is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques and making assumptions
that are based on market conditions existing at each
reporting date. Major inputs into the model include quoted
market prices, risk free rates, expected volatility, dividend
yields and the option’s life.
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(e)

PEW KRB

AEERABOEEKE H TR R
BEHREERERE - BEEENABE
UBHRR R 2 &18 PR U AR SRR BIIIA B AR
SEZELENR(EERBABLZK
AEB N ER KB KB ZAEEE
FORE  -RNE®REAHY - AEEEH
FHEEL ATBREN XY EEAEEE
Bzt - ttoh - @RI REBERLER
FAZERIE 2 A SR B R UG IR TR
EEEERME - B EEBRREYHG
FHEMEEUR -

FHE R IRE HA AT IR EREE L
BMEEEER - AREERNEZS
THMEE  BREEBWRER - HiEEHR
AN R S A RIROR - RERE(EER
MR EFREEETBEREZ S
A - ERAIREBR T - ZERBEERR
PR ESMNMEE R AR

AR EE IR B AR
BRI FE261 5 -

R ESZDFE

AEEETABREFEAFETAR
mAr 8 FHBEENHES o WIERIE
BMSEEZREARBESFZAF
B JEREENGERMNERESE
s AT L RERMEE - %8
AT BB ARBEEMEHE - ER
AR - FRHPRE) - R B mREK K Bk
HARR -



2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

EXEFHEF RHE(E)
(f) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. Impairment loss on
goodwill amounted to HK$20,455,000 (2019: HK$Nil) was
recognised in profit or loss in respect of the year, details of
which are set out in Note 19.

REVENUE
Wz

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year:

() BERE

BEEEETREAGTEENMOE 2
REeELABMFEREER - NetEFERE
B BERAEGTReEEENEEY
FEHARKRIRES R E B E IR R UG E
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BIRJREEEEAXREEE - BERE
[£518 £20,455,00075 70 (20194 : 8
JT)  REARNBERER - BEFEIHER
FI5E19 -

AT RAEEFARRE 2 DT

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
(restated)
(&E5)
Revenue from retail business TEEB W

— Footwear —&fa 7,483 110,349
— Convenience stores —BFIE 8,027 -

Revenue from e-Commerce and ETEBRETINEBHERE
e-Payment business 13,258 1,718
Revenue from finance services business & BARTS EIE TSN E 12,212 -
40,980 112,067

Revenue from sales of goods of footwear is recognised at a point
of time, when the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Income from convenience stores mainly represents rendering
of franchise and management services which is recognised at a
point of time, when the Group satisfies performance obligations
by transferring the promised services to its customers.

Revenue from e-Commerce and e-Payment are recognised at
point in time, when the Group satisfies performance obligations
by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Revenue from finance services business, which represents
interest income from loans receivable, is recognised using the
effective interest method.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
2 ERE R
The Group is principally engaged in the retailing of footwear and

convenience stores, financial services business and e-Commerce
and e-Payment business.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (“Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors review the Group’s financial information to
assess the performance and allocate resources.

The segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations in
each of the Group’s reportable segments:

. Retail business:
- Footwear: Sales of footwear products

- Convenience stores: Rendering of franchise and
management services to convenience stores

° Financial services business
. e-Commerce and e-Payment

In the prior year ended 31 March 2018, the Group discontinued
its e-Commerce and e-Payment business and this segment was
treated as discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March
2019. During the year, management of the Company reviewed
the business development of the Group and considered that it
is beneficial and appropriate to reactivate the e-Commerce and
e-Payment business. For the purpose of segment reporting, this
e-Commerce and e-Payment business is regarded one of the
reporting segments in order to allow the Executive Directors to
assess the Group performance and allocate resources.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment loss without allocation
of administrative expenses, other gains or losses (excluding
impairment losses recognised in respect of goodwill and other
intangible assets), other income and finance income/(costs),
which is consistent with that in the financial statements.

Segment assets mainly exclude interests in associates, amounts
due from associates and refundable advance payment (included
in deposits, prepayments and other receivables).
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEER(E)
Segment liabilities mainly exclude income tax payable, convertible SHEBEFETREERNMEN - ATRRE
bonds, corporate bond payable, amounts due to associates and % ENAFES  BNBLEAFARERE
obligations under finance lease. EHEASE o
In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue are based MESEREMS - W IR PR
on the country in which the customer is located, and total assets RIEH - MEERERERNAZNIREER
and capital expenditure are based on the country where the assets FERRIEL ©
are located.
(a) Business segment (a) XKD
The segment revenue and results for the year ended 31 HZE2020F3A31H IEFE 2D Epkzs
March 2020 are as follows: REEWT -
Retail business
ZEEH
e-Commerce
Convenience Financial and
Footwear stores services ePayment Unallocated Total
EFEBK
#5 BRE  SRERE 2 ETRM ROE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FAET FHET FHET FHET
Revenue from external REIMPE P HME
customers 7,483 8,027 12,212 13,258 - 40,980
Inter-segment sale DS - = - - - _
Segment revenue o ElEs 7,483 8,027 12,212 13,258 - 40,980
Segment (loss)/gain HE(EIR), iz (10,620) 2,155 12,212 (74419)  (43.891)  (114,563)
Finance income BIFSU A 4
Finance costs BIsE M (198,484)
Share of losses of associates [E{f <A 7] 2 iR (1,417)
Income tax credit PERER 19,002
Loss for the year AEEER (295,458)
Other segment items are as ~ EHDZHEE T ¢
follows:
Capital expenditure ERFEZ 190 609 - - - 799
Share of losses of associates &1 & 1\ Bl 2 F51E - = = = 1,417 1,417
Share option expenses MR R )
reversed - - - - (794) (794)
Depreciation of property, MWz - BERSEHE
plant and equipment neE 762 10 - 230 213 1,215
Amortisation of intangible /& E 2 # 4
assets 77 - - 7,013 - 7,090
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ fEFRELENE
assets 2,912 - 426 1,011 - 4,349
Impairment losses recognised A T&IEHERRERE -
in respect of:
— property, plant and - - BERS&HE
equipment = = = = - -
— goodwil ~8 = = - 20,455 - 20,455
- other intangible assets —Hip B EE - - - 59,511 - 59,511
Loss on disposal of property, (L&Y% « BER
plant and equipment %&LﬁZEﬂE 1,659 = = = = 1,659
Write off of inventories FEM = = = = = =
Impairment loss on trade Bk Hﬁl KB RIEEE
receivables 1,744 = = = - 1,744
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEBER(E)
(a) Business segment (Continued) (a) EXKDI(E)
The segment revenue and results for the year ended 31 HZE2019F3A31 A ILFE 2 nEblizs
March 2019 are as follows: REEWT
Retail business
TEXE
e-Commerce
Convenience Financial and
Footwear stores services  e-Payment  Unallocated Total
TFHHR
B BRI SRR ERS A RO @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(restated) (restated)
(&=5) (&=5)
Revenue from external RENMDEPEME
customers 110,349 - - 1,718 - 112,067
Inter-segment sale HEEHNE - - - _ _ _
Segment revenue DEblE 110,349 - - 1,718 - 112,067
Segment (loss)/gain HH(ER) W& (75,424) - - 995 (115,217) (189,646)
Finance income BRI 12,495
Finance costs BB (77,508)
Share of losses of associates ~ fE(AE & AT 2 E1E (2,727)
Income tax expense PSR -
Loss for the year AEEEE (257,386)
Other segment items HiwHHEENT
are as follows:
Capital expenditure BARE 174 - - - 448 622
Share of losses of associates ~ JE(EH & AR Z B - - - 427 2,300 2,727
Share option expenses BRI R
recognised - - - - 2,574 2,574
Depreciation of property, nE - BERSEIIE
plant and equipment 3,888 - - 230 246 4,364
Amortisation of intangible BIEE B
assets 162 - - 9,897 - 10,059
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ {FRIEZENE
assets - - - - - -
Impairment losses recognised 5 NI & BHER 2 BEFE |
in respect of:
— property, plant and - BEREE
equipment 157 - - - - 157
— goodwill -8 - - - - - -
— other intangible assets -EEPAE - - - - - -
Loss on disposal of property,  HEWE < BELEEZ
plant and equipment g 278 - - - - 278
Write off of inventories FEHH 23,976 - - - - 23,976
Impairment loss on trade BHEIGIE  AEEE
receivables 7,558 - - - - 7,558
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

PEER(E)
(a) Business segment (Continued) (a) EXKDI(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2020 are as 20203 A31BE 2 HEf A E R B AL
follows: N
Retail business
ZEEY
e-Commerce
Convenience Financial and
Footwear stores services  e-Payment Total
ETREER
£ BFIE SRR ETXM #st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Segment assets DEEE 13,852 6,012 148,600 150,662 319,126
Unallocated assets FOEEE 101,577
Total assets BELE 420,703
Segment liabilities DEaE 116,345 590 939 59,146 177,020
Unallocated liabilites ~~ AAEEE 768,668
Total liabilities BEBE 945,688

117



Vestate Group Holdings Limited EiREEIZERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEER ()
(a) Business segment (Continued) (a) EXKDI(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 March 2019 are as M2019563A31A KB EERBEMN
follows: N
Retail business
TEEK
e-Commerce
Convenience Financial and
Footwear stores services e-Payment Total
BFEKK
ka3 ERIE R R B st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T 8T TET TET
(restated)
(4 =7)
Segment assets DEEE 32,547 - - 245,111 277,658
Unallocated assets KOWMEE 251,431
Total assets BEBE 529,089
Segment liabilities HHEE 118,868 - - 66,477 185,345
Unallocated liabilites ~ ADE & & 572,031
Total liabilities BEEE 757,376
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

DEER(E)
(a) Business segment (Continued) (a) EXKDI(E)
Non-current assets
FEREEE
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong ' 5,641 3,021
PRC ey 138,975 14,204
Taiwan B - 9
144,616 17,234
The non-current assets exclude deposits and prepayments. SEMENEETBRIET R RIENFIE o
(b) Information about major customers (b) ERTXTEEFZER
Revenue from individual customers contributing over 10% REEAEE Y T REB10%81ER]
of the revenue of the Group as follows: EPHUWEIT
Revenue generated from
WHEER 2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Customer A e-Commerce and e-Payment 9,399 N/A
EPA BFEBREFNT TEA
Note: The revenue from customer A for the year ended 31 March Hiat - BZE2019F3A31HIEFE KB
2019 did not exceed 10% of the total revenue of the Group EPANREIT EBBNEEZF
for that year. EHBYE210% °
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

BEESE2EX
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FRET
(restated)
(g&&7)
Cost of inventories sold in inventories FEFREHEFERA 6,301 70,444
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE B &
— Audit service — % RS 1,100 1,200
— Non-audit service — FERZEURTS = -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREETE
— owned assets —BBEE 1,154 4,011
— leased assets —HEEE 61 123
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEECE 4,349 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRBRE = 157
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hin B EE 2 #iH 7,090 162
Operating lease rental in respect of leasehold land FHE T MEF 7 KLHERS
and buildings
— minimum lease payments —HIEHERE 3,211 12,864
— turnover rental expenses —REXEAECHERY 5,725 38,615
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREERS 210 3,104
Employee benefit expenses RERFRAX 20,749 86,774
Other expenses HipF> 18,926 53,958
Total cost of sales, service costs, selling and SHERA « RIGAR - S8 R HKA
distribution costs and administrative expenses RITIREREE 68,876 271,412
Expenses by nature of the Group have been presented in the RIFE WK 2 2 ANEBIRME 55 2
consolidated income statement as follows: SR NN
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(restated)
(ge&E5)
Cost of sales SHER AR 6,301 70,444
Service costs BRAE A AR 7,711 723
Selling and distribution costs SHE RO A 17,674 115,329
Administrative expenses 1T E A 37,190 84,916
68,876 271,412
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OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

Hit =R
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
fz3 FET FET
(restated)
(&=E51)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HEWE - BE & #E 2 &2
equipment (1,659) (278)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets K& EFEE 2 EiE (279) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz EE (1,499) -
Gain on disposal of leases HERE 2 W 40 -
Impairment loss on loans receivable  ERE ZUR{ERE 26 (719) (1,952)
Impairment loss on other intangible Hin @B EERE
assets i 19 (59,511) -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 19 (20,455) -
Reversal of impairment loss on other  #[E1 £ i fE U F B R (B 5518
receivables 171 -
Write off of inventories WEEE - (23,976)
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 [EWZIE 2 (B K512 24 (1,744) (7,558)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains ~ YME(E518),/ Wz FE (2,992) 88
Net losses EiaFRE (88,647) (33,676)
OTHER INCOME
Heg A
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Licence fee and royalty income B ERERENBEIA - 239
Government subsidies (note) BISEN (B 5) 860 1,899
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B T - 512
Others Hih 1,120 725
1,980 3,375

Note: Government subsidies represent incentives received from the PRC
tax authority for operating investment in Waigaogiao Free Trade

Zone in the PRC.

MEt  BURHEBE & 2R BN RAR RS

TS H R U ER 2 22 R -
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12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS)
EEREAMRX(BEESHE)
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e s TBARIEA 20,040 70,174
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIS KA — EREEGTE 1,249 12,629
Welfare and other expenses BA R E A 254 1,397
Share option expenses (note 38) RN HERI S (//3138) (794) 2,574
Total employee benefit expenses (including EERNFAXRE(BREZHS)
directors’ emolument) (note 9) (H17#9) 20,749 86,774
Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by EEREARER (FE QKM ($622F) %
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 383f% « AR (KBEEEHHER) RA(F
622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits 622GE)REB L HRAURE ZHE)
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFERBRESTBASZHE
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HZE 2020 F %2019 F 37 311+El 1 F
for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is set out B SEERESTTERABZHHEHT
below: Ll NI
For the year ended 31 March 2020: HZE2020F3A31HILFE -
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s BEAEE(TRAARISENRBAR)
services as a director, whether of the Company or its ZANTEZASER e -
subsidiary undertaking.
Estimated
money
value of
other benefits
Fees Salary (Note a) Total
A ER|
2 ES
e
e i (Hizta) CE
Name i3] HK$000 HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FAT
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zhu Xiaojun KEELLE 2,400 - - 2,400
Mr. Kang Jianming FEBLE 1,696 - - 1,696
Ms. Cai Jiaying BEERrt 1,800 - - 1,800
Mr. Yin Wansun BB EE 200 - - 200
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE :
directors:
Ms. Zhao Hong D/ 406 - - 406
Mr. Chau Wai Hing AR EEE 180 - - 180
Mr. Yu Lei (note c) REEEWic) = = - -
6,682 - - 6,682
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

BEERFAXZ(BEESEHE) (F)

Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking.

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

EEEMNRER (FE QRS (56228) %
38315k - ARI(KBEBFBEER)RHI(E
622GE)REBLTRAUREZHE) (&)

(a) EERBRETEASZHE(E)
HZE201953A31HILFE -

HEFEE(THARFHENBRF)
ZATEXZ SRR 2 B o

Estimated
money
value of
other benefits
Fees Salary (Note a) Total
HARRR
I B
BE
e e (Hiita) A
Name ez HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zhu Xiaojun KEBRLE 1,600 - - 1,600
Mr. Kang Jianming FREATE 283 - 773 1,056
Ms. Cai Jiaying BERTL 900 - 773 1,673
Mr. Yin Wansun BEsHLE - - 773 773
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE:
directors:
Ms. Zhao Hong Dy - - 64 64
Mr. Chau Wai Hing [AEELE 180 - - 180
Mr. Leung Man Ho (note b) ARG E (D) 89 - - 89
Mr. Yu Lei (note c) RELEWHC) - - - -
3,052 - 2383 5,435
Note a: Other benefits include share options. Miita - EtEFeIEERE
Note b: Mr. Leung Man Ho was appointed as an independent Hiatb © BN RELER2017F6 S19R
non-executive director with effect from 19 June 2017 and ZERBIIMITES AR
resigned on 29 September 2018. 20189 A29HBHT -
Note c: Mr. Yu Lei was appointed as an independent non- Mite : RGEEEEBEZERBLIFNITE

executive director with effect from 28 December 2018.

%= H2018F12 28 HAEAR -
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

BERARX(BEESEME) (&)

Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits related to define benefit plan for the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits for the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

The Company issued CB-Il (as defined in note 31) and
corporate bond payable (as defined in note 32) in August
2016 and May 2017 respectively with personal guarantee
obtained from Mr. ZHU Xiaojun, Chairman of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
the directors, or controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: Nil).

EEEARER (BB L ARM(586225) %
3831k - ARI(KBEBFEER)RHI(E
622GE)REBLEMRAREZIKE) (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EERMERN

HZE2020F3A31HILFE » HiESS
B UER Sk A BT B FE BB AR AT Bl
B2 R IRAEF (20194 : £8) -

EEHREER

BHE2020F3A31HILFE - HiEE
= B YER S M A AT B BB AR R (2019
FE) e

HEBEERBEE=T Rz AE

EHZE2020F3A31BIEFE » ARG
ENESEERSMEMNE =T HR
B(2019%F : ) -

EHEE  SEFRZHZZIABERE
BEEZHEER BN - BUEHE
AMXZZEH

R RE D BIA201648 A 201745 A
BITAMARMEFI(EE R MRE31) K fE
NRRES(EERMES2) - LUIA
AR R EEREE LA 2 B AERIER
ﬁi o

HE2020F3A31BILEE - HEAMH
ERYTESERZEABBRERE
EUEEREER  BUBERREM
X5 HE (20194 « ) o

EFERXSG  KHRENTZEA L

REE2020F3 A31 H It FE AR
FRERERE - FEARBESELAR
RIFTEI WA R REB BB 2 EAR
5 THERAHTEESHEEREEEX
25 (20194F « £E) »
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12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

BEERFAXZ(BEESEHE) (F)

Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures required by
section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK Listing Rules)
(Continued)

(9) Five highest paid individuals (9) EERBFMHAL

FA - AEBRESESHFHALEBE=
£(2019% : =ZR)EF - EFMER
HfFE12(a) 25 2 DM IR - BT R
TR#(2019%F 1 MEB) AL ZBE 40

EEEMNRER (FE QRS (56228) %
38315k - ARI(KBEBFBEER)RHI(E
622GE)REBLTRAUREZHE) (&)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group during the year include three directors (2019:
three) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 12(a). The emoluments payable to the

remaining two (2019: two) individuals are as follows: Nk
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXge  AREEM -
other allowances and benefits-in-kind HAn 28 R EYH= 2,616 2,559
Share options expenses FERRER 270 1,097
Contributions to pension plans RIRSE BN 36 36
2,922 3,692
The emoluments fell within the e FrEAR T
following bands:
2020 2019
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE EEAE
HK$0 to HK$500,000 07870 £500,000/8 7T 1 -
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 721,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,000/5 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/5 7T = 1
2 2
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13 FINANCE COSTS, NET
MBEA - FE

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
(restated)
(Fe&E5)
Finance income BRI A
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITERZFEIA 4 10
— Interest income — others —FEHA —EAth = 12,485
4 12,495
Finance costs g3
— Fair value loss on convertible bond (note 31) — AR E A N FEEE (47:231) (13,902) (16,768)
— Interest on convertible bonds (note below) — AR ES 2 R B (X i) (37,544) (5,067)
— Interest on corporate bond payable —ERAREF2ME(TFXHE)
(note below) (146,617) (55,645)
— Interest on bank borrowings —HRITEEZFE - (17)
— Interest expense on lease liabilities —HEBREZMERAE (408) -
— Interest on obligations under finance lease —BERSREZFE (13) (11)
(198,484) (77,508)
Finance costs, net MIEER - 58 (198,480) (65,013)
Note: The Group defaulted in repayments of a convertible bond and a it : AERER —SRATARE S R 2 AR5 2|
corporate bond following the maturity of these convertible bond and ?ﬁ}ﬁkiﬁ%ﬁjﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁg%%%& RRAMES - B
corporate bond. Default interests on convertible bond and corporate g 5 B #2 R 15 5 & Fétiﬁ RRIEHZED
bond payable amounted to approximately HK$31,825,000 (2019: R 8 %731,825,000 8 7L (20194 = =) K&
Nil) and HK$140,940,000 (2019: Nil) were recognised and included 140,940,000/ 7T (20195 « F) K53 Bllat A
in the interests on convertible bonds and corporate bond payable ARk &S KB D RIEH 2 FIRS
respectively.
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14 INCOME TAX CREDIT

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

FEBiEs
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
The income tax charge/(credit) represents: FSEiHBR, (%) ¥E -
Current income tax BVEAFR1S A
— Hong Kong profits tax —EBBNEH = -
— PRC corporate income tax — B EEFTISRR 70 -
70 -
Under provision in prior years BAFERETR
— Hong Kong profits tax —EBNER 10 -
80 -
Deferred tax credit (note 37) BT IEE S (H7737) (19,082) -
(19,002) -

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for as the Group
has no assessable profits for the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

FFA R 22 (B FAE £ 20204F }2201943 A31H
IFFEWEERFGEHN WU EXEENE
TRt IR -

RIECPBEEMBRE)([REREHE]
ROEMEBOAEMIES - R B RARE
M E F R BT 2R B25% o

REFEHEIEBRIEHS ((ABELH

BERRER  AEEBEARRSEE R
R R SBMEMTEN
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INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)
FEBiRR (&)
The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to FAMGHAS (Be)JRBigsEmRE
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss e EWERMEIN ZBRBATSESERENT
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
(restated)
(Fe=E=5))
Loss before income tax RETATSRi AR 18 314,460 257,386
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REHHH16.5% (20195 : 16.5%)
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) STE2HE 51,886 42,469
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMRERELE ZHBARZ
operating in other jurisdictions NEFER 2 & 8,649 (1,757)
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA 242 42
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes NAMEREE N X (38,105) (6,958)
Deductible temporary differences not RERA I E K =5
recognised (35,785) (7,475)
Tax losses not recognised R BIEEE (5,889) (26,321)
Income tax credit PRISTiE (19,002) -
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LOSS PER SHARE
BREE
(a) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

(a) EXK
BREAEBNRBAFEARNRTEZD
A ANELEBEBERUFAEBITEBR
ZEERE o

2020 2019
(restated)
(ssE5)
Loss attributable to equity holders of KRR FEANEGZ
the Company (HK$°000) EBHER(F#r) (290,990) (256,597)
Number of ordinary shares in issue (’000) BEREITEmREE (FR) 716,190 716,190

(b) Diluted

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options because the
exercise price of those share options was higher than the
average market price for shares of the Company for both of
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 as there were
no other dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding
during both of the years presented.

DIVIDEND
RE

The directors of the Company do not recommend any payment of
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

(b) #8

FTEESREEEERTERBRADRZ
B ETTE - BARSEREZTT
EEEFT25H E£20194F 202053 A
1A IEMEFEZARQRFHRMD™T

AR 25 EF EHEEM M AR TE
BABEESQE 2 ETRAR  WHE
2020F 2019F 3 A31HIEFE &
WS R R E A EEAER -

KAREETEZREE2020F3A31H 1E
FEIRMTMALE (20194 « £) -
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Motor and Computer
improvements vehicles equipment equipment Total
B £8
HENFERE AE e ERRE @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FET FAT FET
Cost A
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A18 55,933 2,259 15,539 17,770 91,501
Additions HE 622 - - - 622
Disposals & (5,880) - (1,163) (71) (7,114)
Disposal of subsidiary HERBRR (66) - (65) (12) (143)
Exchange differences EHZEE (2,627) (41) (218) (497) (3,383)
At 31 March 2019 and #2019%3H31H
1 April 2019 %2019F4A1H 47,982 2,218 14,093 17,190 81,483
Additions AE - - 637 6 643
Reclassified from assets classified B BASEELEY
as held for sale (note 28) BESHMHENZ28) 887 - 247 18 1,152
Disposals e (44,821) (2,004) (13,579) (9,782) (70,186)
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR (870) (36) (293) (110) (1,309)
Exchange differences N ZESE (1,872) (28) (151) (358) (2,409)
At 31 March 2020 A2020F3A31H 1,306 150 954 6,964 9,374
Accumulated depreciationand 23T ERFE
impairment
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 50,228 1,775 14,502 17,038 83,543
Charge for the year FNMG 3,491 160 314 169 4,134
Impairment loss recognised BRERRERE 157 - - - 157
Eliminated on disposals &R I (5,696) - (921) (71) (6,688)
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAR (43) - (20) 3) (66)
Exchange differences BN =5 (2,306) (37) (185) (458) (2,986)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 72019534310
2019 201954 A1H 45,831 1,898 13,690 16,675 78,094
Charge for the year ERMER 851 99 178 87 1,215
Reclassified from assets classified E2MEAEHELEZ
as held for sale (note 28) BESHDEN228) 674 - 197 5 876
Impairment loss recognised EHRRRESE - - - - -
Eliminated on disposals SRS (43,448) (1,820) (13,311) (9,415) (67,994)
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAF (870) (28) (293) (110) (1,301)
Exchange differences B ER (1,767) (27) (125) (336) (2,255)
At 31 March 2020 A2020F3A31H 1,271 122 336 6,906 8,635
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2020 #2020F3A31H 35 28 618 58 739
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 2,151 320 403 515 3,389

Note: The motor vehicle with the carrying amount of HK$215,000 as
at 31 March 2019 were charged to secure finance lease payable
outstanding as at that date. No charge of motor vehicles was
outstanding as at 31 March 2020.

KtaF : 120194E3 A318 » BRE {215,000 7THY
BB - UIERZAGSRNENRE
TAE - 20203 A31H » WEFHIEF R
BERR o
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18 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

ERAEEE
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$’000
T
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 (Note 2.1) MR20195F4 A1 8 2 BREE(Ha22.1) 8,185
Additions, at cost RE - REKAR 5,991
Disposals upon termination of leases HERIEEE (3,611)
Depreciation provided for the year ended HZE2020F3A31HIEFE 2
31 March 2020 E#RE (4,349)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 7202093 5318 2 BREIE 6,216
Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases  THHAR & X B A& B 153k &5 %A
with lease terms end within twelve months of £E165 BB T =B ARNLER 2
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 EEHEREMEERE M 8,936
Total cash outflow for leases for the year HZE2020F3A31HIEFEZ
ended 31 March 2020 HER R HERE 4,605

The Group leases office and retail shops under non-cancellable
operating lease for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed terms of one to three years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis
over the lease terms.

The lease expenses incurred amounted to approximately
HK$9,371,000 were not paid by the Group as at the end of
the reporting period and were included in accruals and other
payables.

AEBERBNAIHHEEEHERRRAE
TEEHMEZERE - HEAHMWEER
HR—Z2=% - MEGFERHE - A&
= Z A RER S G - REE R M
PRI EE M RAER - AEBRA A KR
EE - UEBESQATARTHHR -

EREEEREREENHERRNE -

PiTEE A #9FH & 51 2 499,371,00078 TR & BA
REARAREEAN - Wt ARFHE B RE
fl FEASFA -
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19 GOODWILL

(55
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year: AT AREBF ARG 2 DT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost (DN
At beginning of the year RER = -
Reclassified from assets held for sale BERFEELEZEEET A 20,455 -
At the end of the year RER 20,455 -
Impairment A
At beginning of the year RER = -
Impairment loss recognised (note 10) ERERRBERE(HZ10) (20,455) -
At the end of the year RER (20,455) -
Carrying amount REE
At the end of the year RER = -

Impairment testing of goodwill

AERERR

132

Cost of the goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to cash-generating units (“CGUSs”) of the e-Commerce
and e-Payment.

The recoverable amount of this group of CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a twenty three-
years period approved by management.

FEXACHBENEIEEEFEBRE
FXNWREELSMU((REELEM]) -

B AEER & B A B AL RO AT U B 8 BB T AR IR AE
EBEAEEE - MEREEFELNARE
EIREHEN — T = F R BREEEHANE

EREBTFRAFL -
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19 GOODWILL (Continued)
BR(E)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Key assumptions adopted in preparation of cash flow projections
for value in use calculation were as follows:

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

AEREAREE)

mERANEREEFTENREREFR DR
M EERRT ¢

2020
Compound annual growth rate of revenue WaRRERFENEEFIERE
in subsequent years
— First year —BF 70.10%
— Second year —B-F 78.44%
— Third year —B=F 60.00%
— Fourth year —FE 60.00%
— Fifth year —BRF 60.00%
— Sixth year — BN 52.94%
— Seventh to tenth years —FBLETHF 30.00%
Annual growth rate beyond the ten-year period THEHENFEIERE 4.00%
Discount rate ALIR % 18%

The budgeted gross margin used for preparation of the cash flow
projections is based on the average gross margin achieved in the
year immediately before the budget year, with adjustment on the
inflation of direct service costs.

The annual revenue growth rate of revenue is estimated by
management based on past performance, industry forecast
and its expectation of market development. The discount rate is
before tax and reflects specific risks relating to this CGUs.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on inflation of
materials price and discount rate are consistent with external
information sources.

Based on the assessment of goodwill impairment, the recoverable
amounts (based on value in use calculation) of the goodwill and
licence (included in other intangible assets, note 20) are estimated
to be below their carrying amounts by HK$79,966,000 in total
and impairment losses on the goodwill and licence amounted to
HK$20,455,000 (2019: Nil) and HK$59,511,000 (2019: Nil) were
recognised in respect of the current year which are included in
other net losses.

The directors believe that any reasonably change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount of the goodwill and licence to
exceed their recoverable amount.

FREREASRERANBEERNE - T
ERREFENA —FEINFHENERR
KB - U EZRRBRABRMIELAE -

FRESEREXDAETEEREBERR
TERBAREAROTSERMGEE - FIER
MBS MATY RIRBZR S ELE
(VAES il
DEEMRHERBRNEERINEELR
B HEIINBER IR -

REEERENE - B2 LR GTAEME
FEEE - W:E20) el el &8 (XN ERE
EFHE) AR EREE S H£1K79,966,0007%
TC IME R AT EEREE MERRERE
20,455,000,8 7t (20194 © #) }2 59,511,000
BIT(20194F | M) - At AEMEEFE -

EXME TRESBEMREI2HRRNE
MAEES B IreEmERERNRE
ERHEATEEEER
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20 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Hit\p&EE
Computer
Licence software Trademark Total
faR B G &t
(Note below)
(Fxhiz)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$7000
FET T AT AT
Cost A&
At 1 April 2018 22018F4 F1H 318 19,045 69,566 88,929
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAF - (323) - (323)
Disposals e - (5) (69,566) (69,571)
Exchange differences ERiZE - (374) - (374)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R2019F3A31H K2019F4A1H 318 18,343 - 18,661
Reclassified from assets classified as BABARAENE BEENNE

held for sale (note 28) (Hii#28) 193,629 9,288 - 202,917
Additions AE - 156 - 156
Disposals e - (14,145) - (14,145)
Exchange differences EiES - (273) - 273)
At 31 March 2020 2202053 A31H 193,947 13,369 - 207,316

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 23 #8 R{E

At 1 April 2018 1201854 A1H 318 18,241 69,566 88,125
Amortisation charge provided for the year ~ FRE BfEE R % - 162 - 162
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - (81) - (81)
Eliminated on disposals HERTHE - (5) (69,566) (69,571)
Exchange difference ERiZEE - (347) - (347)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 201953 A31A k201954 R 18 318 17,970 - 18,288
Reclassified from assets classified as BRBARANECEEENNE

held for sale (note 28) (Hiz28) 9,574 323 - 9,897
Amortisation charge provided for the year ~ FAC BEEHREY 6,561 529 - 7,090
Impairment loss recognised for the year ERERBREEEWTZ9)

(note 19) 59,511 - - 59,511
Eliminated on disposals HERHEE - (13,866) - (13,866)
Exchange difference ERZEE - (256) - (256)
At 31 March 2020 2020535318 75,964 4700 - 80,664

Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2020 1202053 A31H 117,983 8,669 - 126,652
At 31 March 2019 20193 A31H - 373 - 373

Note: In February 2017, the Group acquired a provisional licence through
acquisition of China Consume. The licence is a provisional licence
issued by UnionPay International Co., Ltd (“UPI”) which allows the
holder to conduct payment processing services for UPI credit cards
in Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, Italy and France.

Impairment loss on the licence amounted to approximately
HK$59,511,000 was recognised for the current year (2019: Nil),
details of which are set out in note 19.
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Hrat - 72017928 - AEBEFEWETBEERUS

BRES FRRTE A o SX4T AT A R R R
BAERAR([RBEM )2 2 B FHE
PR REHSAARES - BA - #BE - B
RH oA B 1T R B B R 45 A RS SRR 2 AR
% o

B BLANE [ HERR M BROR (B B3 18 4959,511,000
BIC(2019%F © ) - FHIFHNMIFE19
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
R—BEE QTR 2 EH

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHr

Share of net assets LB EFE - 510

Details of the joint venture as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as
follows:

R20204F 201963 A31H 2 A& A al:+1E
N

Place of % of interest Principal
Name of entity establishment held indirectly activity
BERER ava:ch] MESAESE 2% TEXY
2020 2019

Carlyon Futures Limited (“Carlyon Futures”, Hong Kong - 51% Inactive

formerly known as Wealthy Trend International

Development Limited)
RESHEERAR(RERRE] AEEAEER & W ERTE RS

BRBRAA])

Note: On 15 August 2019, the Group disposed of its 51% equity interest
in Carlyon Futures to the Group’s associate, Carlyon Investment
Holdings Limited, at a cash consideration of HK$5,100.

Upon completion of the disposal, Carlyon Futures became an
indirectly owned associate of the Company.

The financial information of Carlyon Futures is not presented as
Carlyon Futures is considered insignificant to the Group.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, there are no significant
contingent liabilities and capital commitments relating to the
Group’s interest in the joint venture.

Ht5t - 7A2019F8 150 » AREE L EHMRIES
ZE1%RIETFAREB 2 BEARIRIERIEE
ZERAMR AR - BEKEAS5,10087T ©

TR ER T&E%,HHEE)Z?%K”AET%%%
BZHERT

RESHPENUHENALEZT
SHERGSUANEELTERX -

ESpEY o BEd

EAzozoE&zowisﬂ 318 - MEFBELASE
NEENRZERZBEARREBBELER
HIE o
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REE QT 2 xR
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAETT FET
Cost of investments WE AR
— Listed associates — EmEE AR 13,594 14,533
— Unlisted associates —JE FTHEEE A A 2,339 2,339
15,933 16,872
Share of post-acquisition reserves FEE W B (4,924) (3,910)
11,009 12,962
Amounts due from associates (Note) eSS & R R FRIB (HaE) 6,797 6,469
17,806 19,431

Note:
demand.

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 March

The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on

MEE AR - R BW AR BEREE -

/N

VAT #4071 A< 52 B 70202043 A31 B 2 Bt & A
2020. A e
Place of
establishment and % of equity interest held Principal
Name of entity operations by the Group activity
BEREsR RUREEBE rEBEEEREZ% FEXK
directly indirectly
HiE B

Guangzhou Guoxin Guanfu The PRC 43.35% — Settlement services

Information Technology

Company Limited!

(“Guoxin Guanfu”)
BMNBESNESRXBERAR HH RERS

(TEfEBMD
Shanghai New World Information ~ The PRC 47.6% — e-Commerce

Industry Company Limited'

(“Shanghai New World

Information”) (Note a)
BT RS BEERD [ BFEB

BRAR( EEHttREE])

(Hfita)
Genius Union Limited Hong Kong 40% — Inactive
EHERAF HE W R TR &
Carlyon Investment Holdings Hong Kong 34% — Investment holding

Limited (Note b) in Hong Kong
RIESIREERBRAB (Hab) BE REBREREER
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22 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
K& R T ()

Place of
establishment and % of equity interest held Principal

Name of entity operations by the Group activity

EREE R REEME rEESEEERZ% FEEKR

directly indirectly
HiE S

Carlyon Securities Limited Hong Kong - 34% Securities dealing

BIESESFBRAT B NEEFEHEE

Carlyon Asset Management Hong Kong - 34% Asset management

Limited e REEEER

BEREEEEERAR

Carlyon Capital Limited Hong Kong - 34% Inactive

BIESEARBRAR B RS FPIET)

Carlyon Reits (BVI) Limited Hong Kong - 34% Inactive

B I ST A ED

Carlyon Futures Limited Hong Kong - 34% Inactive

(Formerly known as NI E SR
“Wealthy Trend International
Development Limited”)
RIESHRERR AR BB
(Fits BRI BERAR DA ])

Carlyon Properties Limited Hong Kong - 34% Inactive

BESMERRAR B RS FIET)

1 English translation is for identification purpose only. ! EXEREERRIAE -

(@) As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in (@) H2020%3A318 @ REER EEHiRE
Shanghai New World Information, which is listed on the Shanghai B(REEBRERERGFH L LET)F 2
Equity Exchange, was approximately HK$9,436,000 (2019: = 2 BRI B A& 499,436,0005% 7T (20194 :
HK$11,056,000.) 11,056,000 7T) o

(b) At 1 November 2018, 66% equity interests in Carlyon Investment (b) M2018F11 818 RESKLEZRER
Holdings Limited (“Carlyon Investment”) were disposed of to RA(HRERRE]) 766%RELHETE
third parties, with the remaining 34% equity interest of Carlyon =7 12020938310 - RESREEH
Investment held by the Group as at 31 March 2020. B4%RIEH AR ERERFE -
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
K& R T ()

The financial information of the Group’s associates is not
individually presented as it is considered that the Group had no
material associate during the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2019.

AREEBERABZYBENLBEEFZ7
AR EEER AREE202063A318 K&
20195 3AALFEWEREFS ABER
7l o

Summarised financial information of immaterial associates is set FEREE B E AT 2 B ERBRERT
out below: NN
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Aggregate carrying amount of IR EEE KM 2 B
individually immaterial associates R B 7]"%#&2%2?%@%@@
in the consolidated financial statements 11,009 12,962
Aggregate amount of the Group’s share REEREZSHE AR 2 8E
of those associates:
— Share of post-acquisition loss for the year —EIEFRREERER (1,417) (2,727)
— Other comprehensive income —Htb 2z - -
Total comprehensive income 2EERE (1,417) (2,727)

As at 31 March 2020, there are no significant contingent liabilities
relating to the Group’s interests in the associates and the
Group was contracted to make capital contribution amounted to
HK$5,568,000 (2019: HK$5,950,000) to an associate.

INVENTORIES

rE

Inventories represent merchandising stock.

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included

in cost of sales for the year amounted to HK$6,301,000 (2019:
HK$70,444,000).

ﬁAzozoﬁsH 318 BMEEEAEERHZ

NaERZERIAREGE  RAKECEFL
B #)E 2 N B 5% & 5,568,000 7T (2019
E : 5,950,000/ 7T) °

FRIgHERET

FRER R AL AHERRNTFERAR
446,301,000 7% 7T (20194 : 70,444,000
L) °
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TRADE RECEIVABLES
FEW B 5 R E

Retail sales are in cash, by credit cards or collected by
department stores on behalf of the Group. The department stores
normally settle the proceeds to the Group within 2 months from
the date of sales.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 30 days to 60 days (2019:
30 days to 60 days).

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the reporting
period by invoice date is as follows:

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

ZEHEDURE - EARHIHAERFR
RAEBEWE - AERF—RIPBHERH
HEET2fE A RRAEEBEMSHA -

AEESRTEFNESHBRAEZTHNEE @
FRP—MEBEEBEMNFIBERIN - EEH R
NF30HZE60H (20194 : 30AE60H) ©

7R & (B 55 S OR Wi 00 8 UK R TR A R R AR A
B AR AEERRE - BRESHESREE
EEHEH - ERX LA R AEENEKRE S
RREAELZTTEFER  RABEKN(E
EfTRER - AKEY ELEEKE 5 R
AT A ER R R EEIR R -
FEUE 55 AL AETE

JEWE ZHIENRERARREZAHE D 2
BRER DTN -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days 0-30H 18 1,640
31-60 days 31-60H - 1,622
61-90 days 61-90H 1,550 890
Over 90 days 90H A E 9,153 8,185
10,721 12,337

Less: Provision for impairment of trade W EWE SR 2 BERE

receivables (9,153) (7,947)

1,568 4,390
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
PEW & 5 RRIE(4E)

As of 31 March 2020, trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,547,000 (2019: HK$2,555,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
and department stores for whom there is no recent history of
default. An aged analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

R2020F3A31H - EWE ZHREL
1,547,000/ 7t (20194 : 2,555,000/ 7T) 2
BHENRE - RS RRE 2 2 &L
RARLBZBUIEFRBERRER - %E
JEUNE S 5RIE 2 BREE DTN T -

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired R BT AR(E 21 1,835
Past due but not impaired EaHEKRE

—1-30 days —1-30H 1,547 1,427

— 31-60 days —31-60H - 890

—61-90 days —61-90H - 163

— Over 90 days —90HIA E - 75

1,568 4,390

As of 31 March 2020, trade receivables of approximately
HK$9,153,000 (2019: HK$7,947,000) were considered impaired
and were provided in full. The individually impaired receivables
mainly relate to department stores. An aged analysis of these
receivables is as follows:

MN2020FE3A31H  BWE SHELD
9,153,000/ 7T (20194F : 7,947,00078 7T )
BEBRE WEFIREEEE - @5 ER
BEEKGEXTZEEEARIGH - ZE5EK
FBEZRRAITT -

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Over 90 days 90H A E 9,153 7,947
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables FEWE S IBERER G #ET

are as follows:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

At beginning of the year REF] 7,947 567

Impairment loss recognised (Note 10) ERERAERB (A 10) 1,744 7,424

Exchange differences PEH =58 (538) (44)

At end of the year NG 9,153 7,947
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
PEW 5 RRIE(E)

Impairment loss on trade receivables was charged to
consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying amount of trade receivables, the Group did not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

EWE 5 IR EBEDNEERERN
B o SRR 2 B — RN B E A
BINR B FF IS o

RiE Az &2 EERRAEKE R
ZAREE - AEBEI SN A T AR R
e

FEWE 55008 2 R & BRI IA TR R EHE -

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 21 430
Renminbi AR 1,547 3,510
New Taiwan dollar ek - 450
1,568 4,390

The carrying amount of trade receivables at 31 March 2020 FEUNE 5B IER2020F3 A31 H 2 BRE £ 58

approximates their fair values as at that date. BENZA 2 A HERE °
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25 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
BE - ANRERHECERRE

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current portion: ERBNEH D -
Deposits b 276 1,155
Current portion: mENEL S
Refundable advance payment ARETEN B 83,792 97,883
Deposits e 22,036 8,105
Prepayments TAfFRIE 200 543
Other receivables H b e 508 6,619 4,475
Value-added tax recoverable Al Y B E R 1,436 3,606
114,083 114,612
114,359 115,767
Denominated in: WA TEREHE -
Hong Kong dollar BT 4,839 6,639
Renminbi AR 25,728 10,666
New Taiwan dollar etk - 40
Euro BT 83,792 97,883
Others EA - 539
114,359 115,767
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

BE - ANRERAEMERREAGE)

Notes:

(a)

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables approximate their fair values. The Group does not hold
any security. No written-off have been made for the year ended 31
March 2020 (2019: NIL). No impairment provision has been made
for both years.

In the prior year ended 31 March 2018, the Company entered into
an agreement with China Investment S.p.A (“China Investment”’),
an entity in which the Company’s director, Ms. Cai Jiaying, has
beneficial interests, for purchase of certain properties in Milan, the
Italy, (“Milan Properties”) of an aggregate consideration of Euro
11,220,000 (equivalent to HK$98,881,000), including value added
tax amounted to Euro 1,020,000. The consideration was fully
paid by the Group up to 31 March 2020 and the Milan Properties
are currently under construction. During the current year, the
Company entered into an agreement with China Investment on
27 June 2019, under which both of the contracting parties agreed
for the cancellation of the purchase of the Milan Properties with
immediate effect and the consideration paid by the Group totalled
Euro 11,220,000 is to be refunded to the Group on or before 31
December 2019. On 31 December 2019, the Company entered
into a supplemental agreement with China Investment, under
which both of the contracting parties agreed the consideration
paid to be refunded to the Group on or before 31 March 2021.
During the current year, the purchase consideration to the extent
of Euro 1,300,000 was refunded to the Group with the remaining
outstanding balance of Euro 9,920,000 classified under current
assets.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 26 April 2020,
the Company entered into an agreement with China Investment for
the repayment of the outstanding consideration of Euro 9,920,000
by four instalments on a quarterly basis, being the first instalment
of Euro 500,000 which fall due on or before 30 June 2020 and the
second to fourth instalments of Euro 2,800,000 each which fall
due on or before 30 September 2020, 31 December 2020 and 31
March 2021 respectively, and the value added tax amounted to
Euro 1,020,000 will be repayable to the Group by China Investment
upon its receipt of such taxes from the government of Italy. Up to
the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
first instalment to the extent of Euro 500,000 was refunded to the
Group.

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

MEE

(a)

(b)

Be - ANFORREA B IRZ BRE SRR
HEENFERE - AREXESEERNE
- EZ 202043 31 H IEFE I S 1F
84 (2019%F : ) - MEFEYEELRE
B

REZE2018FE3A31THILBAFE » &
A 7] EL China Investment S.p.A ( [ China
Investment |) (KA RIESE(FB LT HE
BERER 2 BRI HE - URERFIK
HESEETWE(KENE] BREAR
11,220,0008/ 7T (48 & 7298,881,0007% 7T ) -
BRI {ET{1,020,00080 T ° :Z R EE HBA
£ ER2020F 3 A31 HAIBEH S - K
MYEBRAEEERT - RAFE - AR
A17A20194 6 A 27 H E2China Investmentz]
i BRFTAE ST REBUERE BKE
WE - BINER  MAEEENNRES
$£11,220,0008X 7T # 742019412 A 31 A 5k
ZAREFAREER o AARR2019F12 A
31H EChina Investmentz] . /7t 7h75 @ 15
It BT A RIE 202153 A31 Hel 2 Al
BEMREREREE - RAFE - BER
{&1,300,0008 L E iR Bl T AREE - HepfF
iR [019,920,000B T D ARENE E -

MEHMERIE - R2020F4 A26H - AR
7] B2 China Investments] 3 7 5 © R it -
% A 8 12 K {2 9,920,000B ST #5122 E 5 Y
HifEiE - 5 —HIFIE A& # 500,000 T -
#1722020F6 A30H S 2 AT EIH - M —
ZUE AR B A 82,800,000 7T ¢ 1
2RI 202049 A30 H 2 2 A - 2020412
A318 8 2 BIAK%202143 831 B 2 Al
EIH - K 1 (E 1,020,000 B 7T #5 H China
Investment® & Y B B K FIBR AT 25 B BT
BREETAEE - EEENGE ISR
K BH - A#500,0008 THE —HZRIED
REAEE o
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26 LOANS RECEIVABLE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHr

Loans receivable JEWE R 148,312 135,846

The Group’s loans receivable, which arose from Hong Kong
and PRC, which are denominated in both Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi respectively.

Pursuant to the relevant loan agreements entered into by the
Group and the borrowers, the loans, which are unsecured and
carry interest at the interest rate ranged from 7% to 15% per
annum, are repayable to the Group together with interest thereon,
at the end of their respective maturity periods.

Loans receivable are unsecured, bear fixed interest and are
repayable with fixed terms agreed with the Group’s borrowers.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the end of
reporting period is the carrying amount of the loans receivable
mentioned above.

A maturity profile of the gross amount of loans receivable as at
the end of the reporting period, based on maturity date, is as

AEB 2 BB RPERBKRERD HIRETR
AR¥EHE -

RIS EEER AR NEBEERHE -
ERESRAERRRIZFFENT7%E15%
B BRNMEEF A REERAMNEEET
AEE -

U E SR IR - F SR ERAEE K
AEZ BEIEHREE - REMEMRZHK
SEERRA LK ERZ REE

RBER - BRIENRI A HREERE
MZBHEAEIMT

follows:

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FEIT

Loans and interests thereon receivable U E R X IEREF S
within one year R—FEN 152,318 139,133
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BRRREEE (4,006) (3,287)
Loans receivable classified under current assets 7 B ARBIEE 7 EWE K 148,312 135,846

144



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

26

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)
BB ER (&)

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

Movements during the year are as follows: FRZEFHINT -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REFT] 135,846 129,538
Loan made by the Group REBEH 2 ER 9,940 4,586
Interest on loans receivables JEWE R Z T B 12,212 12,488
Loan and interest repaid EEEERRFE (4,019) (4,000)
Impairment loss recognised BRI ERE (719) (1,952)
Exchange realignment PE 5% (4,948) (4,814)
At end of the year RER 148,312 135,846

Movements of impairment loss are as follows: BERBEZEHINT -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REY] (3,287) (1,335)
Impairment loss recognised (note 10) BRI ERE(A7E10) (719) (1,952)
At end of the year RER (4,006) (3,287)
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BHeERBReSEEER
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand IRITRFERS 5,051 1,763
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEHEER 5,051 1,763

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position are denominated in the following currencies:

A%

W]

N rj_E\L::
BATEHEHE

BUBPRRAZRE KRS EFERE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong dollar BT 4,541 1,130
Renminbi AR 250 220
United States dollar x5 156 132
Others Hi 104 281
5,051 1,763

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi
are placed with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

REBUAARBHEZRE MRITERT N
KRB ZIRTT - IS ERARBHE 2 ERR
R SINEAE TR BB ATES 2 SMNEE

BRI S ARB -
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NET ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

PEABEEHECZEERE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Assets classified as held for sale NEABEEHECEE = 245,111
Liabilities directly associated with assets Eﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% B
classified as assets held for sale =N - (66,477)
Net assets classified as held for sale DERFEIELEZEERR - 178,634
Note: During the current year, following the reactivation by the Group of et RAEE  AEESHIMELEFHBELE
its e-Commerce and e-Payment business, details of which are set T R (BRI (b)) - I EDH
out in note 3(b), the assets and liabilities of China Consume, the Egﬁf‘ﬁ%’/}ﬁjﬁﬁ$lﬂ:¥ﬁ%)ﬂﬂ’ ERBER
subsidiary which carries out this business, have been reclassified EFN BN AAEE G AP BRNKET
and included in the appropriate line items of assets and liabilities HEEEERAGKIER -

presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position.
The following table summarises the assets and liabilities as at 31 TREMN2019F3A31H 2 EEN B
March 2019 which are included in assets classified as held for sale ARETAD B ARERELE 2 EE KBS LE
and liabilities directly associated with assets classified as assets ﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁtﬂ%ZﬁEETﬁffﬁ Mz afE -
held for sale respectively.
31 March
2019
20194
3H31H
HK$’000
FET
(restated)
(s =7)
(Note 3)
(H17#3)
Fair value less cost of disposal AFERHERE 194,000*
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BFE REE 276
Intangible assets mIVAE 213,475
Interests in an associate NN £ 174
Current assets RENEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e« TBARRIE R E AL EUEIE 15,698
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkIReEEER 15,488
Assets classified as held for sale PEABEELEZEE 245,111
Current liabilities RENBE
Trade and other payables FERTE 55/ I8 K At FE T 5018 (30,324)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAAE (36,153)
Liabilities directly associated HAOBABFEELEEZ
with assets classified as assets held for sale EECEEHEHERAE (66,477)
Net assets classified as held for sale PEAREFELECZEETH 178,634
* The fair value less cost of disposal at 31 March 2019 was * HETHR2019F3A31 B 2 A AR

estimated by reference to an independent valuation of the
China Consume on income approach which was performed
by the valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited.

ERAR - TH2E (AR S IR
R A R AL MR LS B
BIEL 2B (4(E -
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29 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
BNESHRE - Bt BAREMEMGTRER

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Trade payables FEHE S8 52,999 62,872
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R EAE FRIR 273,386 54,242
326,385 117,114

An aged analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

RERBME N ZENE SRR Z KRBT

T
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days 0-30H - 4
31-60 days 31-60H - -
61-90 days 61-90H - 19
Over 90 days 90H A E 52,999 62,849
52,999 62,872
The amounts are payable according to normal trade terms from RERER—RE S IERERI0E0H AT
30 to 90 days. fiF o
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Other payables H b e~ 70a 58,093 24,745
Deposits received B Uiz e 14,598 12,794
Accruals FEETE A 200,695 16,703
273,386 54,242
(i)  Included in other payables are amounts due to certain (y EHMEMNZKBESFEEMNARFRKEN

directors of the Company or its subsidiaries amounted to
HK$6,218,000 (2019: HK$2,220,000). Such amounts are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(i) Included in accruals and other payables are default (ii)
interests payable on a convertible bond and a corporate
bond payable amounted to approximately HK$31,825,000
(2019: Nil) and HK$140,940,000 (2019: Nil) respectively.
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B~ A %A/ T EE 7 IE6,218,000/%8 JT
(20194 : 2,220,000/87C) ° %5708
BEER - R AKREREER -

EEtER REMEMNRERERERE
ERENARESZENEOFNE &
%89 Bl 4 /31,825,0005 7T (20194F :
47 §2140,940,00078 70 (20194F : 4E) o
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TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

ENEZFE - Bt EAREMBEATRGE)

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, accruals and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

FENEZ7H - BT BERAREMENTIE L

FREERIRA T EHEHE ¢

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollar BT 230,048 28,988
Renminbi AR 96,337 87,301
New Taiwan dollar ek - 825
326,385 117,114
OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE
R E R
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum BEHEAERE -SEHAE
lease payments: NE/
Within one year —FA - 107
In the second to fifth year inclusive FIEFAT(BIEEERT) - 37
- 144
Less: Future finance charges B RREVEER - (15)
Present value of obligation under finance REEHEAERE
lease - 129
The present value of finance lease liabilities BERESERAENT :
is as follows:
Within one year —FA - 97
In the second to fifth year inclusive FCEFNF(BREERERSE) - 32
Present value of obligation under finance B EMEEAERE
lease - 129
The weighted average effective interest rates per annum of the RERE AN 2 T ERFHER2.5%

obligation under finance lease was 2.5% (2019: 2.5%).

Interest rates were fixed at contract date. The lease was on a

(20194 : 2.5%) °

FMEREHBMETE - BOKREEERESE
fixed repayment basis. The obligations under finance lease were A o MEMEARUEBEAZ HESEM
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased asset. SOEHEAF o
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150

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
AR ES

On 5 July 2016, the Group issued a 6% convertible bonds (“CB-
I”) at a par value of HK$30,000,000. The convertible bonds
mature four years from the issue date at their nominal value of
HK$30,000,000 or can be converted into the Group’s shares
at the bondholder’s option at a conversion price of HK$1.81
per share. The bondholder has right to redeem the bonds
after two years from the issue date at 108% of the principal
amount. The CB-I was separated into liability component and
equity component at the date of issue. The liability component
is subsequently measured at amortised cost and the equity
component is included in convertible bond reserve.

On 24 August 2016, the Group issued a 10.5% convertible bonds
(“CB-II") at a par value of HK$150,000,000. Under the terms
of CB-Il, the convertible bonds carry interest rate at 10.5% per
annum and are repayable after three years from the issue date at
their nominal value of HK$150,000,000 or can be converted into
the Group’s shares at the bondholder’s option at a conversion
price of HK$1.845 per share. The bond, which is guaranteed
by Mr. Zhu Xiaojun, the Chairman of the Company, and China
Consume Elderly Care Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. The conversion rights under the CB-
Il will lapse when the CB-II are repaid by the Group. Since the
conversion features of CB-ll fail the fixed-to-fixed requirement
for equity classification, the CB-Il was measured at fair value as
a whole, with changes in fair value recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which it arise.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the maturity
period of the CB-Il expired and no part of the CB-ll were
converted into shares of the Company (2019: nil), and the
CB-Il with the principal amount of HK$150,000,000 remained
outstanding as at that date (2019: HK$150,000,000).

H2016F7 A58 « AEEFETHEHE
30,000,000/%8 7T 2 62 A] # fx &% ([ AT A%
BEI1]) - AT ES B 81THHRFTEFEE
B|HR - JE R TE(E 430,000,000 Tk AT 1% (&
A ABRENER1.81EB T HiREH K
BAEE KD - EBHFEBEABERETH
HMFREASEE 2108%E B E 5 - Al
BEHINETARES ABESY REEE
Do BEHS HEREHEKATE  MER
BB BIET A AT AR & s o

R2016F 8 A248 » AEEETEE
150,000,000/8 7T 2 10.5/F A] A% E 5 ([ 7]
BIBREFN]) - BRIBTBRBRESIZER
AR EHFEF R E10.5%:T 8 » AR
BRI =FRIN ERAEA
150,000,000/ JT sk Al & &5 5 A AEEZ L
TR1.845B T R IREEBL AREER 2K
M- EFRREFELERER  BALTRRK
FEDHEEEZIERAR AR (AR B & AIER
RENKER o ATRREFITE T ERER
RAEEEE R R EH N - AT IRR%
EHITE T R RGN AR S EEE R
BEFNBKK - AR ATRRESI B E
ey B2 BEHEFERE - W%
BREFIEEZ AT EFE MATFEED
TR EEA 2 BN R & W R NFER ©

REZE2020F3A31H EF[E @ AJ Rk ES
Nz FEEfEm - BB E Al AR E R T
o E B ARNTIG (2019F + £) - UKk
7K %8 4150,000,0007% 7T 2 A] % & 1A
ZH#AE (20194 150,000,000 7T) °
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31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
ARRESR(E)
Movements in the convertible bonds recognised in the REFE BB R NHER 2 AR R E 5
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: wm
Financial
liabilities
Financial at fair value
liabilities through profit
at amortised or loss
costs (“CB-") (“CB-I") Total
REHEMAE BAFEEA
ZEMBRE BRCLEAR
(T ESR)  ((FRRES]) wst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 April 2018 7201854818 26,894 127,709 154,603
Interest accretion FIEEE 5,067 - 5,067
Fair value loss recognised BHERANFEER - 16,768 16,768
Interest paid BERFE (1,801) (4,755) (6,556)
As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 12019433318 ;1201944 818 30,160 139,722 169,882
Interest accretion T SHLE 5,719 - 5,719
Fair value loss recognised BHERANTEEE - 13,902 13,902
Interest paid ERFE (1,797) - (1,797)
As at 31 March 2020 72020434310 34,082 153,624 187,706
Representing: BRATES : 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Current portion BIHEAER > 187,706 141,522
Non-current portion JERNHAER - 28,360
187,706 169,882

Wi RAFEERZMNERZIRAFEERE
5,719,000/ 7T(20194F : 5,067,000/87T) &
13,902,000/ 7T (20194 : 16,768,000/&7T)
SH AR (HEEE13) ©

Note: The interest charges and fair value loss recognised for the current
year amounted to HK$5,719,000 (2019: HK$5,067,000) and
HK$13,902,000 (2019: HK$16,768,000) were included in finance
costs (note 13).
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31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

AR ES(E)
The fair values measurement of the derivative embedded to the ASMBRERIBEE ZTETARFETFZET
CB-Il were determined by using binomial model, were assessed BB HEMEA EXRER T EER
by an independent valuer, with the following key assumption: FATETEERE -
2020 2019
Valuation techniques BT Market Market
approach approach
miEE migA
Discount rate BRI 6.90% 18.37%
Risk free interest rate # [ B ) == 0.695% 1.38%
Time to maturity (years) B HARFRE (F) 0.4 0.4
Expected volatility TR BRI 23.00% 40.00%
Increase in discount rate and volatility by 1% and 1% would not BLIR R R IR I11% & 1% & % i Ak &
give a significant impact on the fair value of derivative component FOTED 2 A FEEKRERTE -
in convertible bonds.
32 CORPORATE BOND PAYABLE
R ATES
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Secured corporate bond payable EHEAENARES
— within one year ——FR 405,000 400,323
Movements of the corporate bond payable are as follows: JERTRRIEHFEBNT -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 April Y=l 400,323 344,678
Interest charge for the year FAFEER 5,677 55,645
Interest paid during the year FHRERFE (1,000) -
At 31 March M3A31H 405,000 400,323
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33

34

CORPORATE BOND PAYABLE (Continued)

A ARES (&)

On 8 May 2017, the Group issued a two-year corporate bond N2017F5A8H REBEHITALEA
payable with principal amount of HK$350,000,000 at interest 350,000,000 7T 2 M FF ERFE 1 A EIE S -
rate of 12% per annum for the first year and 13% per annum FRNERE—FRE_FDHA12[E K13
for the second year. The bond, which is guaranteed by Mr. Zhu B o ZEHF(BARREFEREELEER)
Xiaojun, the Chairman of the Company, is secured by the pledge EBRERFEHE S RIERER AR (AR
of the shares of China Consume Financial Holdings Company AIM 2 E M B A R)) &XChina Investment# 1%
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and China SERER(HFE25(0)) ©

Investment (note 25(b)).

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of RERERK - BN ARGEFRABRELAS
the corporate bond payable comprised of principal amount K EEFIE 5 B £350,000,000/%8 7T(2019
and accrued interest amounted to HK$350,000,000 (2019: % : 350,000,000 % 7T ) K 55,000,000 % 7T
HK$350,000,000) and HK$55,000,000 (2019: HK$50,323,000) (20194 : 50,323,000/ 7T) °

respectively.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES
FES Bt N BRI ROR

The amounts due to associates are interest free, unsecured and ENBERRIREARE BEHWAZE
repayable on demand. SKIEIE -

LEASE LIABILITIES

HEAE
31 March
2020
20204
3A31H
HK$°000
FEIT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHESE:
Within one year —FA 3,124
Within a period of more than one year but not more than — & A _H{EMR S THIR A
two years 3,205
Total lease liabilities payable ENAEaERSE 6,329
Less: Amount due for settlement within twelve months & : 2B+ — {8 B R~ 0B (3,124)
Amount due for settlement after twelve months shown 7B+ —{E B EL&NBERBEE
under non-current liabilities I BRFIE 3,205
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36

154

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

IRA R B 48
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
EERHAE BEREE R ADEE wet
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET T8 T
Authorised EE
At 1 April 2018, 72018F4 18 - 20194
31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and 3A31H * 2019F4A1H
31 March 2020 202063 H31H 9,000,000,000 900,000 - 900,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRHE
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, 720184 H18 - 20194
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 3A31H + 2019F4H1H
20203 A31H 716,190,000 71,619 673,503 745,122
OTHER RESERVES
Hih @5
Foreign Convertible
Merger  Statutory  currency  Share-based bonds
reserve  reserves franslation compensation reserve
(Note i) (Note ii) reserve reserve  (Note 31) Total
TERES
afRE  iERE  HERR Rtywe e
(W) (Witi) e e (W) L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AT TET Az Tz AT TET
Balance at 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 72018534318 201854 A 18 2 &8 22,002 23,895 45,140 22,339 7075 120451
Currency translation differences ERER - - (8,727) - - (8,727)
Share option scheme - value of employee B2l - B2 RKEE
service (Note 38) (fi38) - - - 2,762 - 2,762
Balance at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 72019534318 k201954418 2 &5 22,002 23,895 36,413 25,101 7,075 114,486
Currency translation differences EiEE - - (2,625) - - (2,625)
Exchange reserve realised on RHERNHBAAZRES
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 45) EEL) = = 466 = = 466
Share option scheme - value of employee  EEfRiESEl - B IRKER
service (Note 38) (Bi38) - - - (1,726) - (1,726)
Balance at 31 March 2020 202037318 2 &8 22,002 23,895 34,254 23,375 7,075 110,601
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OTHER RESERVES (Continued)
Hithfat s (42)

Notes:

U]

(ii)

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries transferred to the Company in connection with the
reorganisation for the listing of the shares of the Company.

Companies which are established in the PRC are required to
make appropriations to certain statutory reserves from profit for
the year after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years and
before profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to
be appropriated to such statutory reserve funds are determined
according to the relevant regulations in the PRC or at the discretion
of the board of the respective companies. Such statutory reserves
can only be used to offset accumulated losses, to increase capital,
or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees. These
statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the
Company.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
EEBERRE

Movements in the deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

o
()

(i)

AEEAGHRBEARRCETRAmER
ABEALRIN LT EEME R T A
RAZMHBRBRRAEEZ Z5

WA BIR 2 A RIARBRIHEF RETERR
WA AR RS A AEHE R DIRAT - {EAEF
EafhBEREETEERHRE - BREZE
EEREBEE AN RPEBERER IR
HARREZTEMRET - XFEERBE
AREEERFEE - BMER - HIERR
AITEALSE B 2 £ RB1EH - ZFEERBE T
BORTARRRZEERAA ©

EREBRBEZ ZEINT

Adjustment of
other intangible
assets to

the fair value
on business
combination
MEBEH
HEMELEE
ARZATME
HK$'000
FET

As at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019

4201854 A1H + 20193131 H 201954 A1H -

Transfer from liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale

Credit to consolidated income
statement (note 14)

BREESBABFIEHEZEE
ERNEBZARE
AR MR (HiE14)

36,153

(19,082)

As at 31 March 2020

M202053H31H 17,071
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)
EEBERE(E)

As at 31 March 2019, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised for the withholding tax as there is no distributable
profit for the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. The
income tax liability is not recognised where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses and unrecognised
temporary differences of approximately HK$1,008,020,000
(2019: HK$1,043,013,000) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses are subject to approval by
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and the PRC tax
authority respectively, approximately HK$556,332,000 (2019:
HK$520,175,000) of unrecognised tax losses have no expiry date
and the remaining loss of approximately HK$404,999,000 (2019:
HK$475,743,000) will expire in 5 years.

POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
BRDMEREERESE

A share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders’ written resolution of the Company dated 21
May 2007. On 28 November 2016, share options were granted
to directors and to selected employees under the Share Option
Scheme.

The subscription price determined by the board shall be at least
the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the grant date,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the grant
date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares. Options are
conditional on the employee completing 1 to 4 year’s service
(the vesting period). The options are exercisable starting 1 years
from the grant date. The Company has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

MR2019F3A31H » AR AEBERFBIK L
BB B A R E A] R F) o B B TE D
TRIERIECERIERE o (WAL AT 2 E
EF O - BT EEE T AR RER A
FBARZREER - BIFTSHFI A ER FHER ©

REBMAERNEBERARERY K
# 58 49 /& 1,008,020,000 78 7T ( 2019 4 :
1,043,013,000/8 7T ) + AJ 45 88 13 K 2R i &%
WA - ZEHEEBESFIMEEEHB
BRFEEE BRI E - 4556,332,000
(20194 :520,175,000/8 7T ) 2 R HER T
HEETRE M B E - T 4404,999,000
77T (20194F : 475,743,000 70 ) 2 E18 15
FABE N JE W ©

— BB EIEARIE AR R HE A2007F
SA21AZREA A EEESEM(BR
A ) - 2016511 8288 - KA AIRE
BAER B NE S REPORE B IR H B -

ABEREFSET VARSI RUATREA
ZE=EE  (@QBEORELEM(BAREE
BORBRMEBRMERABZYWTE : (b)
PR ERE A BRI & % A OB AP
BRMERMBZFHRTE : R()BH
ZH{E - BEREARTEB K1 E4FRER
(REH)DAEE - BRETRERLBH
EHFRITE - ARAABETEHMEEE
EUAR B SEE B -
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38 POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
BERAREREBEETE(E)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

AT 2 BBAERN B 2 2 8) ) AR R hniE

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FIITEEWT
Average
exercise price
per share Options
BRRHZ
FHITEE B IR R
HK$ (’000)
Er (F17)
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H 1.45 39,500
Lapsed B R - (4,000)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 720193 A31H K2019F4A1H 1.45 35,500
Lapsed BRK - (3,000)
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H 1.45 32,500
Movements in the number of share options granted are as ERLERESE 2EHHT
follows:
2020 2019
000 000
Ft7 F17
At beginning of the year REF] 35,500 39,500
Granted BN - -
Lapsed B (3,000) (4,000)
Exercised BATE = -
At end of the year RER 32,500 35,500
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38 POST-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
BERAREREBEETE(E)

The shares option outstanding under the Post-IPO share option
scheme at the end of the year have the following vesting date,

RERIRER B R AR E R BERRER 8 MR
TEZEREFBAEY - EmARRTE

expiry date and exercise price:

BT :

Exercise  Number of share options
price per outstanding at
Grant date Vesting date Expiry date share 31 March
BREMZ 3 A31 B RTEZ
R AH HEAH & A TEE BREHE
2020 2019
HK$ 000 ‘000
BT F7 Fir
28 November 2016 28 November 2017 27 November 2021 1.45 14,625 15,750
2016411 28H 2017411 A28H 2021411 A27H
28 November 2016 28 November 2018 27 November 2021 1.45 14,625 15,750
2016411 28H 201811 A28H 2021411 A27H
28 November 2016 28 November 2019 27 November 2021 1.45 1,625 2,000
2016411 A28H 2019411 A28H 2021411 A27H
28 November 2016 28 November 2020 27 November 2021 1.45 1,625 2,000
2016411 A28H 2020411 A28H 2021411 527H
Total #5t 1.45 32,500 35,500

For the current year, share option expenses of HK$1,726,000
were reversed (2019: share option expenses of HK$2,762,000
were recognised) in the consolidated income statement.
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

KATZ BRI T
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AARZHBEMRRE
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RIE AR Z xS 39,394 315,458
Interests in associates N WNEIP - 1,349 2,019
Property, plant and equipment E N YN ] 33 -
Other intangible assets EfhmAE 150 -
R 40,926 317,477
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e - ERNFIER
other receivables H At pE i sRIE 89,914 102,755
Cash and cash equivalents HehkReEHHEEE 121 147
i 90,035 102,902
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E b BT RIE 192,044 12,934
Convertible bonds Al AR ESH 187,706 141,522
Corporate bond payable R RRIES 405,000 400,323
Amounts due to subsidiaries B AR FIE 24,503 13,355
Amounts due to associates FEHE S A A /TAIE 663 7,818
809,916 575,952
Net current liabilities RBAEFHE (719,881) (473,050)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBARS (678,955) (155,573)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES = 28,360
- (28,360)
Net liabilities B8EFHE (678,955) (183,933)
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

ERE 2 BRREE)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AATRZHMBMRREKE)
(Continued)
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
EQUITY =
Share capital N 71,619 71,619
Share premium BAD BB 673,503 673,503
Reserves (note b) Gl iET) (1,424,077) (929,055)
Total equity R (678,955) (183,933)

The Company’s statement of financial position were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 16 July 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhu Xiaojun
KRE
Director

EF
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39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
RATZHEMRRER(E)
(b) Movements in reserves of the Company (b) EATZHEEE
Convertible  Share-based
bonds compensation Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
ARRES
#E ROBEEE RiER @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2018 #2018F3A31H 7,075 22,339 (857,235) (827,821)
Adjustment on initial application SEPN R ]
of HKFRS 9 FOTMIEL 2 A - - (997) (997)
At 1 April 2018 #2018F4A1H 7,075 22,339 (858,232) (828,818)
Loss for the year KEEBRE - - (102,999) (102,999)
Share option scheme - valug of BT E - EEREG
employee service EE - 2,762 - 2,762
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 201938318
20194818 7,075 25,101 (961,231) (929,055)
Loss for the year AEEHE - - (493,296) (493,296)
Share option scheme - value of B2 - EERY
employee service B1E - (1,726) - (1,726)
At 31 March 2020 #2020E3 A31H 7,075 23,375 (1454527)  (1,424,077)
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
MR EE

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities can be AEENCRIEERSRBENSENT

categorised into the following.

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets SHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEHEKAT R CRVEE
Trade receivables JEUE 5 F0E 1,568 4,390
Deposits and other receivables Re RH M EWFIE 114,159 115,224
Loans receivable JEWE 148,312 135,846
Amounts due from associates JRE W & R | FOR 6,797 6,469
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 5,051 1,763
275,887 263,692
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKAYRz emEaE
Trade payables FERE HFRIE 52,999 62,872
Accruals and other payables FEFTE R R A FER FRIE 273,386 54,242
Obligations under finance lease BB THEFIE - 129
Convertible bonds AR ES 34,082 30,160
Corporate bond payable BN R AEIES 405,000 400,323
Amounts due to associates AN kNEIE O 2,187 2,445
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,329 —
773,983 550,171
Financial liabilities at fair value through BATEFABRZSRIBE
profit or loss
Convertible bonds AT R ES 153,624 139,722
927,607 689,893
40.1 Financial risk factors 401 MEEKREZE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
MHRRER(E)

40.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Management regularly manages the financial risks of the
Group. Because of the simplicity of the financial structure
and the current operations of the Group, no major hedging
activities are undertaken by management.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Transactions are mainly conducted in
the functional currency of each group entity and
therefore the foreign currency risk is considered to
be minimal. The conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
loans receivable (Note 26), convertible bonds and
corporate bond payable which are carried at fixed
interest rate. At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,
the Group has no significant cash flow interest-rate
risk as the loans receivable, convertible bonds and
corporate bond payable carried interests which were
not based on floating interest rates. The following
table details the interest rate profile of the Group at
the end of the reporting period.

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

40.1 MEBRERE)
BEEEREEANEE ZWHREE - @
RASKE 2 HBRBRRGZERE -
WEREWAEITEAERE HER -

(a)

(b)

SRR

AEEEFERTBERTEZE -
RHPEBENEREERZYER
BHETT - EUINE R AR AR
1K o 5 AR S B INE B8 ST
B BT AT 2B A 2 SN B AR
KB

FE =g

AEEZFERRBEBREER
ER(Ws2e) « IETEFIERFTE
ZARRES RENARES
M2020F3 A31H 201943 A
318 AEBVEERRERE
FERER  RRABWKE - 7]
MR ES REM A RIESIEIEZ
BFIEE B o TRFVAEER
WEBRZFEARMR -

2020 2019

Effective Effective
interest rate HK$°000 interest rate HK$'000
BERFI= FET BEREME FET

Convertible bonds BRES

- CB-l — AR ES 18% 34,082 18% 30,160
- CB-ll —aRRESI 10.5% 153,624 10.5% 139,722
Corporate bond payable [ERREIES 49.5% 405,000 13% 400,323
592,706 570,205

Less: Loans receivable B EWER 7% to 15% 7% t0 15%
7%%15% (148,312) 7%%15% (135,846)
Total net borrowings BETEE 444,394 434,359

Note: The effective interest rates for CB-Il and corporate
bond payable include additional interest rates of
10.5% and 36.5% per annum per annum as a result of
the Group’s default in repayments of these convertible
bond and corporate bond upon their maturities.

Wit AT E SN R EN A FE S
Y B B A X B 1 M a0 A R
10.50/0&36.50/0 ’ J?\Z%ZK%
ERZERRES R ARE
7 5 BRI FAA K o
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

164

MRRARER(E)
40.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 40.1 MERBEEZE(E)
(c) Credit risk (c) FEE=EE

The Group is exposed to credit risk and the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets is the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition, having considered
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated:

. internal credit rating;
. external credit rating;

. actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the customer’s ability to meet its obligations;

. actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

. significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including
changes in the payment status of customer in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the customer.

AEBEAZEERR - MAKE
PRERRR e R E ERBHN &S
EERR - REREMBHREKM
2V BEEEREREENERER
=0

AEBEEENITERRZE
EHMARMY - bES RS HRE
—EREFEEERRELTRE
#Bhne EFEEERRETEE
BINE - AEBEHEER RS H
HIB A Z R R R =R 1) P RER
A AR OMRERETTIER -
WEEAERNAEEEAEN
BR - LEHEMATIIER

RBMEERIA:
o SMNEMEERTAR:

s BEHEHEPETHEAML
EAHREREHHNE
% MBHEERANE
R IEEE K

s BEBASEPEERED
BERNTFAREAREE)

s EFEFEHRARTA/NE
AREH  BRAKFEAE
FRNRARES REP
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

MRRABRER(E)
40.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 401 BIHEERBEEE)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) EEEEE)
(i)  Trade receivables () EZRERTE
The Group applies the simplified approach to AEBEEABLERES
provide for expected credit losses for trade B S B E SRS 2
receivables prescribed HKFRS 9, which permits 2 5 WA IRTE B S
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision EEERE EATR%
for these receivables. LREWFIEFE R TR
EERE -
The loss allowance for trade receivables was B S REWHRIENEERE
determined as follows: EEWT
More than
0-30days 31-60days 61-90 days 90 days Total
0£30H 31£60H 61Z90H 90H ML @st
31 March 2020 2020%3H31H
Expected loss rate EHEEE 0% 0% 0% 100%
Gross carrying amount REAE(FET)
(HK$'000) 18 - 1,550 9,153 10,721
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EERE(F&T) - - - 9,153 9,153
31 March 2019 2019%3H31H
Expected loss rate TEHEIRE 0% 0% 0% 97.09%
Gross carrying amount FEAE(FET)
(HK$°000) 1,640 1,622 890 8,185 12,337
Loss allowance (HK$°000) EtE#E(FET) - - - 7,947 7,947
The above expected credit losses also B IR E R 1B INAT R
incorporated forward looking information. RIREIEERY
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BBRBRER(E)
40.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

166

Loans receivables, amounts due from
associates and other receivables

The Group uses four categories for those
receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each
of those categories. These internal credit risk
ratings are aligned to external credit ratings.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning
the Group’s expected credit loss model is as
follows:

40.1 BEEREE(E)
(c) =EREEE)

(ii)

JEWEZN - [EY I &2 mlt
B R A fEH R

ARG B 15 5% F R WGK A
AEERER - ARBRE(E
&2 2 & B TE & JE Rl A &
BEESN - ZERBE
ERRFREINEERT
M=

AEEEREEEBBREL
PRIARIRARAR AR T

Basis for recognition of

Category Group’s definition of categories expected credit loss provision

LWl AEBYRERNER BRARCEBERENESE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a 12 months expected losses. Where the
- strong capacity to meet contractual cash expected lifetime of an asset is less

flows

EPRAORAREEBRENREEHNRER
8

Underperforming

Receivables for which there is a significant
B increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if

than 12 months, expected losses are

measured at its expected lifetime
1218 A ehTaHAE 18 - BN TR BRI B

1208 A 2 AMEE - FRHEBRENE
EHGFEYE

interest and/or principal repayments are

90 days past due

FEERBBZIZNNEEIE  WHE
&/ SRS EFEPIOK - AEEREE

[ B 2 3 A

Non-performing
TR one year past due

MBER A ETEE—F

Write-off

borrowers are bankruptcy

FER/ A EFTBMME - BEES

3 B H UK B Skt 500 B

Interest and/or principal repayments are

Interest and/or principal repayments are
b/ two years past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery or

Lifetime expected losses
> HATEEAE 1R

Lifetime expected losses

e RER ) S

Asset is written off

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

AEBERBREBHRE
ERBFLEERE 8
HEERBAR - £57 %
BEHEEBERR A%
B & E 5 & 8B WA R
3B 1E B 18 X3 3 AT AE 1 A
REEBBIBIEL AR -
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

PR EREE ()

40.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

40.1 BEEREE(E)

(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) 1=EEEE)
(i) Loans receivables, amounts due from (i) JEKEFR - EWHE LA
associates and other receivables (Continued) FOIE K B At S E (4E)
In accordance with the Group’s internal credit RIBRNEEBANILEEFTR
rating assessment, substantially all of the loans R BRI D EWRE
receivable, amounts due from associates and B EWNEE N T RIER
other receivables are performing and 12 months HAb R RIER TR B IE
expected losses method is applicable to these o w128 A A H E 1R R
receivables. An allowance for loans receivable HARZERKFIE - F
was recognised for the year amounted to A B WS SR E R R B
HK$719,000 (2019: HK$1,952,000). No 1% & 719,000 7% 7T ( 2019
impairment loss on amounts due from associates F 1,952,000/ 7T) © HE4E
and other receivables was recognised in respect PAFEREREWEZ A
of the current year (2019: Nil). A 5RIB K B b FE W IE /Y
SRAEE T8 (20194F « #£) -
(i) Cash at bank and bank deposits (iii)  RITH 2 RI/ITIFA
The table below shows the details of bank TRINRARMERRTFE
deposit balances maintained at the end of the BRI TR SRR FEIS
reporting period:
Rating
ST AR 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at banks and bank wITEE R
deposits RITIF K A2-A3 4,779 1,548

The rating represents long-term credit rating
provided by Moody’s, an internationally
recognised credit rating agency. A rating
within the “A” category is judged to be upper-
medium grade and are subject to low credit
risk under the rating regime of Moody’s. Given
that significant portion of the bank deposits are
placed with banks that are independently rated
with high credit rating with no default history in
past years, management of the Group considers
that the credit risk on the bank balances and
bank deposits is limited.

AR s (—HBERRA
HEEFRRE) ZHH
RHEEFR - BaETR
HETHT AR AEAGF
MRHPLEER  EERR
K- ERNARIEOORTHF
RO FEBRREBLIRG
EERA - BRBEFE
I EKELIRTT -
AEEEEER/RITHE
B EBRITERNEERR
BR -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
MHEREE(E)
40.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
reported a net loss of approximately HK$295,458,000
(2019: HK$257,386,000) and had a net cash
inflow from operating activities approximately of
HK$9,338,000 (2019: outflow from operating activities
approximately of HK$49,146,000). As at 31 March
2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$5,051,000.

In view of the aforementioned, a series of remedial
measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure have been
taken to improve its financial and liquidity position of
the Group as a whole. Details are disclosed in Note 4.1
to the consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of reporting date to
the contractual maturity date. The accounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

401 HEEBEZEE)

(d)

H 2020 %3 A31 8 It F
B AEEHSEBEFHEY
295,458,000 & JT ( 2019 F
257,386,000 /& 7T ) © M £ & &
HELAZESREA /?%Eﬂjtf'r
9,338,000/8 7T (20194F : £&£&7F
BEE 2 IR &R 449,146,000
HBIT) o R2020F3H31H © &
SEZREABRESEBEEE A
5,051,0007 7T

N FatEE - BRI R 2
HWREBARBREERES -
RARNEEER B RRBE
ST - BAFIBERES MR
%Bﬁu£4.1ﬁﬂﬁ °

TREBRGEEBEZEHNHA
AT HRE 2 A BB B Bl D AT AR
KEZSRARE -  RTAWEL
B R RN 5% (8] R] 4% 2 SR 5K
ZERFAHREZANRMEAR

AN E
EnE ©

Total
Within Between undiscounted Carrying
1 year 1to 5 years cash flows amount
REHEBRS
1R 1EZ5E mEAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET FE FE
Non-derivative financial liabilities 474+ ¢REARE
As at 31 March 2020: R202053A318 :
Trade payables [ENE 5708 52,999 - 52,999 52,999
Accruals and other payables [ETE R KA MM A 273,386 - 273,386 273,386
Convertible bonds AR RS 35,695 - 35,695 34,082
Corporate bond payable ERR TF%%’ 405,000 - 405,000 405,000
Amounts due to associates NLNGIE 2,187 - 2,187 2,187
Lease liaibilities HEaE 3,623 3,061 6,684 6,329
Obligations under finance lease HEMEAR = = - -
772,890 3,061 775,951 773,983
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeman
As at 31 March 2020: #202063A831R :
Convertible bond (note) AR ES (M) 153,787 - 153,787 153,624

Note: This is categorised based on contractual terms of
redemption at maturity on the assumption that there
were no redemption or conversion of convertible
bonds outstanding at 31 March 2020.

Hiat T ER B HARE R 2 & 415
AL B 3R N0 4 B (B 5k B i 0
202053 A31 HiHAREE Z A
BREHMFADLE -
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BB REBEE(E)
40.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

401 HEEBREZEE)

(d) mEBELEE(E)

Total
Within Between  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 110 5 years cash flows amount
AERER
1R 15555 MEEHE REE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities F{74:$@EE
As at 31 March 2019: R2019F3A31H :
Trade payables ENE 5508 62,872 - 62,872 62,872
Accruals and other payables [EEtE AR A ENFUR 54,242 - 54,242 54,242
Convertible bond (Note) AR ES (M) 1,800 30,893 32,693 30,160
Corporate bond payable B ARIES 406,875 - 406,875 400,323
Amounts due to associates R E AR 2,445 - 2,445 2,445
Obligations under finance lease BERERIE 107 36 143 129
528,341 30,929 559,270 550,171
Derivative financial liabilities TEERER
As at 31 March 2019: R2019F3A31H :
Convertible bond (note) aRESR M) 167,856 - 167,856 139,722

Note: This is categorised based on contractual terms of
redemption at maturity on the assumption that there
were no redemption or conversion of convertible
bonds outstanding at 31 March 2019.

40.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group’s capital structure is being reviewed annually to
ensure these objectives are to be achieved.

Biat e T E R B SR IE Bl 2 A 4915
SRV B 3% I 4% B [0 ok i A
20193 31 HEAREE Z A
BREAN T IADHE -

40.2 EXEMRER

AEBEEREN B R RERASE
BEAFHEICE - URBRREHRE RN R
HiFsmEREN SR - ARRFREZ
BARGEE AP EE AR

RRFRBRERERE  AEEREH
ERNTERRZBEERE REOELXT
IR - BT EBEEREE
%% o

AEEEeSFRABEAERE  ARRE

FZEFRR -
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BB REBEE(E)
40.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were as

40.2 EXEREEE)
A20204 201963 831H 2 BESR

follows: BHENT -
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Convertible bonds (Note 31) AR EH (H7231) 187,706 169,882
Corporate bond payable (Note 32) e R BMESH(H13232) 405,000 400,323
Lease liabilities (Note 34) MEaENH34) 6,329 -
Obligations under finance lease (Note 30) BB E#AYE(H7:730) - 129
Total debts BIRMAER 599,035 570,334
Total assets BEHRE 420,703 529,089
Gearing ratio BEAGEE 142.4% 107.8%

Note: The calculation of gearing ratio is based on the total debts
divided by total assets as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019.

40.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2020 by level of the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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Wia . BEABLETIIZ2020F3A31H
N20194 3 A31H 2 EHEAFER LA
BEBEE -

40.3 AFEMET

TR E A FEMMBEERE
ABIBEFE R A K ER202043 A 31
BRAFEIIGZERTA - EREA
BIBRAT=ERFESRIE

s HREEXRBBHEEFEMSZH
BORERAR) (F14) -

s FIRMEREMENIINZE AR
B AHEBAREBREEXRE
ARERTEZ(AER) SEER
(AR B ER) B/ (F28) -

o WIENUABEMSBEBEAREZ
BESBEHABENTAE
R ABIR) (F3MR) -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
MBEEERE(E)

40.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The valuation techniques used for the valuation of fair value
of convertible bonds and the movement of the convertible
bonds recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss during the year are disclosed in Note 31.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

40.3 AFEMGET(E)

RARMEE AR ES AT EZ HERIMN
ARRERNBIRATER AfBm BHER
REBMBEZRRES 2 Z BT
B1HKEE -

RERTSEEEZEMTAZ AFETD
BRRE Bz MISHREFERSLE < 8
EBTHI5 TR 8 S K E IR S P
EIHE - KR TTEEE - RER
SRERBIGREZTS - MABR
ENERTETCEERYMERSZ
Bt F25) o ZZTATIIAEIR -

WIRERMSEEZ SR TAZ AT
BETERGERMERE - ZFHERM
ROMRAIES Z AIBEMSEE - 1
MBEERADKEE R FEMTBIE -
Wt E TARXFEMFEEHEAB AR
B RABREE - ARTATIIIASR
28

i — AR ZIRE AR ABURL IFRIE A
BEMSHE  AIZTAIIAEIR -

171



Vestate Group Holdings Limited EiREEIZERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BB REBEE(E)
40.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial liabilities

172

40.3 AV EMGE(E)
TRENAEBIRATEAZEZEHE

that are measured at fair value. R
As at 31 March 2020 R2020463531H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R P E3R “sr
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Liabilities &
Convertible bonds ARRES
— financial liabilities at fair value —RATEFAERZ
through profit or loss *RAR - - 153,624 153,624
Total financial liabilities measured BATEEZeBaBesE
at fair value - - 153,624 153,624
As at 31 March 2019 R2019%3531H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ESF Fo ERE 5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FETL FETL
Liabilities af
Convertible bonds AR ES
— financial liabilities at fair value —-RAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss cRaf - - 139,722 139,722
Total financial liabilities measured BATEAEZEHAGELEE
at fair value - - 139,722 139,722
There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during the RARFEE - F14 - B2 R EIREH
year. mEEE o
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1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
BB REBEE(E)
40.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

METHELECEBEYR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

40.3 AV EMGE(E)

ARBEERR/NEA P FRERNILE
ERATIRNERMEER SR AERE
BEREATERS -

TRAVNAEEHBETHELZAER
B BRASKIFRSEY - BMELTHEL
ZRERERSREIRKESRENAE
BFaReRERPBEARELDRERE
ZBfE-

Obligations
Corporate under
bond Convertible finance Leases
Borrowings payable bonds lease liabilities Total
P MERE
B8 QAAEF THRRES A HEEE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
As 1 April 2018 R2018F4H1H 5,130 344,678 154,603 226 - 504,637
Financing cash outflows BERSRM (5,130) - (6,556) (97) - (11,783)
Finance costs for the year FENHBER 17 55,645 21,835 11 - 77,508
Interest paid included in operating st ABRLHEEHEL
cash flows ERFE (17) - - (11) - (28)
As 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H - 400,323 169,882 129 - 570,334
Adjustments upon application [ERE B BImELE
of HKFRS 16 F16HEAE - - - (129) 8,314 8,185
At 1 April 2019 1201954 A1H - 400323 169,882 - 8314 578519
Recognition upon new leases AEERIUHHEERER
entered by the Group - - - - 5,990 5,990
Financing cash outflows BERSRM - (1,000) (1,797) (13) (4,734) (7,544)
Finance costs for the year ERHHBER - 146,617 51,446 13 408 198,484
Interest payable included in accruals =t Azt & M & fER
and other payables IR ERFIE - (140,940)  (31,825) - - (172,765)
Termination of lease agreements & |HEZH - - - - (3,649) (3,649)
As 31 March 2020 #A2020F3A31H - 405,000 187,706 - 6,329 599,035
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COMMITMENTS
EIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EEE
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, apart from those 20204 220193 A31H » Bt
disclosed in note 22, the Group had no significant capital 22FTIEEIN  AEEWEERNEAR
commitments. HEHE o
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments and 20193 A31 ARIEFMTEE - ¥
turnover rental expenses under non-cancellable operating NE - BEREM - BEREBHB 2T
leases in respect of retail shops, offices, warehouses and BEECEHER AE RERENTK K
furniture, fixtures and equipment are at 31 March 2019 ReEBAECHSER QBT
follows:
2019
HK$°000
TFETT
Land and buildings T RIEF
— No later than 1 year —15FK 10,791
— Later than 1 year and no later than —1FEBBETZREF
5 years 3,836
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 14,627
Furniture, fixtures and equipment B - RERRE
— No later than 1 year —1FR 354
— Later than 1 year and no later than —1FZETZREF
5 years 771
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,125
15,752

Leases were negotiated for varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal options. The operating lease rentals
of certain outlets were based on the higher amount of the
minimum guaranteed rental and the sales level based
rental. The above operating lease commitments included
commitments for fixed rent only.

In addition, rental payable in some cases included
additional rent, calculated according to gross revenue, in
excess of the fixed rent.

MELERRAGTRAFY - HSE
RN B - B TP 2L HEM
IRERERERS MABEREE
ZHE(ARSERE)FE - LillgE
MEAEEBRETERE 2 HAE -

AN - ENESEX LT T BEE8
B ez M e (IRIRW R AR

H)e
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43 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

EXBBALIRS
(a) Key management compensation

(b)

During the year, the Group had the following significant

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

(a) FEEEASHME

ZAN QLI SCEA ] Y N

EITTIIER

transactions with related parties: R -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Key management compensation FTEEEABHE
Basic salaries, housing allowances, HEAFH< - EEERL -
other allowances and benefits-in-kind Efb2ak M EWMF = 8,639 4,862
Share options expenses BB AR 270 3,261
Contributions to pension plans RIKEFT B 18 18
8,927 8,141
Note: Wt

Key management includes directors and certain senior
management who have important roles in making operational and

financial decisions.

Year-end balances

FTEEBABBEEERETREERNE
REREEERECSREEAS ©

(b) FRER

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Amounts due from associates i3 H&Eﬁ%%’&jﬂ 18
— Loan to associates (Note 22) BRTHENR (M iE22) 6,797 6,469
Amount due from a related party e —H BEESE A +5RIE
— Refundable advance — ALRETEN RIB(HT7#25(b))
payment (Note 25(b)) 83,792 97,883
Amounts due to related parties JERTE TREESE A +5RI8
— Other payables (Note 29(i)) — E At FE SRIE (H2£29()) 6,218 2,220

175



Vestate Group Holdings Limited EiREEIZERER AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

44

176

SUBSIDIARIES
i) PN
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March T 5 AR 20204F KX 201943 A31H 2 = &
2020 and 2019: ESPNCIETIE- 3
Particulars of
Place of incorporation Principal activities and  issued share capital/ Equity
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
EMR LR FEEBR BRITRE/
ACEL: ERERER BEREt A RAFH PR
2020 2019
Directly held:
EERE
Genius Eam Investments Limited ~ The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 90 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each
REREBR T EBRAES  BRAAF REER/BE ORERIET
il
Silver Summit Ventures Limited The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
limited liability company Hong Kong US$1 each
REERBR R REBRUES ARAF REER/BE 1RERIET Bk
Indirectly held:
BEEE
Artemis Footwear Limited M® Hong Kong, limited liability Retailing of footwear in 10,000,000 ordinary = 100%
company Taiwan shares
SCEARETE R AR AR e BE - BRAA TEER/AE 10,000,000/ & i
Ascent Pride Investments The British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding in 10,000 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Limited () liability company Hong Kong US$1
AHRERRAR W RERUES  ARAF REER/BE 10,000 BRI T2
il
Asia Glory Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
ELEREBR AT BE - BRAA REER/BE TS
Billion International Trading The PRC, wholly foreign-owned  Retailing of footwear in US$1,000,000 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Company Limited enterprise limited liability the PRC
company
REBRES(LE)ERAR hE - NEBELFBR AT TEHE /B 1,000,000% 7T
Carlyon Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Money lending in 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RESEBBERRR M BE - BRAA g/ &% 100,000f% & %
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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MR (E)
Particulars of
Place of incorporation Principal activities and  issued share capital/ Equity
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
ALK TEEBR BRIRE/
NAER ERERER REMEH aMRAFE ksS4
2020 2019
China Consume Financial Holdings Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding, 60,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Company Limited company e-Commerce and shares
e-Payment business in
Hong Kong
HERESRERARAR BE BRRA REERR  EFEBRE  60,000,0000% EREK
SBAET Ve
Citiward Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
EMERAR BE BRRA REER/BF TS AL
Million Fortune Star Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Corporate secretary 1 ordinary share 100% 100%
company
EREBRRA BE BRRA rEWE TS AL
Senet International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Holding of trademarks in 10 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company Hong Kong
RaBRARAR &R ARRAE BEBE/BE 108 E B
Silver Focus International Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Inactive 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company
ERERBR R BE ARRAE TEEBEE 1008 & @ %
Smart Sky International (Beijing) ~ The PRC, wholly foreign-owned  Inactive HK$2,800,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise limited liability
company
BRERES (R BRRF HE - INEEELFARAF TEEBEE 2,800,000/ 7T
Smart Trend Trading (Shenzhen)  The PRC, wholly foreign-owned  Retailing of footwear in HK$41,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited enterprise, limited liability the PRC
company
HEEH(RINBRAR hENEEECEBRAR  TEEE/ T 41,000,000/ 7T
Smarter Trading (Beijing) Company The PRC, wholly foreign-owned  Retailing of footwear in the HK$40,000,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise, limited liability PRC
company
BEHESH LX) ERAR hEHNEEELEARAR  TEEE/H 40,000,000/ 7T
Surplus Jet Investments Limited The British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%
liability company Hong Kong
BRTABRAT RERUEE  BRAR RERR,/EE 1RERIET Eidik
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

M AR (4E)
Particulars of
Place of incorporation Principal activities and  issued share capital/ Equity
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
AL 3L 3 B I TEEBR BRTRE/
NAER ERERER REMEH aMRAFE Jiigss £
2020 2019
Trunari Enterprises Company Hong Kong, limited liability Holding of trademark in 22,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
ENACEARRT B BRAA BEER/ B8 22,000,0000% & iR
Walker Group (Shanghai) Company The PRC, wholly foreign-owned  Retailing of footwear in US$200,000 100% 100%
Limited enterprise, limited liability the PRC
company
BRZERES(LE)BRAR  HE IEEECEERLAR  REEE/TE 200,000% 7T
Walker Group China Company Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Limited company Hong Kong
BEEE(PE)BRAR &R BRRA REER /&S 1005 & @
Walker Group International Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Company Limited company Hong Kong
BEEE(ER)BRAR &R BRRA REER/EE 1005 & 4@ %
Carlyon Trading Limited (9 Hong Kong, limited liability Trading and investment 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%
company
RERESHRBRRR W BE BRRA BHRKRE 1008 % 8%
Walker Shop Footwear Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding and 500,000,000 ordinary 50% 100%
Limited (et company (9 retailing of footwear in shares
Hong Kong
Walker Shop Footwear B BRAR T RAZRRTERE/ 500,000,000 & &
Limited ) 0
Guangzhou Yinghui Trading The PRC, wholly foreign-owned  Trading of footwear in HK$1,500,000 100% 100%
Company Limited* enterprise limited liability the PRC
company
ENBEZSERAFN hE - NEEELEBR AT BEESE/TH 1,500,000/ 7
Guoxin Wangfu Information and The PRC, foreign and domestic  Information technology RMB100,000,000 85% 85%
Technology Company Limited" owned enterprise limited
liability company
BEREERRBRAR hE - MEEENSERE EERR AK100,000,0007C

BRR7
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

2019/2020% F$ Annual Report 2019/2020

M AR (4E)
Particulars of
Place of incorporation Principal activities and  issued share capital/ Equity
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations registered capital interest held
ALK TEEBR BRIRE/
NAER ERERER REMEH aMRAFE ksS4
2020 2019
Shanghai Shenglv Advertisement  The PRC, foreign-owned Sales and marketing RMB16,000,000 85% 85%
Company Limited" enterprise limited liability
company
LERREEERAR HE - HMEERBRAR M2 HRE AE%16,000,0007C
Guoxin Quanlian Convenience The PRC Rendering of franchise RMB100,000,000 43.35% -
Stores Limited and management
services to convenience
stores
BiE2BENERRAR hE RENERHEZER AR#100,000,0007C
BRI

t

The English names of certain companies represent the best effort
by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese
names as they do not have official English names.

Notes:

a.

The company name of Carlyon Exchange Limited has changed to
Carlyon Properties Limited on 17 May 2018 and disposed to an
independent third party on 6 June 2018.

At 1 November 2018, 66% shares of Carlyon Investment Holdings
Limited had been transferred to third parties and Vestate Group
Holdings Limited reminds holding 34% of its shares.

The Chinese name of #ZIZS B HRAE has changed to #8125
£ BB AT on 7 March 2019.

The company name of Walker International Footwear Limited has
changed to Carlyon Exchange Limited on 29 October 2018 and has
further changed to Carlyon Trading Limited on 8 May 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group disposed of
100% equity in Artemis Footwear Limited, details of which are set
out in note 45.

In July 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the proposed disposal of 49% equity interest in a
subsidiary, Ascent Pride Investment Limited (“Ascent Pride”).
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 30 June 2020,
the proposed disposal of 49% equity interest of Ascent Pride was
cancelled.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, The Group disposed of
50% equity interest in Walker Shop Footwear Limited (“Walker
Shop Footwear”). Upon completion of the disposal, Walker Shop
Footwear is still regarded as a subsidiary of the Company, details
of which are set out in note 45.

e

ETRARWEIEA LR - AR AE
gﬁ%%@@%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬂqﬂi%%
R o

HRIESKBRER A ZAREHEER2018
FE5RI7THER AR ESHWERRAR @ I
2018F6 A6RHET—ZBUE=H -

HR2018F 11 18 - HERILEZEBRBRA
Al66% 2 BB EEBREE =7  BHEEEE
BRAEBRA RMDAREE H34%M% 45 °

1RIE S IEAR A F 2B XAHER2019
FIR7TEENARBEDSERMBERAF -

BEFRBEEXERARNZARGEBIR
2018 F10 A29B Bk AR E SR IBER A
A) WH20194F5 A8 HE — £ B W AKIE
BESERAR -

NEZE202043A31HILEE » REMEE
SR TSR AR AT 2 100% M5 - 515
A FE45 -

MR2018F7H - AEEFRER T E KB
NEIABIEEERAG ([ EM]) 2 49%M% 1
IV B E W o MRS B R 0 722020
¢6ﬁﬂ 30H -« &L EF 2 49% D
EUH o

REZE202063A31 B IEFE - REETE
Walker Shop Footwear Limited ( [ Walker
Shop Footwear | ) 2 50% % # - Fepk &
1% - Walker Shop Footwear{[J##15 A2 A A
BV A R] - FEEEAMIRE45 o
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
M AR (4E)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material
non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group that has material non-controlling interests.

BREXFERESZFZENBLRFE

TREJNAEBMERE TR ER IS
BB R RS

Place of
incorporation Proportion of
and principal ownership interests and
place of voting rights held by (Loss)/Gain allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interest  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interest
2k 1 R L 3t B FERBEEERERERR FEREREN
) PNCIECEE REBREHE REE LA (B8), W Rt FERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
% HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET FET TET
Walker Shop Footwear Hong Kong 50 (5,407) - (3,007) -
Limited (“Walker Shop”)
Walker Shop Footwear Limited ~ &%
(['walker Shop)
Other immaterial 939 (789) (143) (1,327)
subsidiaries
HinFEAMBE AR
(4,468) (789) (3,150) (1,327)

During the current year, the Group disposed of its 50% equity
interest in Walker Shop on 31 May 2019 with the remaining 50%
equity interest in this entity held by the Group.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

RAREE - REBN2019F5A31BHEE
M Walker ShopZ 50% % # - It B 58 v E &
50%RERASEER -

BA BRI e < N S B 1 B B 7%
BRBIZEIIMT - THMBERBRE RS
B2 TR 3HAT 288 ©

Walker Shop Walker Shop

31 March

2020

20203H831H

HK$°000

FET

Current assets MBEE 64,168
Non-current assets EMENEE 1,734
Current liabilities mENEE (71,562)
Non-current liabilities EMBBE (354)
Net assets BEFE (6,014)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NATHEB ANEERE= (3,007)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR A (3,007)
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
MEAR(E)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material

non-controlling interest (Continued)

Walker Shop (Continued)

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

BEEAFEREZZFZEMNBRATFE
(&)

Walker Shop(#)

1 June

2019

to

31 March

2020
20196 A1HZE
202043 H31H

HK$°000
TFET

Revenue Wegs 2,674
Cost of sales SHE RN (782)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R A (10,673)
Administrative expenses THER (2,317)
Other income Hpg A 296
Finance costs S ER (12)
Loss for the year KEEFEE (10,814)
Loss attributable to: JEAL 1S -

— owners of the Company . YNEIE =N (5,407)

— non-controlling interests — IR (5,407)
Loss for the year NEEEE (10,814)
Net cash outflows from operating activities TR 2 IR MR (6,560)
Net cash inflows from investing activities WEFRE 2 IREMAFEE 443
Net cash inflows from financing activities RERE 2 RS MAFEE 5,627
Net cash outflow R MEFEE (490)

Details of the results, assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries
with immaterial non-controlling interests are not disclosed as the

amounts involved are insignificant.

BAFEAGFERERZMBRARIEE &
ERBBEZHBYERE ERFENEHE
- EL I o
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

HEMEAR
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 (a) MNEZE2020F3A31BLFEHEME
March 2020 AHE
On 24 May 2019, Genius Earn Investments Limited, an R2019%F5824H » KRB ZE2EW
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an BRAIAREEBRARE —EE
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of VEZAFE VR LEE—REW
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Artemis Footwear BAmXNa RiEXERAA(IX
Limited (“Artemis”), and 50% equity interest in a subsidiary, BOKHT ) 2 100% I & — KB 2~
Walker Shop Footwear Limited (“Walker Shop Footwear”), Al Walker Shop Footwear Limited
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$2,500,000, of ([ walker Shop Footwear | ) Z 50%
which HK$100,000 and HK$2,400,000 was estimated to Pt - @32 H(E/52,500,000/87T
be attributable to the disposal of Artemis and Walker Shop fih 7 100,000 7% 7T f 2,400,000 % 7T 73
Footwear respectively. Artemis and Walker Shop Footwear RIR B 1 & X 3 K HT &2 Walker Shop
are principally engaged in the retailing of footwear in Taiwan Footwear o 3 i# K Hf 2 Walker Shop
and Hong Kong respectively. The disposal was completed FootwearF ZH RIE B ER BB E
on 31 May 2019. TEEE - HER2019F5A831HE
B o
Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement entered by the 1B 4% 7~ &= [ B2 Walker Shop Footwear
Group and other shareholder of Walker Shop Footwear. EMmBRRTZLoBRRBE - 8BA
The Group is able to exercise control over Walker Shop Walker Shop Footwear 2 50% J% ##
Footwear although 50% equity interest in Walker Shop BASERE - AEE L Walker
Footwear is held by the Group, accordingly Walker Shop Shop Footwear {7 1% fl# - H it -
Footwear is still regarded as a subsidiary of the Company. Walker Shop Footwear 13 # &% & 2
No gain or loss was made by the Group on disposal of 50% NElZMEBRAGF - REBW Mt HE
equity interest in Walker Shop Footwear. Walker Shop Footwear 2 50% % # &
AU EE sk EIE o
The following are the details of the disposal of Artemis by REE N EHORAT 2 5T ¢
the Group:
Disposal of Artemis A E KA
An analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was HELXEEGIRzEERBED TN
lost: I
HK$’000
TFET
Property, plant and equipment W - BRE L&A 8
Inventories FE 1,165
Trade receivables FEWE 5B 329
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e~ FBRAFIAREAERGRIA 27
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEHEIEE 192
Trade and bills payables BB SHIERENEE (855)
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R EAE IR (233)
Net assets disposed of P EEE R 1,133
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HENBAR(E)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31

2019/2020F %% Annual Report 2019/2020

(a) MNEZE2020F3A31BLFEHENE

March 2020 (Continued) AT (E)
Disposal of Artemis (Continued) HEXHREF (&)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B E]Z A
HK$°000
FET
Cash consideration received EWIEERE 100
Net assets disposed of Frit & & EF5E (1,133)
Cumulative exchange gain in respect of B AR EEFE ReThE L IE
net assets of subsidiaries (466)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEIE (1,499)

An analysis of cash flows from the disposal of a subsidiary is

HE—RNBARELEZRSRENN

as follows: TN
HK$°000

FET

Cash consideration received BWIEERE 100
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEIEE (192)
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAREA RS MLFEE (92)
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HENBAR(E)
(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2019

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered
into an agreement with an independent third party to
dispose its 66% equity interests in Carlyon Investment
Holdings Limited (“Carlyon Investment”), a directly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, for a total consideration
of HK$5,000,000 in cash. The disposal was completed on 1
November 2018.

Assets and liabilities derecognised at the date when the

REBZE2019F3A31 B L FEHEHE

A

HZE2019F3A31HILFE - AEEHE
—BBME=FE] M NAEBEH
EENEESRELERAER AR ([EE
BRE| AR HEEZEMBRAR)Z
66% 5 #E - (8 AR £ 5,000,000/
7T o HEDN2018F 11 A1HK -

REBAEEESREZERERA AJ#E

group lost control over Carlyon Investment Holdings HIREARIUBECEERARE
Limited

HK$°000
FET
Cash consideration BEeRE 5,000
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB LR 77
Intangible assets mEE 242
Rental deposits — non-current HEZ e — FERNER 236
Trade receivables FEWE 5B 88
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &g~ TN FRIAREAERGRIAR 130
Intercompany balance — HK NAIHER— B 1,238
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEEE 5,904
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R EMEFIE (1,115)
Net assets disposed of FIHEEERE 6,800
Recognition of an associate REEE N A (2,312)
4,488
Gain on disposal HEME K 512

Net cash flow on disposal of Carlyon Investment

HERBSKREZKERA AZREE

Holdings Limited TEFE
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration received BUIRESRE 5,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B ERERSRRSEEER (5,904)
(904)
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For the year ended 31 March

BZ3A31ALLEE
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(g =31)) (feEy)) (KEED))
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET

Continuing operations BELEER
Revenue W 40,980 112,067 346,157 561,557 840,658
Cost of sales SHERA (6,301)  (70,444) (171,069) (272,996) (357,342)
Service costs BR AR (7,711) (723) - - -
Gross profit ER 26,968 40,900 175,088 288,561 483,316
Operating expenses KA B (54,864) (200,245) (355,485) (513,646) (642,913)
Other gains or losses H e sk & B (88,647)  (33,676) 30,552 (400) (394)
Other income N 1,980 3,375 4,000 4,742 4,277
Operating loss KEEB (114,563) (189,646) (145,845) (220,743) (155,714)
Finance (costs)/income, net B (BR),/ WA -

FE (198,480) (65,013)  (59,801) 11,107 (524)
Share of losses of associates FELEE = A B2 B8 (1,417) (2,727) (1,634) - -
Loss before income tax credit/ FKirFrEHIER,

(expense) (X)) AIER (314,460) (257,386) (207,280) (209,636) (156,238)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfiife, () 19,002 - 586 (116) (656)
Loss for the year EEEEBHE (295,458) (257,386) (206,694) (209,752) (156,894)
Continuing operations BESEER
Attributable to: G -

Equity holders of the Company ~ ARARIEZEE A (290,990) (256,597) (206,076) (209,065) (155,892)
Non-controlling interests FEERR (4,468) (789) (618) (687) (1,002)

(295,458) (257,386) (206,694) (209,752) (156,894)
Dividends BE - - - - -
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FEMBRRE
As at 31 March
M3A31AH
(Restated)
(geE5)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET FEIT FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B NEE 739 3,389 7,958 113,534 29,252
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6,216 - - - -
Intangible assets B AE 126,652 373 804 230,788 1,873
Interest in a joint venture n—HEeE Az
- - 510 510 510 -
Interests in associates AN s e 11,009 12,962 6,530 7,227 -
Available-for-sale financial At ESREE
assets - - 6,248 - -
Long-term deposits and KRR e RIEM IR
prepayments 276 1,155 11,363 27,354 12,588
144,892 18,389 33,413 379,413 43713
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 = 2,509 97,010 132,594 223,446
Trade receivables FEWE 5 7IE 1,568 4,390 38,323 39,751 72,939
Deposits, prepayments and e BENRER
other receivables F A FEUGRIR 114,083 114,612 136,014 32,014 27,081
Loans receivable FEE TR 148,312 135,846 130,873 - -
Amounts due from associates JE Y 2 B RO 6,797 6,469 3,662 - -
Cash and cash equivalents HekBe TrTEIE | 5,051 1,763 53,514 32,839 41,039
275,811 265,589 459,396 237,198 364,505
Assets classified as held-for-sale 7 fEAFEIEHNEZEE - 245111 241,830 14,730 13,900
275,811 510,700 701,226 251,928 378,405
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EFENBHE
As at 31 March
MR3A31H
(Restated)
(Fg=E3)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FET FET FEIT
LIABILITIES a&
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERE 5 5RIE (52,999) (62,872) (102,737)  (79,576) (104,026)
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R EAM
FER IR (273,386)  (54,242)  (36,577)  (73,408)  (41,129)
Amounts due to associates FES — B & A A
RIE (2,187) (2,445) - - -
Borrowings BE - - (5,130)  (72,240)  (44,920)
Obligation under finance lease BERERE - (97) (97) (105) (108)
Lease liabilities HEaE (3,124) - - - -
Income tax payable JERTRTET (1,010) (1,008) (1,077) (973) (1,102)
Corporate bond payable JERRRIES (405,000) (400,323) - - -
Convertible bonds AR &S (187,706) (141,522)  (17,550)  (17,550) -
(925,412) (662,507) (163,168) (243,852) (191,283)
Liability directly associated with ~ E2D 4B A G ELE 2 3ER
non-current assets classified as BAEAEABE BB
assets held for sale - (66,477) (52,408) - -
(925,412) (728,984) (215,576) (243,852) (191,283)
Net current (liabilities)/assets  RE (&) BEEFE (649,601) (218,284) 485,650 8,076 187,122
Total assets less current EEHABERRBARS
liabilities (504,709) (199,895) 519,063 387,489 230,835
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hFEMBHE
As at 31 March
MA3A31A
(Restated)
(Fg=E3)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES - (28,360) (137,053) (134,199) -
Obligation under finance lease REHEFAE - (32) (129) (225) (9)
Corporate bond payable FERARIES - —  (344,678) - -
Lease liabilities HEBE (3,205) - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE (17,071) - - (36,739) (851)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (20,276)  (28,392) (481,860) (171,163 (360)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) BEEFE (524,985) (228,287) 37,203 216,326 230,475
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves BN
Share capital [N 71,619 71,619 71,619 71,619 64,136
Share premium &0 (B 673,503 673,503 673,503 673,503 576,561
Reserves i (1,266,957) (972,082) (707,152) (529,037) (408,208)
(521,835) (226,960) 37,970 216,085 232,489
Non-controlling interests SRR A T (3,150) (1,327) (767) 241 (2,014)
Total equity A (524,985) (228,287) 37,203 216,326 230,475
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